
AGENDA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

JUNE 25, 2019 

 

4:30 pm ~ Workshop-Marijuana Ordinance 

 

6:30 pm ~ Council Meeting 

Please note that action (including final action) may be taken on any or all of the 

following items: 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

1. Call to Order 

2. Approval of minutes from June 11, 2019 meeting 

 

3. Approval of agenda 

 

4. Public Comment  

 
Note: Regular City Council meeting agendas and council packets are posted on the City’s website 

to keep City residents informed of City Council actions and deliberations that affect the 

community.   Public Comment time is set aside for citizens to address the City Council on matters 

within the jurisdiction of the City.  Each speaker is allocated three (3) minutes to speak.  Speakers 

may not cede their time to another speaker. City Council can only take action on matters that are 

on the Agenda but may place matters brought to their attention at this meeting on a future agenda 

for consideration. If you have documents to present to the City Council, please provide a minimum 

of eight (8) copies. .  In an effort to allow for a response to the comment, City employees will prepare 

responses to public comments provided to the City Clerk at least 24 hours prior to the scheduled 

meeting.  You can submit your comments in writing or email.  Please submit comments no later than 

close of business the day before the scheduled meeting addressed to City Clerk at the following email 

address; lwhite@ci.craig.co.us or drop your written comments at the front business office window to be 

delivered to the Clerk’s office.  Please make sure that your name, address and phone number are 

included with the comment submitted. 

5. Presentations 

 

 A.  Clint Moyer and Cole Riesling from CDOT will give a presentation 

 regarding the Handicap Ramp Project. 

 

mailto:lwhite@ci.craig.co.us


 

6. Consent Agenda 

 
Note: The Consent Agenda consist of proposed actions on business matters which are 

considered routine and for which approval is based on previously approved City policy or 

practice. The Consent Agenda will be approved by a single motion to “Approve the Consent 

Agenda” and Council Members will vote without debate.  Council Members may move to 

remove a Consent Agenda matter for any reason and request that it be handled separately for 

discussion and consideration. Matters removed from the Consent Agenda will be placed on the 

agenda as an item of “Other Business” for discussion and consideration.    

 

 A.  Approval of a renewal for a Liquor Store Liquor License for Dark Horse 

 Liquors, Inc. dba Dark Horse Liquors located at 1520 West Victory Way, 

 Craig. No cause shown for denial. 

 

 B.  Approval of a renewal for a Tavern Liquor License and an Application 

 for a Modification of Premises for Mathers’ Bar, Inc. dba Mathers’ located 

 at 420 Yampa Avenue, Craig. No cause shown for denial. 

     

7. Public Hearing-NONE 

 

8. Other Business 

   

 A.  Award of low bid for sewer line replacement on Pershing Street to 

 Anson Excavating in the amount of $51,707.05. 

 

 B.  Award of low bid for the US 40 Sidewalk Improvement Project to KSK, 

 LLC in the amount of $1,032,400 which included Schedule A bid for 

 $933,000 &  Schedule B bid for $99,400. 

 

 C.  Resolution No. 12 (2019) ~ Compact between and Amongst Colorado 

 Counties for Freedom, Energy and Electricity Production, Mining and 

 Agriculture.  

 

 D.  Resolution No. 13 (2019) ~ a resolution supporting the creation of a 

 CNCC and CCCS leadership partnership for community economic 

 development. 

 

 E. (FIRST READING) Ordinance No. 1086 (2019) ~ an ordinance 

 amending Chapter 15.02 of the Craig Municipal Code concerning the 

 adoption of updated code versions and repealing Chapter 15.08 entitled 

 “National Electrical Code”. 

 



 F. (FIRST READING) Ordinance No. 1087 (2019) ~ an ordinance 

 amending Chapter 15.04 of the Craig Municipal Code concerning the 

 International Building Code. 

 

G. (FIRST READING) Ordinance   No. 1088 (2019) ~ an ordinance 

adopting a new Chapter 15.06 of the Craig Municipal Code concerning the 

International Residential Code. 

 

H. (FIRST READING) Ordinance No. 1089 (2019) ~ an ordinance 

adopting a new Chapter 15.07 of the Craig Municipal Code concerning the 

International Existing Building Code. 

 
I. (FIRST READING) Ordinance No. 1090 (2019) ~ an ordinance 

amending Chapter 15.12 of the Craig Municipal Code concerning the 

International Mechanical Code. 

 

J. (FIRST READING) Ordinance No. 1091 (2019) ~ an ordinance 

amending Chapter 15.14 of the Craig Municipal Code concerning the 

International Fuel Gas Code. 

 

K. (FIRST READING) Ordinance No. 1092 (2019) ~ an ordinance 

amending Chapter 15.16 of the Craig Municipal Code concerning the 

International Plumbing Code. 

 

L. (FIRST READING) Ordinance No. 1093 (2019) ~ an ordinance 

amending Chapter 15.18 of the Craig Municipal Code concerning the 

International Property Maintenance Code. 

 

M. (FIRST READING) Ordinance No. 1094 (2019) ~ an ordinance 

amending Chapter 15.22 of the Craig Municipal Code concerning the 

International Manufactured Home Installation Code. 

 

N. (FIRST READING) Ordinance No. 1095 (2019) ~ an ordinance 

amending Chapter 15.20 of the Craig Municipal Code concerning the 

International Energy Conservative Code. 

O. Approval of award for low bid from Bear River Paint & Finish for 

painting the exterior of buildings at the wastewater plant in the amount of 

$23,775.00.  

 

9. Staff Reports 

 

A. May 2019 Water/Wastewater report 

 

B. Month-end financial report for May 2019 



 

C.  Whittle the Wood update 

 

10.   City Manager/City Attorney Reports 

 

11.   Council Reports 

 

12.   Adjourn 



 

1 

 

 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

JUNE 11, 2019 

MINUTES 

 

Mayor Pro-Tem Tony Bohrer brought to order at 6:30 p.m. the first regular meeting of the Craig 

City Council for the month of June 2019.   In addition to Mayor Pro-Tem Bohrer, those present 

were Councilmembers Chris Nichols, Andrea Camp, Brian MacKenzie, Paul James and Steven 

Mazzuca. Staff present were City Manager Peter Brixius, Finance Director Bruce Nelson, City 

Attorney Sherman Romney, Chief of Police Jerry Delong, Water/Wastewater Director Mark 

Sollenberger, Public Works Director Randy Call, Building Official Marlin Eckhoff and City Clerk 

Liz White. Parks and Recreation Director Dave Pike was absent. 

 

All participated in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Councilwoman Camp moved with a second by Councilman MacKenzie to approve the minutes 

from the May 28, 2019 meeting. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

   

Councilwoman Camp moved with a second by Councilman Nichols to approve payments of bills 

for the month of May 2019 in the amount of $556,821.15. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

Councilman Nichols moved with a second by Councilman Mazzuca to approve the agenda as 

presented. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

Public Comment was given by Craig residents Kandee Dilldine, Tom Kleinschnitz, Vicky Huyser, 

Jayne Morley and Ken Wergin on a variety of topics which included information for the 

Homemade-Homegrown Event to be held on July 20, 2019 from 10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., John 

Wesley Powell Days on June 17-22, 2019 at Echo Park, the homeless situation around Craig, the 

proposed drug rehabilitation center and a special thank you for watering the flowers by the 

museum. 

 

Tom Kleinschnitz from the Moffat County Tourism Association presented for approval a 

proclamation proclaiming June 17th and 18th, 2019 as “John Wesley Powell Days”. After the 

proclamation was read, Councilman James moved with a second by Councilman Nichols to 

approve the proclamation proclaiming June 17th and 18th, 2019 as “John Wesley Powell Days”. 

Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

Neil Folks, President of the Fuller Center for Housing presented information to council on the 

upcoming Fuller Center Bike Adventure in July and explained “The Greater Blessing Program”. 

 

Councilwoman Camp moved with a second by Councilman Mazzuca to approve the Consent 

Agenda as presented which included approval of a Special Events Permit for the Downtown 

Business Association for a Beer Garden to be held at Alice Pleasant Park on July 20, 2019 from 

10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.  Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried.  

 

Mayor Pro-Tem Bohrer opened the Public Hearing with regard to an Easement Vacation at 762 

Exmoor Road for Trevor Campbell for a 24’ x 30’ detached garage. Building Official Eckhoff 



 

2 

 

gave some background information pertaining to the easement. The floor was then open for public 

comment. No public comments were given at this time. The Public Hearing was closed. 

 

Mayor Pro-Tem Bohrer presented for approval an Easement Vacation at 762 Exmoor Road for 

Trevor Campbell for a 24’ x 30’ detached garage. Councilman Nichols moved with a second by 

Councilman James to approve an Easement Vacation at 762 Exmoor Road for Trevor Campbell 

for a 24’ x 30’ detached garage. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

Water/Wastewater Director Sollenberger presented to council for approval a low bid from Power 

Source Services in the amount of $15,500.00 for two bar screens for the Wastewater Plant’s 

oxidation ditches. After further discussion, Councilwoman Camp moved with a second by 

Councilman James to approve the low bid from Power Source Services in the amount of 

$15,500.00 for two bar screens for the Wastewater Plant’s oxidation ditches. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. 

Motion carried. 

 

City Manager Brixius presented to council a lease extension for CEC Solar – Lease #1024, 

extending the current 25 year lease by one year, with the lease renewal and extension occurring in 

2039 rather than 2038. After further discussion, Councilman Nichols moved with a second by 

Councilman Mazzuca to approve the lease extension for CEC Solar – Lease #1024, extending the 

current 25 year lease by one year, with the lease renewal and extension occurring in 2039 rather 

than 2038. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

Building Official Eckhoff introduced Ordinances No. 1086 through 1094 (2019) which will update 

the Craig Municipal Code with the latest updated building codes from the International Building 

Code. No motions were made on these ordinances as they were introductions only. First Reading 

on these ordinances will be on the June 25th council meeting with a Public Hearing and Second 

Reading to be held on July 9th council meeting. 

 

City Manager Brixius introduced Resolution No. 11 (2019) ~ a resolution appropriating additional 

funds in the General Fund under the Council department to provide funds for Economic 

Development in the amount of $32, 200.00. After further discussion Councilman Nichols moved 

with a second by Councilwoman Camp to approve Resolution No. 11 (2019) ~ a resolution 

appropriating additional funds in the General Fund under the Council department to provide funds 

for Economic Development in the amount of $32,200.00. Ayes: 5. Nays: 1. Motion carried. 

Councilman James voted in the negative. 

 

Police Chief Delong gave his monthly police report for May, 2019. He commented on the weed 

problems around Craig and gave an update on the newly hired police officer and CSO position. 

 

City Manager Brixius offered comments regarding Rural Economic Development Innovation 

Initiative, an upcoming DOLA meeting on July 31st, bids for the audio-visual system upgrades that 

are due back on June 14th, and a possible date for a retreat prior to the budget cycle to discuss 

strategic planning for 2020. 

 

City Attorney Romney offered comments regarding the Charter Review Committee. 

 



 

3 

 

Council members gave updates on meetings and committees they are involved in and meetings 

they will be attending in the future.  

 

Being no further business, Councilman Nichols moved with a second by Councilwoman Camp to 

adjourn the meeting.  Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 



AGENDA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

JUNE 25, 2019 

 

4:30 pm ~ Workshop-Marijuana Ordinance 

 

6:30 pm ~ Council Meeting 

Please note that action (including final action) may be taken on any or all of the 

following items: 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

1. Call to Order 

2. Approval of minutes from June 11, 2019 meeting 

 

3. Approval of agenda 

 

4. Public Comment  

 
Note: Regular City Council meeting agendas and council packets are posted on the City’s website 

to keep City residents informed of City Council actions and deliberations that affect the 

community.   Public Comment time is set aside for citizens to address the City Council on matters 

within the jurisdiction of the City.  Each speaker is allocated three (3) minutes to speak.  Speakers 

may not cede their time to another speaker. City Council can only take action on matters that are 

on the Agenda but may place matters brought to their attention at this meeting on a future agenda 

for consideration. If you have documents to present to the City Council, please provide a minimum 

of eight (8) copies. .  In an effort to allow for a response to the comment, City employees will prepare 

responses to public comments provided to the City Clerk at least 24 hours prior to the scheduled 

meeting.  You can submit your comments in writing or email.  Please submit comments no later than 

close of business the day before the scheduled meeting addressed to City Clerk at the following email 

address; lwhite@ci.craig.co.us or drop your written comments at the front business office window to be 

delivered to the Clerk’s office.  Please make sure that your name, address and phone number are 

included with the comment submitted. 

5. Presentations 

 

 A.  Clint Moyer and Cole Riesling from CDOT will give a presentation 

 regarding the Handicap Ramp Project. 

 

mailto:lwhite@ci.craig.co.us


 

6. Consent Agenda 

 
Note: The Consent Agenda consist of proposed actions on business matters which are 

considered routine and for which approval is based on previously approved City policy or 

practice. The Consent Agenda will be approved by a single motion to “Approve the Consent 

Agenda” and Council Members will vote without debate.  Council Members may move to 

remove a Consent Agenda matter for any reason and request that it be handled separately for 

discussion and consideration. Matters removed from the Consent Agenda will be placed on the 

agenda as an item of “Other Business” for discussion and consideration.    

 

 A.  Approval of a renewal for a Liquor Store Liquor License for Dark Horse 

 Liquors, Inc. dba Dark Horse Liquors located at 1520 West Victory Way, 

 Craig. No cause shown for denial. 

 

 B.  Approval of a renewal for a Tavern Liquor License and an Application 

 for a Modification of Premises for Mathers’ Bar, Inc. dba Mathers’ located 

 at 420 Yampa Avenue, Craig. No cause shown for denial. 

     

7. Public Hearing-NONE 

 

8. Other Business 

   

 A.  Award of low bid for sewer line replacement on Pershing Street to 

 Anson Excavating in the amount of $51,707.05. 

 

 B.  Award of low bid for the US 40 Sidewalk Improvement Project to KSK, 

 LLC in the amount of $1,032,400 which included Schedule A bid for 

 $933,000 &  Schedule B bid for $99,400. 

 

 C.  Resolution No. 12 (2019) ~ Compact between and Amongst Colorado 

 Counties for Freedom, Energy and Electricity Production, Mining and 

 Agriculture.  

 

 D.  Resolution No. 13 (2019) ~ a resolution supporting the creation of a 

 CNCC and CCCS leadership partnership for community economic 

 development. 

 

 E. (FIRST READING) Ordinance No. 1086 (2019) ~ an ordinance 

 amending Chapter 15.02 of the Craig Municipal Code concerning the 

 adoption of updated code versions and repealing Chapter 15.08 entitled 

 “National Electrical Code”. 

 



 F. (FIRST READING) Ordinance No. 1087 (2019) ~ an ordinance 

 amending Chapter 15.04 of the Craig Municipal Code concerning the 

 International Building Code. 

 

G. (FIRST READING) Ordinance   No. 1088 (2019) ~ an ordinance 

adopting a new Chapter 15.06 of the Craig Municipal Code concerning the 

International Residential Code. 

 

H. (FIRST READING) Ordinance No. 1089 (2019) ~ an ordinance 

adopting a new Chapter 15.07 of the Craig Municipal Code concerning the 

International Existing Building Code. 

 
I. (FIRST READING) Ordinance No. 1090 (2019) ~ an ordinance 

amending Chapter 15.12 of the Craig Municipal Code concerning the 

International Mechanical Code. 

 

J. (FIRST READING) Ordinance No. 1091 (2019) ~ an ordinance 

amending Chapter 15.14 of the Craig Municipal Code concerning the 

International Fuel Gas Code. 

 

K. (FIRST READING) Ordinance No. 1092 (2019) ~ an ordinance 

amending Chapter 15.16 of the Craig Municipal Code concerning the 

International Plumbing Code. 

 

L. (FIRST READING) Ordinance No. 1093 (2019) ~ an ordinance 

amending Chapter 15.18 of the Craig Municipal Code concerning the 

International Property Maintenance Code. 

 

M. (FIRST READING) Ordinance No. 1094 (2019) ~ an ordinance 

amending Chapter 15.22 of the Craig Municipal Code concerning the 

International Manufactured Home Installation Code. 

 

N. (FIRST READING) Ordinance No. 1095 (2019) ~ an ordinance 

amending Chapter 15.20 of the Craig Municipal Code concerning the 

International Energy Conservative Code. 

O. Approval of award for low bid from Bear River Paint & Finish for 

painting the exterior of buildings at the wastewater plant in the amount of 

$23,775.00.  

 

9. Staff Reports 

 

A. May 2019 Water/Wastewater report 

 

B. Month-end financial report for May 2019 



 

C.  Whittle the Wood update 

 

10.   City Manager/City Attorney Reports 

 

11.   Council Reports 

 

12.   Adjourn 



 

1 

 

 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

JUNE 11, 2019 

MINUTES 

 

Mayor Pro-Tem Tony Bohrer brought to order at 6:30 p.m. the first regular meeting of the Craig 

City Council for the month of June 2019.   In addition to Mayor Pro-Tem Bohrer, those present 

were Councilmembers Chris Nichols, Andrea Camp, Brian MacKenzie, Paul James and Steven 

Mazzuca. Staff present were City Manager Peter Brixius, Finance Director Bruce Nelson, City 

Attorney Sherman Romney, Chief of Police Jerry Delong, Water/Wastewater Director Mark 

Sollenberger, Public Works Director Randy Call, Building Official Marlin Eckhoff and City Clerk 

Liz White. Parks and Recreation Director Dave Pike was absent. 

 

All participated in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Councilwoman Camp moved with a second by Councilman MacKenzie to approve the minutes 

from the May 28, 2019 meeting. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

   

Councilwoman Camp moved with a second by Councilman Nichols to approve payments of bills 

for the month of May 2019 in the amount of $556,821.15. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

Councilman Nichols moved with a second by Councilman Mazzuca to approve the agenda as 

presented. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

Public Comment was given by Craig residents Kandee Dilldine, Tom Kleinschnitz, Vicky Huyser, 

Jayne Morley and Ken Wergin on a variety of topics which included information for the 

Homemade-Homegrown Event to be held on July 20, 2019 from 10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., John 

Wesley Powell Days on June 17-22, 2019 at Echo Park, the homeless situation around Craig, the 

proposed drug rehabilitation center and a special thank you for watering the flowers by the 

museum. 

 

Tom Kleinschnitz from the Moffat County Tourism Association presented for approval a 

proclamation proclaiming June 17th and 18th, 2019 as “John Wesley Powell Days”. After the 

proclamation was read, Councilman James moved with a second by Councilman Nichols to 

approve the proclamation proclaiming June 17th and 18th, 2019 as “John Wesley Powell Days”. 

Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

Neil Folks, President of the Fuller Center for Housing presented information to council on the 

upcoming Fuller Center Bike Adventure in July and explained “The Greater Blessing Program”. 

 

Councilwoman Camp moved with a second by Councilman Mazzuca to approve the Consent 

Agenda as presented which included approval of a Special Events Permit for the Downtown 

Business Association for a Beer Garden to be held at Alice Pleasant Park on July 20, 2019 from 

10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.  Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried.  

 

Mayor Pro-Tem Bohrer opened the Public Hearing with regard to an Easement Vacation at 762 

Exmoor Road for Trevor Campbell for a 24’ x 30’ detached garage. Building Official Eckhoff 



 

2 

 

gave some background information pertaining to the easement. The floor was then open for public 

comment. No public comments were given at this time. The Public Hearing was closed. 

 

Mayor Pro-Tem Bohrer presented for approval an Easement Vacation at 762 Exmoor Road for 

Trevor Campbell for a 24’ x 30’ detached garage. Councilman Nichols moved with a second by 

Councilman James to approve an Easement Vacation at 762 Exmoor Road for Trevor Campbell 

for a 24’ x 30’ detached garage. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

Water/Wastewater Director Sollenberger presented to council for approval a low bid from Power 

Source Services in the amount of $15,500.00 for two bar screens for the Wastewater Plant’s 

oxidation ditches. After further discussion, Councilwoman Camp moved with a second by 

Councilman James to approve the low bid from Power Source Services in the amount of 

$15,500.00 for two bar screens for the Wastewater Plant’s oxidation ditches. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. 

Motion carried. 

 

City Manager Brixius presented to council a lease extension for CEC Solar – Lease #1024, 

extending the current 25 year lease by one year, with the lease renewal and extension occurring in 

2039 rather than 2038. After further discussion, Councilman Nichols moved with a second by 

Councilman Mazzuca to approve the lease extension for CEC Solar – Lease #1024, extending the 

current 25 year lease by one year, with the lease renewal and extension occurring in 2039 rather 

than 2038. Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

Building Official Eckhoff introduced Ordinances No. 1086 through 1094 (2019) which will update 

the Craig Municipal Code with the latest updated building codes from the International Building 

Code. No motions were made on these ordinances as they were introductions only. First Reading 

on these ordinances will be on the June 25th council meeting with a Public Hearing and Second 

Reading to be held on July 9th council meeting. 

 

City Manager Brixius introduced Resolution No. 11 (2019) ~ a resolution appropriating additional 

funds in the General Fund under the Council department to provide funds for Economic 

Development in the amount of $32, 200.00. After further discussion Councilman Nichols moved 

with a second by Councilwoman Camp to approve Resolution No. 11 (2019) ~ a resolution 

appropriating additional funds in the General Fund under the Council department to provide funds 

for Economic Development in the amount of $32,200.00. Ayes: 5. Nays: 1. Motion carried. 

Councilman James voted in the negative. 

 

Police Chief Delong gave his monthly police report for May, 2019. He commented on the weed 

problems around Craig and gave an update on the newly hired police officer and CSO position. 

 

City Manager Brixius offered comments regarding Rural Economic Development Innovation 

Initiative, an upcoming DOLA meeting on July 31st, bids for the audio-visual system upgrades that 

are due back on June 14th, and a possible date for a retreat prior to the budget cycle to discuss 

strategic planning for 2020. 

 

City Attorney Romney offered comments regarding the Charter Review Committee. 

 



 

3 

 

Council members gave updates on meetings and committees they are involved in and meetings 

they will be attending in the future.  

 

Being no further business, Councilman Nichols moved with a second by Councilwoman Camp to 

adjourn the meeting.  Ayes: 6. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 















































Resolution 12 (2019) 

Compact Between and Amongst Colorado Counties 

for Freedom, Energy and Electricity Production,  

Mining and Agriculture 
 

WHEREAS, the undersigned counties (the “Counties”) support domestic energy 

and electricity production, mining, and agriculture within our counties and all of 

the corresponding benefits to the economy, our nation’s security, our state’s 

financial well-being, and the health of our communities;  

 

WHEREAS, the Colorado General Assembly and the Governor are implementing 

an aggressive and radical agenda that threatens agriculture, all facets of industry 

and our cherished way of life;  

 

WHEREAS, the Counties oppose heavy-handed state and federal regulation of 

energy and electricity production, mining and agriculture within our counties; 

 

WHEREAS, the Counties oppose the taking of private property, without just 

compensation, including but not limited to mineral rights; and 

 

WHEREAS unfunded mandates along with heavy-handed state and federal 

regulations have a detrimental impact on our local economies;  

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Counties will: 

 

A. Support local jobs and industries that depend upon energy and electricity 

production, mining and agriculture;   

 

B. Oppose onerous state regulation of energy and electricity production, 

agriculture and mining; 

 

C. Oppose the taking of private property, without just compensation, by 

federal or state regulatory or legislative action;    

 

D. Balance energy and electricity production, mining and agriculture within 

our counties with environmental protections, public health and safety and 

recreation;  

 

E. Coordinate permitting within our jurisdictions to avoid duplication and 

facilitate responsible development;  

 

F. Streamline county permitting processes to the maximum extent possible; 

and 



 

G. Set an example for good governance in an environment conducive to 

industry, agriculture and economic growth for the good of our counties, our 

state and our nation. 

 

Resolution AGNC 12 (2019) duly approved by a vote of the City Council on the 

25th day of June 2019.  

 

 

Jarrod Ogden, Mayor 

 

Resolution Adopted by the following local governments:  

 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 13 (2019) 

 

SUPPORTING THE CREATION OF A CNCC AND CCCS LEADERSHIP PARTNERSHIP FOR COMMUNITY 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

 

Whereas, the business, education, and government leaders, jointly, and on behalf of the citizens of Craig/Moffat County, 

propose to help restore a collaborative working relationship between the Craig/Moffat County, the Colorado Northwestern 

Community College (CNCC), and the Colorado Community College System (CCCS) leadership, as well as to create positive 

changes to the CNCC operations and delivery of high quality, relevant educational and career opportunities for all of 

Craig/Moffat County. 

 

Whereas, the business, education, and government leaders of Craig and Moffat County seek to mandate reform within 

CNCC and request a collaborative effort and partnership with CCCS for our continued economic viability while providing 

responsible financial stewardship and respecting the community concerns and judgement of our fellow citizens. 

 

Whereas, the business, education, and government leaders of Craig and Moffat County acknowledge that strengthening the 

CNCC and CCCS partnership is essential to serving the citizens of the local community and its pursuit of overall educational, 

business, and cultural progress.   

   

Whereas, Craig/Moffat County is currently a predominantly energy reliant community during a period of economic 

uncertainty, and the development and expansion of CNCC-Craig is a key element to our long-term economic viability.  

  

Whereas, CNCC and CCCS are required to initiate immediate proactive measures to lead the development of the CNCC-

Craig Campus with economic development as the CNCC Senior Leadership Team’s priority goal and mandate of CCCS.  

Whereas, the achievement of positive change and development requires that the CNCC Senior Leadership Team be actively 

engaged in the local community in leading change with specific, measurable, and time-specific goals.  

 

Whereas, the CNCC Senior Leadership Team shall immediately lead and develop the following priority initiatives:  (1) 

on-campus student-housing, (2) athletic programs, and (3) auxiliary student development programs to demonstrate that the 

CNCC-Craig campus is a first-choice educational institution for students seeking academic degrees and certifications in the 

allied health, technical, trades, paleontology, and the arts career fields.  

Whereas, the CCCS leadership must initiate immediate operational changes at CNCC to accomplish Craig/Moffat County 

community goals. 

 

Whereas, Craig/Moffat County business, education, and government leaders request that the CCCS Board and Chancellor 

openly engage with the Craig/Moffat County community and commit human and financial resources to create and submit 

to the citizens of Craig/Moffat County within a 90-day timeframe a fully transparent and public CNCC development plan 

containing specific, measurable and timely goals in support of growth, economic development, and positive operational 

changes. 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF CRAIG, COLORADO: 

 

1. The City Council of Craig, Colorado supports the creation of a Craig/Moffat County business, education, and 

government, CNCC and CCCS leadership partnership to deliver CNCC strategic financial and operational changes 

focused on the improvement of overall community quality of life and enhanced economic opportunities for the 

community members of Craig/Moffat County. 

 

2. The City Council of Craig, Colorado supports the development of a 90-day fully executable CNCC development plan 

through this collaborative process containing specific, measurable and timely goals in support of Craig/Moffat County 

growth, economic development, and positive operational changes.  

 

  



2 

 

Adopted this ____ day of ____________________, 2019.  

 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF CRAIG, COLORADO 
 

        By:   

 

 

 

 

        _____________________ 

        Jarrod Ogden, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

____________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 



ORDINANCE 1086 (2019) 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 15.02 OF THE CRAIG MUNICIPAL CODE 

CONCERNING THE ADOPTION OF UPDATED CODE VERSIONS, AND REPEALING 

CHAPTER 15.08 ENTITLED “NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE” 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Craig has adopted rules and regulation concerning building code 

requirements for all real property located within city limits, which rules and regulations set 

minimum standards for the design and construction of buildings to ensure the safety and health 

for people in or about those buildings; and 

 

WHEREAS, building codes are occasionally updated at a national level resulting in the adoption 

of updated versions of building and other related codes; and 

 

WHEREAS, by this ordinance together with other related ordinances being considered at this 

time, the City Council updates the building rules and regulations to remain current within this 

area. 

WHEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CRAIG, 
COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.   Chapter 15.02 of the Craig Municipal Code entitled “Procedure for Adoption of 
Updated Code Versions” shall be amended to read in its entirety as follows (note: this is a 
redline version of the changes to the Craig Municipal Code, with language to be eliminated 
designated with strikethrough notation and new language shown in red): 
 

Chapter 15.02 

Procedure for Adoption of Updated Code Versions 

15.02.010 - Procedure established.  

The procedure for adoption of updated versions of any uniform code used by the city in this 

Title 15 shall be as set forth in this Chapter 15.02 as follows:  

A.  The city must adopt by ordinance new updated versions of all codes with any additions, 

deletions or modifications thereto within one (1) year of the date of publication of the new 

codes. In order for the Building Official to enforce any edition of the code, it must be 

specifically adopted by ordinance. 

B.  Prior to adoption by ordinance the city should allow review and comment by the city building 

official, the board of appeals and the public. Any additions, deletions or modifications to the 

updated version of a model code should be made only upon a strong showing that the proposed 

change to the model code serves an important public purpose.  

 

15.02.020 - Effective date of unadopted code.  

In the event that an updated version of a model code has not been adopted by ordinance by 

the date one (1) year from publication of such update, the city building official shall enforce such 

updated code as if the code had been passed by ordinance.  

 

15.02.030 - Present edition of codes.  



A.  This chapter does not itself change any of the currently adopted codes until such codes are 

specifically changed by ordinance.  

B.  All codes already adopted by reference to a specifically dated version shall remain adopted 

as the specifically referenced version. All codes presently adopted by reference to the current 

version shall remain adopted as the current version until a new updated version is specifically 

adopted in accordance with the procedure set out in Chapter 15.02.  

 

Section 2. REPEAL OF CHAPTER 15.08:  Chapter 15.08 entitled “National Electrical Code” is 

repealed in its entirety. 

Section 3.  EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Ordinance shall take effect ten (10) days after passage and 

upon publication of such ordinance after passage.   

Section 4.  PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY:  The City Council deems it appropriate to publish 

the title of this Ordinance, together with a summary of the Ordinance and with the statement that 

the text is available for public inspection and acquisition in the office of the City Clerk. 

   

Section 5.  PUBLIC PURPOSE:  The City Council of the City of Craig herewith finds and 

determines that this Ordinance is necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and 

safety.  This Ordinance is enacted pursuant to the City’s authority to act under its police power to 

protect and preserve the general welfare of the City and its citizens. 
 

 READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED ON FIRST READING THIS 

____________ DAY OF ______________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO.  

  

                    ______________________________ 

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 

 

 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED AFTER HEARING ON SECOND READING 

THIS ______ DAY OF _____________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

 

 

       ________________________________  

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 



ORDINANCE 1087 (2019) 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 15.04 OF THE CRAIG MUNICIPAL CODE 

CONCERNING THE INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Craig has adopted rules and regulation concerning building code 

requirements for all real property located within city limits, which rules and regulations set 

minimum standards for the design and construction of buildings to ensure the safety and health 

for people in or about those buildings; and 

 

WHEREAS, building codes are occasionally updated at a national level resulting in the adoption 

of updated versions of building and other related codes; and 

 

WHEREAS, by this ordinance together with other related ordinances being considered at this 

time, the City Council updates the building rules and regulations to remain current within this 

area. 

WHEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CRAIG, 
COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.   Chapter 15.04 of the Craig Municipal Code entitled “International Building 
Code” shall be amended to read in its entirety as follows (note: this is a redline version of the 
changes to the Craig Municipal Code, with language to be eliminated designated with 
strikethrough notation and new language shown in red): 

 

Chapter 15.04   

 

International Building Code 

15.04.010 - Document adopted; copies on file.  

Pursuant to Title 31, Article 16, Sections 201 through 208, C.R.S., there is adopted as the 

building code of the city, by reference thereto, the International Building Code, 2006 2018 

edition, published by the International Code Council, Inc., 4051 West Flossmoor Road, Country 

Club Hills, IL 60478-5795, of which three (3) two (2) copies are now filed in the office of the 

city clerk, and which may be inspected during regular business hours, the same being adopted as 

if set out at length. There is further adopted all appendices of such codes and regulations. IBC 

Section 101.1 (Title) is modified by the addition of the term “City of Craig” where 

indicated. 
 

15.04.020 - Additions, modifications and deletions.  

The adopted code is subject to the additions, modifications or deletions set forth in Sections 

15.04.030 through 15.04.065.  

          

15.04.030 - Additions or modifications; moving of buildings.  

For a permit to move a building through or across any public street, alley or highway, a fifty-

dollar fee shall be required. Before issuance of a moving permit, the following requirements shall 

be met:  



A.  No dwelling shall be moved until it meets the minimum area and sanitary requirements set 

forth in the zoning ordinance codified in Title 16 of this code. It shall be the duty of the 

building official to establish the fact that minimum area and sanitary requirements have been 

met.  

B.  No building, dwelling or structure shall be moved until it complies structurally with the 

requirements set forth in this code for new buildings. It shall be the duty of the building official 

to establish the fact that structural requirements have been met.  

C.  No dwelling shall be moved until the owner agrees in writing that all zoning requirements 

will be complied with fully, pertaining to use, area and height of that district into which 

movement is requested. It shall be the duty of the zoning administrator to secure this statement.  

D.  No dwelling shall be moved until three (3) days after the building inspector has been 

presented with a written report establishing the fact that the appraised value of the dwelling 

to be moved equals or exceeds the average appraised value of all dwellings on each side of 

the street within the city block in which the owner wishes to move the dwelling. All appraisals 

shall be made by members of the National Real Estate Brokerage Association and in strict 

accordance with the standards established by this organization. The cost of such appraisal 

shall be borne by the owner requesting a moving permit. It shall be the duty of the building 

inspector to assure himself or herself that an authentic, written appraisal has been received 

before any permit shall be issued.  

E.  No building, dwelling or structure shall be moved until the owner thereof supplies the city 

clerk with the gross overall width of the vehicle performing the movement, the route to be 

followed and the time of movement.  

F.  No permit shall be issued until after all public utilities have been notified and a police escort 

has been provided.  

G.  No permit shall be issued until Subsections A through F of this section have been fully 

complied with and/or until payment for such permit has been received.  

H.  None of the requirements of this section shall apply to the moving of tool houses owned and 

moved by licensed contractors to construction sites within the corporate limits for use as tool 

shed only.  

I.  After such structure shall have been moved, the same shall be subject to all applicable 

inspections as set forth in Section 109 and/or Section R109 of the International Building Code 

and/or International Residential Code, current editions, and the same shall not be occupied 

until such inspections have been made and the applicable certificates of occupancy or 

compliance are issued.  

 

15.04.040 - Additions or modifications; demolition of buildings.  

A.  A permit will be required for the demolition of a structure. In demolishing any structure or 

part thereof, one (1) story at a time shall be completely removed. No material shall be placed 

upon the floor of any building in the course of demolition. Substantial protection for the 

public, to be approved by the building inspector, shall be provided when demolishing any 

building within ten (10) feet of a public thoroughfare. No material which has been removed 

from a building in the course of demolition shall be stored on any street, alley or other public 

way. When any building has been demolished, the person, firm or corporation who has 



performed the work shall immediately clear the adjacent streets, alleys and other public ways 

of all rubbish, refuse and loose material resulting from such demolition.  

B.  The wrecking contractor shall fill all excavations level with the adjoining grade or enclose 

the excavation with a substantial, tight board fence not less than five (5) feet high extending 

around the excavation on all sides.  

C.  The fee for a demolition permit in all zoning districts shall be one hundred dollars ($100.00).  

 

15.04.043 - Additions or modifications; snow loads.  

A.  Snow Loads.  

1.  Snow loads, full or unbalanced, shall be considered in place of loads set forth in the 

International Building Code Table 1607.1 Section 1608 and International Residential 

Code Figure R-305.2(1)  R-301.2(6)  where such loading will result in larger members or 

connections.  

2.  Potential accumulations of snow at valleys, parapets, roof structures and offsets in roofs 

of uneven configuration shall be considered. Snow loads for the city shall be forty (40) 

pounds.  

3.  Any remodeling of existing buildings that may affect the roof load shall be certified or 

have recommendation for snow load by an architect or engineer registered by the state.  

B.  Standardization Tables. The standardization tables shall be in the building code standards.  

 

15.04.045 - Section 105.2.  

Chapters 1 of the International Building Code and International Residential Code are amended 

by the repeal and reenactment of Sections 105.2 and R105.2 to read as follows:  

“Section 105.2 Work Exempt from Permit. A building permit shall not be required for 

the following:  

"1. Unattached accessory structures, one hundred twenty (120) two hundred (200) 

square feet or less, used for tools, storage or playhouses and similar uses, for residential 

dwellings only. This includes both site-built and pre-fabricated structures which are 

delivered as one unit. 

"2. Walks, sidewalk repairs and driveways not more than thirty (30) inches above 

grade, and not over any basement or story below.  

"3. Painting and wallpapering, tiling, carpeting, cabinets, counter tops and similar 

finish work.  

"4. Paneling when no structural alterations are being done to alter the occupancy or 

construction of the building. This applies to single-family dwellings only.  

"5. Window awnings on residential buildings only.  

"6. Temporary motion picture, television and theater stage sets and scenery.  

"7. Prefabricated swimming pools accessory to a Group R-3 occupancy that are less 

than twenty-four (24) inches (610 mm) deep, do not exceed five thousand (5,000) gallons 

(18,925 L) and are installed entirely above ground.  



"8. Shade cloth structures constructed for nursery or agricultural purposes, not 

including service systems.  

"9. Residential and commercial overhead garage door installations when no 

structural alterations are required to openings.  

"10. Installation of replacement windows when no structural alterations are required 

to openings.  

"11. Swings and other playground equipment accessory to detached one- and two-

family dwellings.  

"12. Movable cases, counters and partitions not over five (5) feet nine (9) inches 

high."  

 

15.04.049 - Additions; permit issuance.  

A.  No permit shall be issued to any person to do or to cause to be done any work regulated by 

this chapter, except to a person holding a valid, unexpired and unrevoked contractor's license 

as required by the city or as otherwise provided in this section.  

B.  Any permit required by this chapter may be issued to any person to do any work 

regulated by this chapter in a single-family dwelling used exclusively for living purposes, 

including the usual accessory buildings and quarters in connection with such buildings, if that 

person is the bona fide owner of any such dwelling and accessory buildings and quarters and 

such premises are occupied by or designed to be occupied by such owner, provided that the 

owner shall personally purchase all material and shall personally perform all labor in 

connection therewith.  

         Exceptions: 

                1. Property owners who are the bona fide owner of a one or two-family dwelling 

which they use as a rental property and is not their primary residence, may acquire 

building permits for the following: 

                     

                      1.1. Including, but not limited to roofing, siding, decks, covered 

porches/patios, interior framing, drywall and accessory buildings without living quarters, 

provided that the owner shall personally acquire the permit, purchase all material and 

shall personally perform all labor in connection therewith. 

           

2. Property owners shall not acquire the following permits for a property that is not 

their primary residence. 

               

                2.1. Plumbing, Mechanical, and Electrical permits. 

                2.1. Building permits for a new residence/dwelling, or one which would add living 

space to an existing structure. 

        

Note: This exception applies to one and two-family dwellings only, all commercial 

properties require a properly licensed contractor to acquire the permit and perform the 

work. 

 



15.04.050 - Additions; permit fees.  

A.  A permit shall not be valid until the fees prescribed below have been paid, nor shall an 

amendment to a permit be released until the additional fee, if any, has been paid.  

B.  Any person who commences any work on a building, structure or associated systems before 

obtaining the necessary permits shall be subject to a doubling of the normally imposed permit 

fee for such work.  

C.  Regular building permit fees shall be based upon project valuation exclusive of the cost of 

real property. Determination of the value of a project may be based upon the table below, or 

upon credible documentation of actual costs, provided by the permit applicant.  

Table 15.04.050(1)  

Project Valuation / Square Foot Construction Costs* 2018 

Occupancy/Us

e Group**  

Type of Construction  

1A  1B  2A  2B  3A  3B  4  5A  5B  

A, Assembly  

 A-1, theaters 

with stage  

$244.2

1  

$236.1

8  

$230.5

5  

$221.0

1  

$207.8

2  

$201.8

2  

$214.0

2  

$189.8

3  

$182.7

1  

 A-1, theaters 

without stage  
223.45  215.42  209.80  200.25  187.31  181.32  193.26  169.33  162.21  

 A-2, 

nightclubs  
190.08  184.73  180.34  172.99  163.33   158.82   166.99  147.83  142.92  

 A-2, 

restaurants , 

bars, banquet 

halls  

189.08  183.73  178.34  171.99  161.33  157.82  165.99  145.83  141.92  

 A-3, 

churches  
224.47  216.44  210.82  201.27  189.73  183.73  194.28  171.74  164.62  

 A-3, general, 

community 

halls, libraries, 

museums  

188.77  180.74  174.11  165.57  151.59  146.63  158.58  133.64  127.52  

 A-4, arenas  222.45  214.42  207.80  199.25  185.31  180.32  192.26  167.33  161.21  

B, Business  195.88  188.76  182.90  173.98  159.08  153.13  167.31  139.76  133.67  

E, 

Educational  
207.44  200.32  195.11  186.22  173.62  164.85  179.83  151.63  147.30  

F, Factory and Industrial  

 F-1, 

moderate 

hazard  

115.30  109.99  103.87  99.84  89.72  85.56  95.69  73.79  69.57  



 F-2, low 

hazard  
114.30  108.99  103.87  98.84  89.72  84.56  94.69  73.79  68.57  

H, High Hazard  

 H-1, 

explosives  
107.85  102.54  97.43  92.40  83.50  78.33  88.25  67.57  N.P.  

 H-2/3/4 high 

hazard  
107.85  102.54  97.43  92.40  83.50  78.33  88.25  67.57  62.34  

 H-5 HPM  195.88  188.76  182.90  173.98  159.08  153.13  167.31  139.76  133.67  

I, Institutional  

 I-1, 

supervised 

environment  

194.98  188.36  182.90  175.20  161.40   157.01   175.29  144.58  140.08  

 I-2, hospitals  327.69  320.57  314.72  305.80  289.87  N.P.  299.12  270.56  N.P.  

 I-2, nursing 

homes  
227.45  220.30  214.47  205.56  191.65  N.P.  198.88  172.34  N.P.  

 I-3, 

restrained  
222.66  215.54  209.69  200.77  187.11  180.16  194.09  167.80  159.71  

 I-4, day care 

facilities  
194.98  188.36  182.90  175.20  161.40  157.01  175.29  144.58  140.08  

M, 

Mercantile  
141.54  136.19  130.80  124.45  114.24  110.73  118.45  98.74  94.83  

R, Residential  

 R-1, hotels  196.81  190.20  184.74  177.03  162.97  158.58  177.13  146.15  141.65  

 R-2, multiple 

family  
165.05  158.44  152.98  145.27  132.00  127.61  145.37  115.18  110.68  

 R-3, one- and 

two-family  
154.04  149.85  145.98  142.32  137.11  133.50  139.93  128.29  120.75  

 open 

carports, decks 

and porches  

       30.45  28.70  

 garages-see 

Utility, 

miscellaneous  

         

 R-4, 

care/assisted 

living facilities  

194.98  188.36  182.90  175.20  161.40   157.01  175.29  144.58  140.08  

S, Storage  



 S-1, 

moderate 

hazard  

106.85  101.54  95.43  91.40  81.50  77.33  87.25  65.57  61.34  

 S-2, low 

hazard  
105.85  100.54  95.43  90.40  81.50  76.33   86.25  65.57  60.34  

U, Utility, 

miscellaneous  
83.66  79.00  74.06  70.37  63.47  59.32  67.24  50.19  47.80  

  *   For shell-only buildings deduct 20%  

N.P. = not permitted  

Unfinished basements (all use groups) = $20.35; semi-finished basements = $26.65  

Value of roofing per square foot calculated at $.90 for asphalt or $1.70 for Propanel. 

**   From 2006  2018 International Building Code with city amendments  

Table 15.04.050(2) 

Building Permit Fees  

Value  Permit Fee  Plan Check  Total  

$ 500.00  $ 23.50  $ 15.28  $ 38.78  

600.00  26.55  17.26  43.81  

700.00  29.60  19.24  48.84  

800.00  32.65  21.22  53.87  

900.00  35.70  23.20  58.90  

1,000.00  38.75  25.19  63.94  

1,100.00  41.80  27.17  68.97  

1,200.00  44.85  29.15  74.00  

1,300.00  47.90  31.14  79.04  

1,400.00  50.95  33.12  84.07  

1,500.00  54.00  35.10  89.10  

1,600.00  57.05  37.08  94.13  

1,700.00  60.10  39.07  99.17  

1,800.00  63.15  41.05  104.20  

1,900.00  66.20  43.03  109.23  

2,000.00  69.25  45.18  114.43  

3,000.00  83.25  54.11  137.36  

4,000.00  97.25  63.21  160.46  



5,000.00  111.25  72.31  183.56  

6,000.00  125.25  81.41  206.66  

7,000.00  139.25  90.51  229.76  

8,000.00  153.25  99.61  252.86  

9,000.00  167.25  108.71  275.96  

10,000.00  181.25  117.81  299.06  

11,000.00  195.25  126.91  322.16  

12,000.00  209.25  136.01  345.26  

13,000.00  223.25  145.11  368.36  

14,000.00  237.25  154.21  391.46  

15,000.00  251.25  163.31  414.56  

16,000.00  265.25  172.41  437.66  

17,000.00  279.25  181.51  460.76  

18,000.00  293.25  190.61  483.86  

19,000.00  307.25  199.71  506.96  

20,000.00  321.25  208.81  530.06  

21,000.00  335.25  217.91  553.16  

22,000.00  349.25  227.01  576.26  

23,000.00  363.25  236.11  599.36  

24,000.00  377.25  245.21  622.46  

25,000.00  391.25  254.31  645.56  

26,000.00  401.85  261.20  663.05  

27,000.00  411.95  267.77  679.72  

28,000.00  422.05  274.33  696.38  

29,000.00  432.15  280.90  713.05  

30,000.00  442.25  287.63  729.88  

31,000.00  452.35  294.03  746.38  

32,000.00  462.45  300.59  763.04  

33,000.00  472.55  307.16  779.71  

34,000.00  482.65  313.72  796.37  

35,000.00  492.75  320.29  813.04  

36,000.00  502.85  326.85  829.70  



37,000.00  512.95  333.42  846.37  

38,000.00  523.05  340.28  863.33  

39,000.00  533.15  346.55  879.70  

40,000.00  543.25  353.11  896.36  

41,000.00  553.35  359.68  913.03  

42,000.00  563.45  366.24  929.69  

43,000.00  573.55  372.81  946.36  

44,000.00  583.65  379.50  963.15  

45,000.00  593.75  385.94  979.69  

46,000.00  603.85  392.50  996.35  

47,000.00  613.95  399.08  1,013.03  

48,000.00  624.05  405.63  1,029.68  

49,000.00  634.15  412.20  1,046.35  

50,000.00  644.25  418.76  1,063.01  

51,000.00  650.75  422.99  1,073.74  

52,000.00  657.75  427.54  1,085.29  

53,000.00  664.75  432.09  1,096.84  

54,000.00  671.75  436.64  1,108.39  

55,000.00  678.75  441.19  1,119.94  

56,000.00  685.75  445.74  1,131.49  

57,000.00  692.75  450.29  1,143.04  

58,000.00  699.75  454.84  1,154.59  

59,000.00  706.75  459.39  1,166.14  

60,000.00  713.75  463.94  1,177.69  

61,000.00  720.75  468.49  1,189.24  

62,000.00  727.75  473.04  1,200.79  

63,000.00  734.75  477.59  1,212.34  

64,000.00  741.75  482.14  1,223.89  

65,000.00  748.75  486.69  1,235.44  

66,000.00  755.75  491.24  1,246.99  

67,000.00  762.75  495.79  1,258.54  

68,000.00  769.75  500.34  1,270.09  



69,000.00  776.75  504.89  1,281.64  

70,000.00  783.75  509.44  1,293.19  

71,000.00  790.75  513.99  1,304.74  

72,000.00  797.75  518.54  1,316.29  

73,000.00  804.75  523.09  1,327.84  

74,000.00  811.75  527.64  1,339.39  

75,000.00  818.75  532.19  1,350.94  

76,000.00  825.75  536.74  1,362.49  

77,000.00  832.75  541.29  1,374.04  

78,000.00  839.75  545.84  1,385.59  

79,000.00  846.75  550.39  1,397.14  

80,000.00  853.75  554.94  1,408.69  

81,000.00  860.75  559.49  1,420.24  

82,000.00  867.75  564.04  1,431.79  

83,000.00  874.75  568.59  1,443.34  

84,000.00  881.75  573.14  1,454.89  

85,000.00  888.75  577.69  1,466.44  

86,000.00  895.75  582.24  1,477.99  

87,000.00  902.75  586.79  1,489.54  

88,000.00  909.75  591.34  1,501.09  

89,000.00  916.75  595.89  1,512.64  

90,000.00  923.75  600.44  1,524.19  

91,000.00  930.75  604.99  1,535.74  

92,000.00  937.75  609.54  1,547.29  

93,000.00  944.75  614.09  1,558.84  

94,000.00  951.75  618.64  1,570.39  

95,000.00  958.75  623.19  1,581.94  

96,000.00  965.75  627.74  1,593.49  

97,000.00  972.75  632.29  1,605.04  

98,000.00  979.75  636.84  1,616.59  

99,000.00  986.75  641.39  1,628.14  

100,000.00  993.75  645.94  1,639.69  



Over  

100,000.00  

993.75 plus  

$5.60/$1,000  

65% of  

permit fee  

As  

calculated  

Over  

500,000.00  

3,233.75 plus  

$4.75/ $1,000  

over $500 k  

  

Over  

1,000,000.00  

5,608.75 plus  

$3.15/ $1,000  

over $1  

million  

  

Manufactured housing permit fee  

Single-wide  

units  
145.00    

Double-wide  

units  
220.00    

  

15.04.065 - Deletions.  

Section 113 (Board of Appeals) of the International Building Code and Section R112 of the 

International Residential Code are deleted and are not adopted as part of the code.  

15.04.070 - Violation; penalty.  

Any person or persons violating any of the provisions of this chapter or of the International 

Building Code, adopted as set forth in this chapter, shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, 

upon conviction, shall be fined in the sum not to exceed one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) or by 

imprisonment for not more than one hundred eighty (180) days, or by both such fine and 

imprisonment. Each day that such a violation is permitted to exist shall constitute a separate 

offense.  

15.04.085 - Safety.  

The city council finds, declares and determines that this chapter is necessary for the 

preservation of the public peace, health and safety.  

Section 2.  EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Ordinance shall take effect ten (10) days after passage and 

upon publication of such ordinance after passage.   

Section 3.  PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY:  The City Council deems it appropriate to publish 

the title of this Ordinance, together with a summary of the Ordinance and with the statement that 

the text is available for public inspection and acquisition in the office of the City Clerk.   

 

Section 4.  PUBLIC PURPOSE:  The City Council of the City of Craig herewith finds and 

determines that this Ordinance is necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and 

safety.  This Ordinance is enacted pursuant to the City’s authority to act under its police power to 

protect and preserve the general welfare of the City and its citizens. 



 READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED ON FIRST READING THIS 

____________ DAY OF ______________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

                             ______________________________ 

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 

 

 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED AFTER HEARING ON SECOND READING 

THIS ______ DAY OF _____________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

 

 

       ________________________________  

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 

 

 

 



ORDINANCE 1088 (2019) 

 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING A NEW CHAPTER 15.06 OF THE CRAIG MUNICIPAL 

CODE CONCERNING THE INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL CODE 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Craig has adopted rules and regulation concerning building code 

requirements for all real property located within city limits, which rules and regulations set 

minimum standards for the design and construction of buildings to ensure the safety and health 

for people in or about those buildings; and 

 

WHEREAS, building codes are occasionally updated at a national level resulting in the adoption 

of updated versions of building and other related codes; and 

 

WHEREAS, by this ordinance together with other related ordinances being considered at this 

time, the City Council updates the building rules and regulations to remain current within this 

area. 

WHEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CRAIG, 
COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.   Chapter 15.06 of the Craig Municipal Code entitled “International Residential  
Code” shall be adopted to read in its entirety as follows (note: this is a redline version of the 
changes to the Craig Municipal Code, with language to be eliminated designated with 
strikethrough notation and new language shown in red): 

 

 

Chapter 15.06  

 

International Residential Code 
 

15.06.010 - Document adopted; copies on file.  

Pursuant to Title 31, Article 16, Sections 201 through 208, C.R.S., there is adopted as the 

building code for one and two family dwellings of the city, by reference thereto, the International 

Residential Code, 2018 edition, published by the International Code Council, Inc., 4051 West 

Flossmoor Road, Country Club Hills, IL 60478-5795, of which two (2) copies are now filed in the 

office of the city clerk, and which may be inspected during regular business hours, the same being 

adopted as if set out at length. There is further adopted all appendices of such codes and 

regulations.  

15.06.020 - Additions, modifications and deletions.  

The adopted code is subject to the additions, modifications or deletions set forth in Sections 

15.06.030 through 15.06.065.  

15.06.030 - Modifications; Title 

        IRC Section 101.1 (Title) is modified by the addition of the term “City of Craig” where 

indicated.  

 

15.06.040 - Additions or modifications; demolition of buildings.  



A.  A permit will be required for the demolition of a structure. In demolishing any structure or 

part thereof, one (1) story at a time shall be completely removed. No material shall be placed 

upon the floor of any building in the course of demolition. Substantial protection for the 

public, to be approved by the building inspector, shall be provided when demolishing any 

building within ten (10) feet of a public thoroughfare. No material which has been removed 

from a building in the course of demolition shall be stored on any street, alley or other public 

way. When any building has been demolished, the person, firm or corporation who has 

performed the work shall immediately clear the adjacent streets, alleys and other public ways 

of all rubbish, refuse and loose material resulting from such demolition.  

B.  The wrecking contractor shall fill all excavations level with the adjoining grade or enclose 

the excavation with a substantial, tight board fence not less than five (5) feet high extending 

around the excavation on all sides.  

C.     The fee for a demolition permit in all zoning districts shall be one hundred dollars ($100.00).  

 

15.06.043 - Additions or modifications; snow loads.  

A.  Snow Loads.  

1.  Snow loads, full or unbalanced, shall be considered in place of loads set forth in the  

International Residential Code Figure R-301.2(6), where such loading will result in larger 

members or connections.  

2.  Potential accumulations of snow at valleys, parapets, roof structures and offsets in roofs 

of uneven configuration shall be considered. Snow loads for the city shall be forty (40) 

pounds.  

3.  Any remodeling of existing buildings that may affect the roof load shall be certified or 

have recommendation for snow load by an architect or engineer registered by the state.  

B.  Standardization Tables. The standardization tables shall be in the building code standards.  

 

15.04.045 - Section 105.2.  

Chapters 1 of the International Building Code and International Residential Code are amended 

by the repeal and reenactment of Sections 105.2 and R105.2 to read as follows:  

"Section 105.2 Work Exempt from Permit. A building permit shall not be required for 

the following:  

"1. Unattached accessory structures, two hundred (200) square feet or less, used for 

tools, storage or playhouses and similar uses. This includes both site-built and pre-

fabricated structures which are delivered as one unit.  

"2. Walks, sidewalk repairs and driveways not more than thirty (30) inches above 

grade, and not over any basement or story below.  

"3. Painting and wallpapering, tiling, carpeting, cabinets, counter tops and similar 

finish work.  

"4. Paneling when no structural alterations are being done to alter the occupancy or 

construction of the building. This applies to single-family dwellings only.  



"5. Window awnings on residential buildings only.  

"6. Temporary motion picture, television and theater stage sets and scenery.  

"7. Prefabricated swimming pools accessory to a Group R-3 occupancy that are less 

than twenty-four (24) inches (610 mm) deep, do not exceed five thousand (5,000) gallons 

(18,925 L) and are installed entirely above ground.  

"8. Shade cloth structures constructed for nursery or agricultural purposes, not 

including service systems.  

"9. Residential and commercial overhead garage door installations when no 

structural alterations are required to openings.  

"10. Installation of replacement windows when no structural alterations are required 

to openings.  

"11. Swings and other playground equipment accessory to detached one- and two-

family dwellings.  

"12. Movable cases, counters and partitions not over five (5) feet nine (9) inches 

high."  

                     “13. Decks not exceeding two (200) hundred square feet in area, that are more than  

              thirty (30) inches above grade at any point, and are not attached to the dwelling. 

                               

15.06.049   Exceptions: 

                1. Property owners who are the bona fide owner of a one or two-family dwelling which 

they use as a rental property and is not their primary residence, may acquire building permits for 

the following: 

                     

                      1.1. Including, but not limited to roofing, siding, decks, covered porches/patios, 

interior framing, drywall and accessory buildings without living quarters, provided that the 

owner shall personally acquire the permit, purchase all material and shall personally perform all 

labor in connection therewith. 

           

2. Property owners shall not acquire the following permits for a property that is not their 

primary residence. 

               

                2.1. Plumbing, Mechanical, and Electrical permits. 

                2.1. Building permits for a new residence/dwelling, or one which would add living 

space to an existing structure. 

        

Note: This exception applies to one and two-family dwellings only, all commercial 

properties require a properly licensed contractor to acquire the permit and perform the work. 

          

15.06.050 - Additions; permit fees.  

A.  A permit shall not be valid until all fees have been paid, nor shall an amendment to a permit 

be released until the additional fee, if any, has been paid.  



B.  Any person who commences any work on a building, structure or associated systems before 

obtaining the necessary permits shall be subject to a doubling of the normally imposed permit 

fee for such work.  

C.  See section 15.04.049 of this code for valuation information and permit fee schedule. 

 (Ord. 967 §1, 2007) 

15.06.065 - Deletions.  

   1. IRC Section R112 (Board of Appeals) is deleted and is not adopted as part of the code.  

    2. IRC Section R302.13 (Fire protection of floors) is deleted and not adopted as part of the 

code. 

    3. IRC Section R313 (Automatic Fire Sprinkler Systems) is deleted and not adopted as part of 

this code.  

    4. IRC Section N1102.4.1.2 (R402.4.1.2) (Testing) is deleted and not adopted as part of this 

code. 

    5. IRC Section N1102.4.4 (R402.4.4) (Rooms containing fuel burning appliances) is deleted 

and not adopted as part of this code. 

        

15.06.066 - Modifications 

 

 1. IRC Table R-301.2(1). Table R-301.2(1) is filled to provide the following: 

      

     Roof snow load (non-reducible):   40 LB             .          

     Wind speed:                                       90 mph        . 

     Seismic design category:                  B                   . 

     Weathering:                                        Severe         . 

     Frost line depth:                                 48 inches     .  

     Termite:                                               None             . 

     Winter design temp:                          1 degree      . 

     Ice barrier underlayment required: Yes               . 

     Flood hazards:                                      FIRM 1984 . 

     Air freezing index:                               2307            . 

     Mean annual temperature:               41.8             . 

         

 

 2. IRC Section R312.1.1 (Where required) is modified as follows: 

         Guards shall be provided for those portions of open-sided walking surfaces, including 

stairs, ramps, 

         and landings, that are located more than 30 inches measured vertically to the floor or grade 

below 

         at any point within 36 inches horizontally to the edge of the open side, insect screening 

shall not be 



         considered as a guard. 

    

  3. IRC Section G2417.4.1 (Test pressure) is modified by changing 3 psig to 10 psig. 

 

15.06.070 - Violation; penalty.  

Any person or persons violating any of the provisions of this chapter or of the International 

Residential Code, adopted as set forth in this chapter, shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor 

and, upon conviction, shall be fined in the sum not to exceed one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) or 

by imprisonment for not more than one hundred eighty (180) days, or by both such fine and 

imprisonment. Each day that such a violation is permitted to exist shall constitute a separate 

offense.  

Section 2.  EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Ordinance shall take effect ten (10) days after passage and 

upon publication of such ordinance after passage.   

Section 3.  PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY:  The City Council deems it appropriate to publish 

the title of this Ordinance, together with a summary of the Ordinance and with the statement that 

the text is available for public inspection and acquisition in the office of the City Clerk.   

 

Section 4.  PUBLIC PURPOSE:  The City Council of the City of Craig herewith finds and 

determines that this Ordinance is necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and 

safety.  This Ordinance is enacted pursuant to the City’s authority to act under its police power to 

protect and preserve the general welfare of the City and its citizens. 

 

 READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED ON FIRST READING THIS 

____________ DAY OF ______________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

                               ______________________________ 

        Jarrod Ogden, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 

 

  

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED AFTER HEARING ON SECOND READING 

THIS ______ DAY OF _____________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

 

 

       ________________________________  

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 
 



ORDINANCE 1089 (2019) 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING A NEW CHAPTER 15.07 OF THE CRAIG MUNICIPAL 

CODE CONCERNING THE INTERNATIONAL EXISTING BUILDING CODE 

WHEREAS, the City of Craig has adopted rules and regulation concerning building code 

requirements for all real property located within city limits, which rules and regulations set 

minimum standards for the design and construction of buildings to ensure the safety and health 

for people in or about those buildings; and 

WHEREAS, building codes are occasionally updated at a national level resulting in the adoption 

of updated versions of building and other related codes; and 

WHEREAS, by this ordinance together with other related ordinances being considered at this 

time, the City Council updates the building rules and regulations to remain current within this 

area. 

WHEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CRAIG, 
COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.   Chapter 15.07 of the Craig Municipal Code entitled “International Existing 
Building Code” shall be adopted to read in its entirety as follows (note: this is a redline 
version of the changes to the Craig Municipal Code, with language to be eliminated 
designated with strikethrough notation and new language shown in red): 
 

Chapter 15.07  

International Existing Building Code 

15.07.010 - Document adopted; copies on file.  

There is adopted as the existing building code of the city, by reference thereto, the 

International Existing Building Code, 2018 edition, published by the International Code Council, 

Inc., 4051 West Flossmoor Road, Country Club Hills, IL 60478-5795, of which two (2) copies are 

now filed in the office of the city clerk, and which may be inspected during regular business hours, 

the same being adopted as if set out at length. There is further adopted all appendices of such codes 

and regulations.  

 

15.07.020 - Additions, modifications and deletions.  

The adopted code is subject to the additions, modifications or deletions set forth in Sections 

15.07.030 through 15.07.065.  

 

15.07.030 - Modifications; Title 



         IEBC Section 101.1 (Title) is modified by the addition of the term “City of Craig” where 

indicated. 

             

15.04.040 - Additions or modifications; moving of buildings.  

For a permit to move a building through or across any public street, alley or highway, a fifty-

dollar fee shall be required. Before issuance of a moving permit, the following requirements shall 

be met:  

A.  No dwelling shall be moved until it meets the minimum area and sanitary requirements set 

forth in the zoning ordinance codified in Title 16 of this code. It shall be the duty of the 

building official to establish the fact that minimum area and sanitary requirements have been 

met.  

B.  No building, dwelling or structure shall be moved until it complies structurally with the 

requirements set forth in this code for new buildings. It shall be the duty of the building official 

to establish the fact that structural requirements have been met.  

C.  No dwelling shall be moved until the owner agrees in writing that all zoning requirements 

will be complied with fully, pertaining to use, area and height of that district into which 

movement is requested. It shall be the duty of the zoning administrator to secure this statement.  

D.  No dwelling shall be moved until three (3) days after the building inspector has been 

presented with a written report establishing the fact that the appraised value of the dwelling 

to be moved equals or exceeds the average appraised value of all dwellings on each side of 

the street within the city block in which the owner wishes to move the dwelling. All appraisals 

shall be made by members of the National Real Estate Brokerage Association and in strict 

accordance with the standards established by this organization. The cost of such appraisal 

shall be borne by the owner requesting a moving permit. It shall be the duty of the building 

inspector to assure himself or herself that an authentic, written appraisal has been received 

before any permit shall be issued.  

E.  No building, dwelling or structure shall be moved until the owner thereof supplies the city 

clerk with the gross overall width of the vehicle performing the movement, the route to be 

followed and the time of movement.  

F.  No permit shall be issued until after all public utilities have been notified and a police escort 

has been provided.  

G.  No permit shall be issued until Subsections A through F of this section have been fully 

complied with and/or until payment for such permit has been received.  

H.  None of the requirements of this section shall apply to the moving of tool houses owned and 

moved by licensed contractors to construction sites within the corporate limits for use as tool 

shed only.  

I.  After such structure shall have been moved, the same shall be subject to all applicable 

inspections as set forth in Section 109 and/or Section R109 of the International Building Code 

and/or International Residential Code, current editions, and the same shall not be occupied 

until such inspections have been made and the applicable certificates of occupancy or 

compliance are issued.  



 

15.04.050 - Additions or modifications; demolition of buildings.  

A.  A permit will be required for the demolition of a structure. In demolishing any structure or 

part thereof, one (1) story at a time shall be completely removed. No material shall be placed 

upon the floor of any building in the course of demolition. Substantial protection for the 

public, to be approved by the building inspector, shall be provided when demolishing any 

building within ten (10) feet of a public thoroughfare. No material which has been removed 

from a building in the course of demolition shall be stored on any street, alley or other public 

way. When any building has been demolished, the person, firm or corporation who has 

performed the work shall immediately clear the adjacent streets, alleys and other public ways 

of all rubbish, refuse and loose material resulting from such demolition.  

B.  The wrecking contractor shall fill all excavations level with the adjoining grade or enclose 

the excavation with a substantial, tight board fence not less than five (5) feet high extending 

around the excavation on all sides.  

C.  The fee for a demolition permit in all zoning districts shall be one hundred dollars ($100.00).  

 

15.04.060 - Additions or modifications; snow loads.  

A.  Snow Loads.  

1.  Snow loads, full or unbalanced, shall be considered in place of loads set forth in the 

International Building Code Table 1607.1 and International Residential Code Figure 

R305.2(1), where such loading will result in larger members or connections.  

2.  Potential accumulations of snow at valleys, parapets, roof structures and offsets in roofs 

of uneven configuration shall be considered. Snow loads for the city shall be forty (40) 

pounds.  

3.  Any remodeling of existing buildings that may affect the roof load shall be certified or 

have recommendation for snow load by an architect or engineer registered by the state.  

B.  Standardization Tables. The standardization tables shall be in the building code standards.  

    

15.04.070 - Additions; permit issuance.  

A.  No permit shall be issued to any person to do or to cause to be done any work regulated by 

this chapter, except to a person holding a valid, unexpired and unrevoked contractor's license 

as required by the city or as otherwise provided in this section.  

B.  Any permit required by this chapter may be issued to any person to do any work regulated 

by this chapter in a single-family dwelling used exclusively for living purposes, including the 

usual accessory buildings and quarters in connection with such buildings, if that person is the 

bona fide owner of any such dwelling and accessory buildings and quarters and such premises 

are occupied by or designed to be occupied by such owner, provided that the owner shall 



personally purchase all material and shall personally perform all labor in connection 

therewith.  

Exceptions: 

               1. Property owners who are the bona fide owner of a single- family residence which 

they use as a rental property and is not their primary residence may acquire building permits for 

the following provided that they personally purchase all material and personally perform all 

labor in connection therewith. 

                   

                    1.1. Building permits including, but not limited to roofing, siding, decks, covered 

porches, accessory buildings without living quarters, interior framing, and drywall. 

                

2. Property owners shall not acquire the following permits for a property used as a rental: 

         

          2.2. Plumbing, Mechanical, and Electrical permits.   

          2.3. Building permits for a new residence/dwelling, or one which would add living 

space to an existing structure. 

           Note: This exception applies to single family dwellings only, all commercial properties 

require a properly licensed contractor to acquire the permit and perform the work. 

 

15.04.080 - Additions; permit fees.  

A.  A permit shall not be valid until the fees prescribed below have been paid, nor shall an 

amendment to a permit be released until the additional fee, if any, has been paid.  

B.  Any person who commences any work on a building, structure or associated systems before 

obtaining the necessary permits shall be subject to a doubling of the normally imposed permit 

fee for such work.  

C.  Regular building permit fees shall be based upon project valuation exclusive of the cost of 

real property. Determination of the value of a project shall be based upon credible 

documentation of actual costs, provided by the permit applicant.  

  

Value of roofing per square foot calculated at $1.70  

 

Table 15.04.080 

Building Permit Fees  

Value  Permit Fee  Plan Check  Total  

$ 500.00  $ 23.50  $ 15.28  $ 38.78  

600.00  26.55  17.26  43.81  



700.00  29.60  19.24  48.84  

800.00  32.65  21.22  53.87  

900.00  35.70  23.20  58.90  

1,000.00  38.75  25.19  63.94  

1,100.00  41.80  27.17  68.97  

1,200.00  44.85  29.15  74.00  

1,300.00  47.90  31.14  79.04  

1,400.00  50.95  33.12  84.07  

1,500.00  54.00  35.10  89.10  

1,600.00  57.05  37.08  94.13  

1,700.00  60.10  39.07  99.17  

1,800.00  63.15  41.05  104.20  

1,900.00  66.20  43.03  109.23  

2,000.00  69.25  45.18  114.43  

3,000.00  83.25  54.11  137.36  

4,000.00  97.25  63.21  160.46  

5,000.00  111.25  72.31  183.56  

6,000.00  125.25  81.41  206.66  

7,000.00  139.25  90.51  229.76  

8,000.00  153.25  99.61  252.86  



9,000.00  167.25  108.71  275.96  

10,000.00  181.25  117.81  299.06  

11,000.00  195.25  126.91  322.16  

12,000.00  209.25  136.01  345.26  

13,000.00  223.25  145.11  368.36  

14,000.00  237.25  154.21  391.46  

15,000.00  251.25  163.31  414.56  

16,000.00  265.25  172.41  437.66  

17,000.00  279.25  181.51  460.76  

18,000.00  293.25  190.61  483.86  

19,000.00  307.25  199.71  506.96  

20,000.00  321.25  208.81  530.06  

21,000.00  335.25  217.91  553.16  

22,000.00  349.25  227.01  576.26  

23,000.00  363.25  236.11  599.36  

24,000.00  377.25  245.21  622.46  

25,000.00  391.25  254.31  645.56  

26,000.00  401.85  261.20  663.05  

27,000.00  411.95  267.77  679.72  

28,000.00  422.05  274.33  696.38  



29,000.00  432.15  280.90  713.05  

30,000.00  442.25  287.63  729.88  

31,000.00  452.35  294.03  746.38  

32,000.00  462.45  300.59  763.04  

33,000.00  472.55  307.16  779.71  

34,000.00  482.65  313.72  796.37  

35,000.00  492.75  320.29  813.04  

36,000.00  502.85  326.85  829.70  

37,000.00  512.95  333.42  846.37  

38,000.00  523.05  340.28  863.33  

39,000.00  533.15  346.55  879.70  

40,000.00  543.25  353.11  896.36  

41,000.00  553.35  359.68  913.03  

42,000.00  563.45  366.24  929.69  

43,000.00  573.55  372.81  946.36  

44,000.00  583.65  379.50  963.15  

45,000.00  593.75  385.94  979.69  

46,000.00  603.85  392.50  996.35  

47,000.00  613.95  399.08  1,013.03  

48,000.00  624.05  405.63  1,029.68  



49,000.00  634.15  412.20  1,046.35  

50,000.00  644.25  418.76  1,063.01  

51,000.00  650.75  422.99  1,073.74  

52,000.00  657.75  427.54  1,085.29  

53,000.00  664.75  432.09  1,096.84  

54,000.00  671.75  436.64  1,108.39  

55,000.00  678.75  441.19  1,119.94  

56,000.00  685.75  445.74  1,131.49  

57,000.00  692.75  450.29  1,143.04  

58,000.00  699.75  454.84  1,154.59  

59,000.00  706.75  459.39  1,166.14  

60,000.00  713.75  463.94  1,177.69  

61,000.00  720.75  468.49  1,189.24  

62,000.00  727.75  473.04  1,200.79  

63,000.00  734.75  477.59  1,212.34  

64,000.00  741.75  482.14  1,223.89  

65,000.00  748.75  486.69  1,235.44  

66,000.00  755.75  491.24  1,246.99  

67,000.00  762.75  495.79  1,258.54  

68,000.00  769.75  500.34  1,270.09  



69,000.00  776.75  504.89  1,281.64  

70,000.00  783.75  509.44  1,293.19  

71,000.00  790.75  513.99  1,304.74  

72,000.00  797.75  518.54  1,316.29  

73,000.00  804.75  523.09  1,327.84  

74,000.00  811.75  527.64  1,339.39  

75,000.00  818.75  532.19  1,350.94  

76,000.00  825.75  536.74  1,362.49  

77,000.00  832.75  541.29  1,374.04  

78,000.00  839.75  545.84  1,385.59  

79,000.00  846.75  550.39  1,397.14  

80,000.00  853.75  554.94  1,408.69  

81,000.00  860.75  559.49  1,420.24  

82,000.00  867.75  564.04  1,431.79  

83,000.00  874.75  568.59  1,443.34  

84,000.00  881.75  573.14  1,454.89  

85,000.00  888.75  577.69  1,466.44  

86,000.00  895.75  582.24  1,477.99  

87,000.00  902.75  586.79  1,489.54  

88,000.00  909.75  591.34  1,501.09  



89,000.00  916.75  595.89  1,512.64  

90,000.00  923.75  600.44  1,524.19  

91,000.00  930.75  604.99  1,535.74  

92,000.00  937.75  609.54  1,547.29  

93,000.00  944.75  614.09  1,558.84  

94,000.00  951.75  618.64  1,570.39  

95,000.00  958.75  623.19  1,581.94  

96,000.00  965.75  627.74  1,593.49  

97,000.00  972.75  632.29  1,605.04  

98,000.00  979.75  636.84  1,616.59  

99,000.00  986.75  641.39  1,628.14  

100,000.00  993.75  645.94  1,639.69  

Over  

100,000.00  

993.75 plus  

$5.60/$1,000  

65% of  

permit fee  

As  

calculated  

Over  

500,000.00  

3,233.75 plus  

$4.75/ $1,000  

over $500 k  

  

Over  

1,000,000.00  

5,608.75 plus  

$3.15/ $1,000 

over $1 million 

  

  

     



     

  

15.04.090 - Deletions.  

Section 112 “Board of Appeals” of the International Existing Building Code is deleted and is 

not adopted as part of the code.  

 

15.04.100 - Violation; penalty.  

Any person or persons violating any of the provisions of this chapter or of the International 

Existing Building Code, adopted as set forth in this chapter, shall be deemed guilty of a 

misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined in the sum not to exceed one thousand dollars 

($1,000.00) or by imprisonment for not more than one hundred eighty (180) days, or by both such 

fine and imprisonment. Each day that such a violation is permitted to exist shall constitute a 

separate offense.  

 

Section 2.  EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Ordinance shall take effect ten (10) days after passage and 

upon publication of such ordinance after passage.   

Section 3.  PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY:  The City Council deems it appropriate to publish 

the title of this Ordinance, together with a summary of the Ordinance and with the statement that 

the text is available for public inspection and acquisition in the office of the City Clerk.   

Section 4.  PUBLIC PURPOSE:  The City Council of the City of Craig herewith finds and 

determines that this Ordinance is necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and 

safety.  This Ordinance is enacted pursuant to the City’s authority to act under its police power to 

protect and preserve the general welfare of the City and its citizens. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED ON FIRST READING THIS 

____________ DAY OF ______________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

                             ______________________________ 

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 

 

  

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED AFTER HEARING ON SECOND READING 

THIS ______ DAY OF _____________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

 

 

       ________________________________  

       Jared Ogden, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 

 

 

 



 

ORDINANCE 1090 (2019) 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 15.12 OF THE CRAIG MUNICIPAL CODE 

CONCERNING THE INTERNATIONAL MECHANICAL CODE 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Craig has adopted rules and regulation concerning building code 

requirements for all real property located within city limits, which rules and regulations set 

minimum standards for the design and construction of buildings to ensure the safety and health 

for people in or about those buildings; and 

 

WHEREAS, building codes are occasionally updated at a national level resulting in the adoption 

of updated versions of building and other related codes; and 

 

WHEREAS, by this ordinance together with other related ordinances being considered at this 

time, the City Council updates the building rules and regulations to remain current within this 

area. 

WHEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CRAIG, 
COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.   Chapter 15.12 of the Craig Municipal Code entitled “International Mechanical 
Code” shall be amended to read in its entirety as follows (note: this is a redline version of the 
changes to the Craig Municipal Code, with language to be eliminated designated with 
strikethrough notation and new language shown in red): 

 

Chapter 15.12  

 

International Mechanical Code 

15.12.010 - Adoption.  

Pursuant to Title 31, Chapter 16, Sections 201 through 208, C.R.S., there is adopted as the 

mechanical code of the city, by reference thereto, the International Mechanical Code, 2006 2018 

edition, published by the International Code Council, Inc., 4051 West Flossmoor Road, Country 

Club Hills, IL 60478-5795, of which three two (2) copies are now filed in the office of the city 

clerk and may be inspected during regular business hours, the same being adopted as if set out at 

length. There is further adopted all applicable appendices of such codes and regulations.  

 

15.12.015 – Additions; Modifications 

The adopted International Mechanical Code is subject to the following additions:  

A.  No permit shall be issued to any person to do or to cause to be done any mechanical work 

regulated by this chapter, except to a person holding a valid, unexpired and unrevoked 

mechanical license as required by the city or as otherwise provided in this section.  

B.  Any permit required by this chapter may be issued to any person to do any mechanical work 

regulated by this chapter in a single-family dwelling used exclusively for living purposes, 

including the usual accessory buildings and quarters in connection with such buildings, if that 

person is the bona fide owner of any such dwelling and accessory buildings and quarters and 



such premises are occupied by or designed to be occupied by such owner, provided that the 

owner shall personally purchase all material and shall personally perform all labor in 

connection therewith.  

C.    IMC Section 101.1 (Title) is modified by the addition of the term “City of Craig” 

where indicated. 

15.12.020 - Additions; permit fees.  

A.  A permit shall not be valid until the fees prescribed below have been paid, nor shall an 

amendment to a permit be released until the additional fee, if any, has been paid.  

B.  Any person who commences any work on any mechanical systems before obtaining the 

necessary permits shall be subject to a doubling of the normally imposed permit fee for such 

work. NOTE: "Emergency repairs" are not subject to these penalties; however, a permit for 

such work must be obtained in a timely manner, and required inspections must still be passed. 

When in question, the determination of "emergency" status will be decided by the authority 

having jurisdiction. Any person who refuses to stop work and obtain required permits, when 

so directed by the authority having jurisdiction, will be subject to more serious civil and/or 

criminal penalties as set forth in Section 15.12.025 below.  

C.  The fees for mechanical work shall be as indicated in the Table 15.12.020 below.  

 

Table 15.12.020  

Schedule of Mechanical Permit Fees  

Issuance  

1.  For the issuance of each mechanical permit  $ 25.00  

2.  
For issuing each supplemental permit for which the original permit has not 

expired, been canceled or finaled  
10.00  

Unit fee schedule (in addition to items 1 & 2 above):  

Furnaces  

1.  

For the installation or relocation of each forced-air or gravity-type furnace or 

burner, including ducts and vents attached to such appliance, up to and including 

100,000 BTU  

17.00  

2.  
For the installation or relocation of each forced-air or gravity-type furnace or 

burner, including ducts and vents attached to such appliance, over 100,000 BTU  
21.00  

3.  For the installation or relocation of each floor furnace, including vent  17.00  

4.  
For the installation or relocation of each suspended heater, recessed wall heater 

or floor-mounted unit heater  
17.00  

Appliance Vents  

1.  
For the installation, relocation or replacement of each appliance vent installed 

and not included in an appliance permit  
8.50  

Repairs or Additions  



1.  

For the repair of, alteration of or addition to each heating appliance, refrigeration 

unit, cooling unit, absorption unit or each heating, cooling, absorption or 

evaporative cooling system, including installation of controls regulated by the 

International Mechanical Code  

16.00  

Boilers, Compressors and Absorption Systems  

1.  

For the installation or relocation of each boiler or compressor up to and 

including 3 horsepower (10.6 kW). or each absorption system up to and 

including 100,000 BTU  

17.00  

2.   over 3 to 15 horsepower or over 100,000 BTU, including 500,000 BTU  31.00  

3.   over 15 to 30 horsepower or over 500,000 BTU, including 1,000,000 BTU  43.00  

4.   over 30 to 50 horsepower or over 1,000,000 BTU, including 1,750,000 BTU  64.00  

5.   over 50 horsepower or over 1,750,000 BTU  106.00  

Air Handlers  

1.  
For each air-handling unit up to and including 10,000 cfm (4,719 L/s) including 

ducts attached thereto.*  
12.00  

2.  For each air-handling unit over 10,000 cfm  21.00  

Evaporative Coolers  

1.  For each evaporative cooler other than portable type (swamp cooler)  12.00  

Ventilation and Exhaust  

1.  For each ventilation fan connected to a single duct  $ 8.00  

2.  For each ventilation system which is not a portion of any heating or AC system  12.00  

3.  
For the installation of each hood which is served by mechanical exhaust, 

including the ducts for such hood  
12.00  

Miscellaneous  

1.  

For each appliance or piece of equipment regulated by the International 

Mechanical Code but not classified in other appliance categories, or for which 

no other fee is listed in the table e.g. ducts  

12.00  

2.  Gas piping:   

  one to five outlets  20.00  

  each additional outlet  1.00  

3.  Inserts, stoves and fireplaces (classified under Furnaces #1)  17.00  

4.  Roof top unit:   

  if Duo Pac, charge for compressor and furnace according to BTUs   

  if Cooling, charge for compressor according to BTUs   

  if Heating, charge for furnace according to BTUs   



5.  In-Floor (radiant) heating system:   

  Charge for boiler according to BTUs   

 *   Note: this fee does not apply to an air-handling unit which is a portion of a factory 

assembled appliance, cooling unit, evaporative cooler or absorption unit for which a permit is 

required elsewhere in the International Mechanical Code.  

 

15.12.025 - Penalties.  

The following penalties set forth in full shall apply to this chapter:  

A.  It is unlawful for a person to violate any of the provisions stated or adopted in this chapter.  

B.  Every person convicted of a violation of any provisions stated or adopted in this chapter shall 

be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined in the sum not to 

exceed one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) or by imprisonment for not more than one hundred 

eighty (180) days, or by both such fine and imprisonment. Each day that such a violation is 

permitted to exist shall constitute a separate offense.  

 

15.12.030 - Validity.  

If any part or parts of this chapter are for any reason held invalid, such decision shall not affect 

the validity of the remaining portions of this chapter. The city council declares that it would have 

passed the ordinance codified herein and each part or parts thereof, irrespective of the fact that any 

one (1) part or parts are declared invalid.  

 

15.12.035 - Interpretation.  

Article and section headings of this chapter and adopted International Mechanical Code shall 

not be deemed to govern, limit, modify or in any manner affect the scope, meaning or intent of the 

provisions of any article or section thereof.  

 

15.12.040 - Short title.  

This chapter may be known and cited as the "International Mechanical Code."  

 

15.12.050 - Safety.  

The city council finds, declares and determines that this chapter is necessary for the 

preservation of the public peace, health and safety.  

 

 

 



Section 2.  EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Ordinance shall take effect ten (10) days after passage and 

upon publication of such ordinance after passage.   

Section 3.  PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY:  The City Council deems it appropriate to publish 

the title of this Ordinance, together with a summary of the Ordinance and with the statement that 

the text is available for public inspection and acquisition in the office of the City Clerk.   

 

Section 4.  PUBLIC PURPOSE:  The City Council of the City of Craig herewith finds and 

determines that this Ordinance is necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and 

safety.  This Ordinance is enacted pursuant to the City’s authority to act under its police power to 

protect and preserve the general welfare of the City and its citizens. 

 

 READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED ON FIRST READING THIS 

____________ DAY OF ______________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

 

 

                             ______________________________ 

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 

 

 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED AFTER HEARING ON SECOND READING 

THIS ______ DAY OF _____________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

 

 

       ________________________________  

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor  

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 



ORDINANCE 1091 (2019) 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 15.14 OF THE CRAIG MUNICIPAL CODE 

CONCERNING THE INTERNATIONAL FUEL GAS CODE 

WHEREAS, the City of Craig has adopted rules and regulation concerning building code 

requirements for all real property located within city limits, which rules and regulations set 

minimum standards for the design and construction of buildings to ensure the safety and health 

for people in or about those buildings; and 

WHEREAS, building codes are occasionally updated at a national level resulting in the adoption 

of updated versions of building and other related codes; and 

WHEREAS, by this ordinance together with other related ordinances being considered at this 

time, the City Council updates the building rules and regulations to remain current within this 

area. 

WHEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CRAIG, 
COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.   Chapter 15.14 of the Craig Municipal Code entitled “International Fuel Gas 
Code” shall be amended to read in its entirety as follows (note: this is a redline version of the 
changes to the Craig Municipal Code, with language to be eliminated designated with 
strikethrough notation and new language shown in red): 

 

Chapter 15.14  

International Fuel Gas Code 

15.14.010 - Adoption.  

Pursuant to Title 31, Chapter 16, Sections 201 through 208, C.R.S., there is adopted as the 

fuel gas code of the city, by reference thereto, the International Fuel Gas Code, 2006 2018 edition, 

published by the International Code Council, Inc., 4051 West Flossmoor Road, Country Club 

Hills, IL 60478-5795, of which three two (2) copies are now filed in the office of the city clerk 

and may be inspected during regular business hours, the same being adopted as if set out at length. 

There is further adopted all applicable appendices of such codes and regulations.  

 

15.14.015 – Additions; modifications 

The adopted International Fuel Gas Code is subject to the following additions and 

modifications.  

A.  No permit shall be issued to any person to do or cause to be done any fuel gas piping 

installation or maintenance work regulated by this chapter, except to a person holding a valid, 



unexpired and unrevoked mechanical or plumbing license as required by the city or as 

otherwise provided in this section.  

B.  Any permit required by this chapter may be issued to any person to do any fuel gas piping 

work regulated by this chapter in a single-family dwelling used exclusively for living 

purposes, including the usual accessory buildings and quarters in connection with such 

buildings, if that person is the bona fide owner of any such dwelling and accessory buildings 

and quarters and such premises are occupied by or designed to be occupied by such owner, 

provided that the owner shall personally purchase all material and shall personally perform all 

labor in connection therewith.  

C.     IFGC Section 406.4.1 (Test pressure) is amended by changing 3 psig to 10 psig. 

D.    IFGC Section 101.1 (Title) is modified by the addition of the term “City of Craig” 

where indicated. 

 

15.14.020 – Additions; fee schedule.  

A.  A permit shall not be valid until the fees prescribed in Chapter 15.16 of this title have been 

paid, nor shall an amendment to a permit be released until the additional fee, if any, has been 

paid.  

B.  Any person who commences any work on any fuel gas piping system before obtaining the 

necessary permits shall be subject to a doubling of the normally imposed permit fee for such 

work. NOTE: "Emergency repairs" are not subject to these penalties; however, a permit for 

such work must be obtained in a timely manner, and required inspections must still be passed. 

When in question, the determination of "emergency" status will be decided by the authority 

having jurisdiction. Any person who refuses to stop work and obtain required permits, when 

so directed by the authority having jurisdiction, will be subject to more serious civil and/or 

criminal penalties as set forth in Section 15.14.025 below.  

C.  The fees for fuel gas piping work shall be as indicated in Section 15.16.065, Table 15.16.065, 

of this title.  

 

15.14.025 - Penalties.  

The following penalties set forth in full shall apply to this chapter:  

A.  It is unlawful for a person to violate any of the provisions stated or adopted in this chapter.  

B.  Every person convicted of a violation of any provisions stated or adopted in this chapter shall 

be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined in the sum not to 

exceed one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) or by imprisonment for not more than one hundred 

eighty (180) days, or by both such fine and imprisonment. Each day that such a violation is 

permitted to exist shall constitute a separate offense.  

 



15.14.030 - Validity.  

If any part or parts of this chapter are for any reason held invalid, such decision shall not affect 

the validity of the remaining portions of this chapter. The city council declares that it would have 

passed the ordinance codified herein and each part or parts thereof, irrespective of the fact that any 

one (1) part or parts are declared invalid.  

 

15.14.035 - Interpretation.  

Article and section headings of this chapter and the adopted International Fuel Gas Code shall 

not be deemed to govern, limit, modify or in any manner affect the scope, meaning or intent of the 

provisions of any article or section thereof.  

 

15.14.040 - Short title.  

This chapter may be known and cited as the "International Fuel Gas Code."  

 

15.14.045 - Safety.  

The city council finds, declares and determines that this chapter is necessary for the 

preservation of the public peace, health and safety.  

 

Section 2.  EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Ordinance shall take effect ten (10) days after passage and 

upon publication of such ordinance after passage.   

Section 3.  PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY:  The City Council deems it appropriate to publish 

the title of this Ordinance, together with a summary of the Ordinance and with the statement that 

the text is available for public inspection and acquisition in the office of the City Clerk.   

Section 4.  PUBLIC PURPOSE:  The City Council of the City of Craig herewith finds and 

determines that this Ordinance is necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and 

safety.  This Ordinance is enacted pursuant to the City’s authority to act under its police power to 

protect and preserve the general welfare of the City and its citizens. 

 

 

 



READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED ON FIRST READING THIS 

____________ DAY OF ______________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

                             ______________________________ 

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 

 

 

  

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED AFTER HEARING ON SECOND READING 

THIS ______ DAY OF _____________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

 

 

       ________________________________  

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 

 

  



ORDINANCE 1092 (2019) 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 15.16 OF THE CRAIG MUNICIPAL CODE 

CONCERNING THE INTERNATIONAL PLUMBING CODE 

WHEREAS, the City of Craig has adopted rules and regulation concerning building code 

requirements for all real property located within city limits, which rules and regulations set 

minimum standards for the design and construction of buildings to ensure the safety and health 

for people in or about those buildings; and 

WHEREAS, building codes are occasionally updated at a national level resulting in the adoption 

of updated versions of building and other related codes; and 

WHEREAS, by this ordinance together with other related ordinances being considered at this 

time, the City Council updates the building rules and regulations to remain current within this 

area. 

WHEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CRAIG, 
COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.   Chapter 15.16 of the Craig Municipal Code entitled “International Plumbing  
Code” shall be adopted to read in its entirety as follows (note: this is a redline version of the 
changes to the Craig Municipal Code, with language to be eliminated designated with 
strikethrough notation and new language shown in red): 

 

Chapter 15.16  

International Plumbing Code 

 

15.16.025 - Adoption.  

Pursuant to Title 31, Chapter 16, Sections 201 through 208, C.R.S., there is adopted as the 

plumbing code of the city, by reference thereto, the International Plumbing Code, 2006 2018 

edition, published by the International Code Council, Inc., 4051 West Flossmoor Road, Country 

Club Hills, IL 60478-5795, of which three (3) two (2) copies are now filed in the office of the city 

clerk and may be inspected during regular business hours, the same being adopted as if set out in 

length.  

 

15.16.028- Modifications; Title 

          IPC Section 101.1 (Title) is modified by the addition of the term “City of Craig” 

where indicated. 

 

15.16.030 - Modification to Chapter 11, Section 1101, Paragraph 1101.2.  



There is added to Chapter 11, "Storm Drainage," Section 1101, General, Paragraph 1101.2, 

“Where Required” "Disposal," a paragraph to be known as 1101.2.1 as follows:  

"1101.2.1 All rain, surface or subsurface water drainage systems shall be installed by a 

licensed contractor, inspected by the Administrative Authority, Section 103, Authority, and 

as-built drawings of such system shall be given to the community development department, 

with the exception of gutters and downspouts for residential structures only."  

 

15.16.035 - Modification to Chapter 7, Section 708, Cleanouts, Paragraph 708.3.5.  

Chapter 7, Section 708, Cleanouts, Paragraph 708.3.5 708.1,3, "Building Drain and Building 

Sewer Junction," is amended to read as follows:  

"708.3.5 Building Drain and Building Sewer Junction. There shall be a cleanout near the 

junction of the building drain and the building sewer. The cleanout shall be outside the 

building wall and shall be brought up to the finished ground level. An approved two-way 

cleanout is allowed required at this location to serve as a required cleanout for both the 

building drain and the building sewer. The cleanout at the junction of the building drain and 

building sewer and outside the wall, shall be required regardless of the location of system soil 

stacks within the structure perimeter. The minimum size of the cleanout at the junction of the 

building drain and building sewer shall comply with Section 708.7” 708.1.5." Perimeter 

drains, gutters and downspouts are not allowed to connect to the sanitary sewer. 

 

15.16.040 - Modification to Chapter 6, Section 605, Materials, Joints and Connections, 

Paragraph 605.15 605.12, Copper Tubing Pipe.  

There is added to Chapter 6, Section 605, Materials, Joints and Connections, Paragraph 

605.15, 605.12 Copper Tubing Pipe, the following:  

"All connections on water service lines from main to meter shall be flared or approved 

compression fittings with the exception of connections above ground or above slabs which 

may be soldered."  

 

15.16.045 - Modifications to Chapter 6, Section 605, Materials, Joints and Connections, 

Paragraph 605.3, Water Service Piping.  

There is added to Chapter 6, Section 605, Materials, Joints and Connections, Paragraphs 

605.3.2, 605.3.3 and 605.3.4, to be known as (a), (b) and (c), as follows:  

"605.3.2(a) All water service supply piping extending from the main to the water meter 

shall be type K copper tubing”. curb stop shall be minimum one (1) inch type K copper 

tubing. All supply piping extending from the curb stop to the water meter shall be 

minimum one (1) inch type K copper tubing, or one and one quarter (1 ¼) inch HDPE 

pipe. If HDPE is used, an approved tracer wire must be attached to the service line in 

accordance with the City of Craig Public Works Manual. 



"605.3.3(b) Existing nonconforming piping may remain until it is altered, repaired or 

replaced, at which time it must be replaced with type K copper tubing or HDPE pipe as set 

forth in (a) above. Written disclosure of such nonconforming piping shall be given by property 

owners to prospective buyers.  

"605.3.4(c) When alteration, repair or replacement of a water meter which is installed in 

a pit is necessary, the meter shall be relocated either under or within the structure being served 

by water. The pit shall be removed and filled."  

 

15.16.050 - Modification to Chapter 6, Section 605, Materials, Joints and Connections, 

Paragraph 605.7, Valves.  

There is added to Chapter 6, Section 605, Materials, Joints and Connections, Paragraph 605.7, 

Valves, a paragraph known as 605.7.1, as follows:  

"605.7.1 A curb stop shall be located on the property line, and the riser (McDonalds, 

Mueller or comparable as approved by the city) shall protrude at least to grade or higher, but 

not exceed two (2) inches above grade. A curb stop shall not be covered or filled with any 

substance that restricts its accessibility."  

 

15.16.060 - Additions.  

The adopted International Plumbing Code is subject to the following additions:  

A.  No permit shall be issued to any person to do or to cause to be done any plumbing or drainage 

work regulated by this chapter, except to a person holding a valid, unexpired and unrevoked 

master plumber's license and registration as required by the city or as otherwise provided in 

this section. Any permit required by this chapter may be issued to any person to do any 

plumbing or drainage work regulated by this chapter in a single-family dwelling used 

exclusively for living purposes, including the usual accessory buildings and quarters in 

connection with such buildings if that person is the bona fide owner of any such dwelling and 

accessory buildings and quarters and such premises are occupied by or designed to be 

occupied by such owner, provided that the owner shall personally perform all labor in 

connection therewith.  

B.  The city requires as-built drawings for all changes or new installations in sewer or water 

locations. These drawings shall be given to a representative of the respective department 

affected.  

C.  Tapping of a water or sewer main shall be done by a licensed plumber under the direct 

supervision of a qualified agent of the respective city department. the City of Craig, unless 

authorized by the Water Department, tapping of sewer mains shall be done by a licensed 

plumber and inspected by a City of Craig representative prior to burial.  

D.  Water and sewer mains shall be installed by a licensed utility contractor, and be inspected 

by a City of Craig representative prior to burial. An approved tracer wire shall be installed 

on all water and sewer mains in accordance with the City of Craig Public Works Manual. 



 

E.     Sewer and water service lines from the tap to the structure shall be installed by a plumber 

licensed in the city and the state. and be inspected The City of Craig shall tap all water mains 

and install type K-copper from the main to the curb stop. All water service lines from the 

curb stop to the structure shall be installed by a plumber licensed in the city and the state. 

All water and sewer service lines shall be inspected by a City of Craig representative prior 

to burial. An approved tracer wire shall be installed on all non-metallic water and sewer 

service lines in accordance with the City of Craig Public Works Manual. 

 

F.  The city requires that winterizing of homes and businesses shall be done using nontoxic 

means, by a licensed plumbing contractor or a homeowner, if in his or her own residence. A 

meter reading shall be taken and submitted to the city's utility billing department.  

         

G.    Backflow prevention: See Section 13.36.055 of this code “Backflow and Cross-

Connection Standards.      

 

15.16.065 - Additions; plumbing permit fee schedule.  

A.  A permit shall not be valid until the fees prescribed below have been paid, nor shall an 

amendment to a permit be released until the additional fee, if any, has been paid.  

B.  Any person who commences any work on any plumbing systems before obtaining the 

necessary permits shall be subject to a doubling of the normally imposed permit fee for such 

work. NOTE: "Emergency repairs" are not subject to these penalties; however, a permit for 

such work must be obtained in a timely manner, and required inspections must still be passed. 

When in question, the determination of "emergency" status will be decided by the authority 

having jurisdiction. Any person who refuses to stop work and obtain required permits, when 

so directed by the authority having jurisdiction, will be subject to more serious civil and/or 

criminal penalties as set forth in Section 15.16.070 below.  

C.  The fees for the plumbing work shall be as indicated in Table 15.16.065 (below).  

 

Table 15.16.065  

Schedule of Plumbing Permit Fees  

Issuance  

1.  For the issuance of each plumbing permit  $25.00  

2.  
For issuing each supplemental permit for which the original permit has not expired, 

been canceled or finaled  
15.00  

Unit Fee Schedule (in addition to items 1 & 2 above) 



1  For each plumbing fixture on 1 trap or a set of fixtures on 1 trap  8.00  

2.  For each building sewer and each trailer park sewer  18.00  

3.  Rainwater systems - per drain (inside building)  8.00  

4.  For each water heater and/or vent  8.00  

5.  For each gas piping system of 1 to 5 outlets  20.00  

6.  For each additional gas piping system outlet, per outlet  1.00  

7.  For each industrial waste pretreatment interceptor including its trap  10.00  

8.  
For each installation, alteration or repair of water piping and/or water treating 

equipment  
8.00  

9.  For each repair or alteration of drainage or vent piping, each fixture  8.00  

10.  For each lawn sprinkler system on any 1 meter, including backflow devices  8.00  

11.  

For atmospheric-type vacuum breakers:   

 1 to 5 fixtures  5.00  

 over 5, each  1.00  

12.  

For each backflow protective device other than atmospheric-type vacuum breakers:   

 2 inch (51 mm) diameter and smaller  10.00  

 over 2 inch (55 mm) diameter  20.00  

13.  For each graywater system  40.00  

14.  For initial installation and testing for a reclaimed water system  30.00  

15.  
For each annual cross-connection testing of a reclaimed water system (excluding 

initial test)  
30.00  



16.  For each medical gas piping system serving 1 to 5 inlets/outlets for specific gas  50.00  

17.  For each additional medical gas inlet/outlet  5.00  

 

15.16.070 - Penalties.  

The following penalties, set forth in full, shall apply to this chapter:  

A.  It is unlawful for a person to violate any of the provisions stated or adopted in this chapter.  

B.  Every person convicted of a violation of any provisions stated or adopted in this chapter shall 

be guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined in the sum not to exceed one 

thousand dollars ($1,000.00) or by imprisonment for not more than one hundred eighty (180) 

days, or by both such fine and imprisonment. Each day that such a violation is permitted to 

exist shall constitute a separate offense.  

 

15.16.075 - Validity.  

If any part or parts of this chapter are for any reason held to be invalid, such decision shall not 

affect the validity of the remaining portion of this chapter. The city council declares that it would 

have passed the ordinance codified herein and each part or parts thereof irrespective of the fact 

that any one (1) part or parts are declared invalid.  

 

15.16.085 - Interpretation.  

Article and section headings of this chapter and the adopted International Plumbing Code shall 

not be deemed to govern, limit, modify or in any manner affect the scope, meaning or extent of 

the provisions of any article or section thereof.  

 

15.16.090 - Short title.  

This chapter may be known and cited as the "International Plumbing Code." 

 

15.16.095 - Safety.  

The city council declares and determines that this chapter is necessary for the preservation of 

the public peace, health and safety.  

 



Section 2.  EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Ordinance shall take effect ten (10) days after passage and 

upon publication of such ordinance after passage.   

Section 3.  PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY:  The City Council deems it appropriate to publish 

the title of this Ordinance, together with a summary of the Ordinance and with the statement that 

the text is available for public inspection and acquisition in the office of the City Clerk.   

Section 4.  PUBLIC PURPOSE:  The City Council of the City of Craig herewith finds and 

determines that this Ordinance is necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and 

safety.  This Ordinance is enacted pursuant to the City’s authority to act under its police power to 

protect and preserve the general welfare of the City and its citizens. 

 

 READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED ON FIRST READING THIS 

____________ DAY OF ______________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

                             ______________________________ 

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 

 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED AFTER HEARING ON SECOND READING 

THIS ______ DAY OF _____________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

 

       ________________________________  

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor  

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 



 

ORDINANCE 1093 (2019) 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 15.18 OF THE CRAIG MUNICIPAL CODE 

CONCERNING THE INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE 

WHEREAS, the City of Craig has adopted rules and regulation concerning building code 

requirements for all real property located within city limits, which rules and regulations set 

minimum standards for the design and construction of buildings to ensure the safety and health 

for people in or about those buildings; and 

WHEREAS, building codes are occasionally updated at a national level resulting in the adoption 

of updated versions of building and other related codes; and 

WHEREAS, by this ordinance together with other related ordinances being considered at this 

time, the City Council updates the building rules and regulations to remain current within this 

area. 

WHEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CRAIG, 
COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.   Chapter 15.18 of the Craig Municipal Code entitled “International Property 
Maintenance  Code” shall be amended to read in its entirety as follows (note: this is a redline 
version of the changes to the Craig Municipal Code, with language to be eliminated 
designated with strikethrough notation and new language shown in red): 
 

Chapter 15.18  

International Property Maintenance Code 

15.18.010 - Adoption.  

Pursuant to Title 31, Chapter 16, Sections 201 through 208, C.R.S., there is hereby adopted 

as the property maintenance code of the city, by reference thereto, the International Property 

Maintenance Code, 2006 2018 edition, published by the International Code Council, Inc., 4051 

West Flossmoor Road, Country Club Hills, IL 60478-5795, of which three two (2) copies are now 

filed in the office of the city clerk and may be inspected during regular business hours, the same 

being adopted as if set out in length.  

 

15.18.015- Modifications 

        IPMC Section 101.1 (Title) is modified by the addition of the term “City of Craig” 

where indicated. 



15.18.020 - Deletions.  

Section 111 “Means of Appeal” of the International Property Maintenance Code is hereby 

deleted and not adopted as part of the code.   

15.18.030 - Modification to Chapters 2 and 6.  

Chapters 2 and 6 of the International Property Maintenance Code are amended by the 

removal of references to the ICC Electrical Code and replaced by "NFPA 70, National Electrical 

Code (NEC) 2005 edition." (Ord. 967 §1, 2007) 

 

15.18.040 - Penalty.  

Any person or persons violating any provisions of this chapter or of the International Property 

Maintenance Code shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined 

in the sum not to exceed one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) or by imprisonment for not more than 

one hundred eighty (180) days, or by both such fine and imprisonment. Each day that such a 

violation is permitted to exist shall constitute a separate offense.  

 

15.18.050 - Validity.  

If any provision of this chapter or the application thereof to any person or circumstances is 

held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications, and to this end the 

provisions of this chapter are declared to be severable.  

 

15.18.055 - Interpretation.  

Article and section headings of this chapter and the adopted International Property 

Maintenance Code shall not be deemed to govern, limit, modify or in any manner affect the scope, 

meaning or intent of the provisions of any article or section thereof.  

 

15.18.060 - Short title.  

This chapter may be known and cited as the "International Property Maintenance Code."  

 

15.18.065 - Safety.  

The city council hereby finds, declares and determines that this chapter is necessary for the 

preservation of the public peace, health and safety. 

 



 

Section 2.  EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Ordinance shall take effect ten (10) days after passage and 

upon publication of such ordinance after passage.   

Section 3.  PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY:  The City Council deems it appropriate to publish 

the title of this Ordinance, together with a summary of the Ordinance and with the statement that 

the text is available for public inspection and acquisition in the office of the City Clerk.   

Section 4.  PUBLIC PURPOSE:  The City Council of the City of Craig herewith finds and 

determines that this Ordinance is necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and 

safety.  This Ordinance is enacted pursuant to the City’s authority to act under its police power to 

protect and preserve the general welfare of the City and its citizens. 

 

 READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED ON FIRST READING THIS 

____________ DAY OF ______________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

                             ______________________________ 

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 

 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED AFTER HEARING ON SECOND READING 

THIS ______ DAY OF _____________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

 

       ________________________________  

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 



ORDINANCE 1094 (2019) 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 15.22 OF THE CRAIG MUNICIPAL CODE 

CONCERNING THE INTERNATIONAL MANUFACTURED HOME INSTALLATION 

CODE 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Craig has adopted rules and regulation concerning building code 

requirements for all real property located within city limits, which rules and regulations set 

minimum standards for the design and construction of buildings to ensure the safety and health 

for people in or about those buildings; and 

 

WHEREAS, building codes are occasionally updated at a national level resulting in the adoption 

of updated versions of building and other related codes; and 

 

WHEREAS, by this ordinance together with other related ordinances being considered at this 

time, the City Council updates the building rules and regulations to remain current within this 

area. 

WHEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CRAIG, 
COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.   Chapter 15.22 of the Craig Municipal Code entitled “International Manufactured 
Home Installation  Code” shall be adopted to read in its entirety as follows (note: this is a 
redline version of the changes to the Craig Municipal Code, with language to be eliminated 
designated with strikethrough notation and new language shown in red): 
 

Chapter 15.22   

 

Manufactured Home Installation Code 

15.22.010 - Short title.  

 

This chapter may be known and cited as the "Manufactured Home Installation Code."  

 

 

15.22.020 - Installation standards.  

 

A. HUD Manufactured Homes (U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development). 

    1. Single Wide  

        All HUD Single Wide manufactured homes shall be allowed in MU-1 and RMH zones 

only, and may be installed on an engineered foundation (required in the RLD, RMD or RHD 

Districts and permitted in the RMH Districts) or with piers, tie-downs and skirting (permitted 

only in the RMH Districts). in conformance with the manufacturers installation 

instructions. If the manufacturers installation instructions are unavailable, the home 

shall be installed in conformance with the Manufactured Homes and Factory Built 



Housing Installation Handbook, 2016 edition, published by the Colorado Department of 

Local Affairs. 

B.  Manufactured homes shall be installed as recommended in the manufacturer's installation 

instructions. If the manufacturer's installation instructions are lost or unavailable, the 

manufactured home shall be installed in conformance with the American National Standard 

for Manufactured Home Installations (ANSI A225.1), 1994 edition, adopted in Section 

15.22.030.  

C. 2. Multiple Section Units 

         HUD double or triple wide manufactured homes are allowed in the RLD, RMD, RHD, 

MU-1, MU-2, Agricultural, RR, and RMH zones, if the home meets all of the following 

criteria: 

         1. Is a minimum of twenty-four (24) feet wide and thirty-six (36) feet long. 

         2. Is permanently affixed to and installed on an engineered foundation at the entire 

perimeter of the dwelling. 

         3. Has a pitched roof of at least 3:12 pitch with a minimum twelve (12) inch eave 

overhang. The roof must be covered with shingles, tile, metal roofing (pro-panel), or 

standing seam. 

           

 If the HUD manufactured home is installed on an engineered foundation, the engineered 

foundation shall be constructed as required under the adopted edition of the International 

Building Code and/or the International Residential Code. 

      

3.  No HUD/Mobile home over 25 years old may be erected, moved or placed on any 

site, lot or tract in the City of Craig. 

 

B. IRC Modular Homes 

     1. IRC Modular Homes shall be allowed in any zone which permit’s single family 

detached dwellings as a principal use. IRC Modular Homes must be installed in 

conformance with the manufactures installation instructions. If the manufacturers 

instructions are unavailable, the home shall be installed in conformance with the 

Manufactured Homes and Factory Built Housing Installation Handbook, 2016 edition, 

published by the Colorado Department of Local Affairs. 

     

     2. IRC Modular Homes shall be installed on an engineered foundation designed and 

constructed under the adopted editions of the International Building Code and/or the 

International Residential Code, by a Colorado State licensed engineer.    

      

15.22.030 - Adoption of the American National Standard for Manufactured Home Installations.   

                     Manufactured Homes and Factory Built Housing Installation Handbook. 

 

Pursuant to authority conferred by Title 31, Article 16, Sections 201 through 208, C.R.S., 

there is hereby adopted the American National Standard for Manufactured Home Installations 

(ANSI A225.1), 1994 edition, published by the National Conference of States on Building Codes 

and Standards, Inc., 505 Huntmar Park Drive, Suite 210, Herndon, Virginia 22070, Manufactured 

Homes and Factory Built Housing Installation Handbook, 2016 edition, published by the 



Colorado Department of Local Affairs, 1313 Sherman Street, room 320, Denver CO, 80203, 
of which three (3) two (2) copies are now filed in the office of the city clerk, and which may be 

inspected during regular business hours, the same being adopted as if set out at length. There is 

further adopted Annex A, C, D, E, G and H of the standard and such annexes shall constitute a 

part of the mandatory provisions of the standard.  

 

15.22.040 - Modifications; fees.  

The American National Standard for Manufactured Home Installations (ANSI A225.1), 1994 

edition, is subject to the following additions, deletions and amendments:  

A.  The electrical provisions of Annex H are hereby deleted in their entirety.  

B.  The roof load zone map, Figure 3-1(a), Annex H, shall be amended as follows: Roof load 

shall be a minimum forty (40) pounds per square foot in the RLD, RMD and RHD zoning 

districts.  

C. A. No manufactured home shall be installed in the city unless a separate permit for each 

installation has first been obtained from the building official. The provisions of Section 

15.04.049 (permit issuance) shall apply. Application for installation of manufactured homes 

in the RLD, RMD and RHD zoning districts shall be accompanied by a site plan and a soils 

report/foundation design by a state-registered professional engineer. The fee for each permit 

for manufactured home installation shall be one hundred twenty-five forty-five dollars 

($125.00) ($145.00) (for single-wide units) and two hundred twenty dollars ($200.00) ($220) 

(for multiple-section units); however, additional fees shall be charged for water and sewer 

taps, engineered foundation systems and structural additions as provided in this code.  

 

15.22.050 - Limitation.  

This chapter shall apply only to installation, and not to the modification, repair or remodeling, 

of a manufactured home which shall be governed by the International Building Code, 

International Residential Code, the International Plumbing Code, the International Mechanical 

Code and/or the International Fuel Gas Code.  

 

15.22.060 - Occupancy.  

No manufactured home shall be occupied until all of the zoning and building requirements of 

this code are completed, with the following exceptions:  

A.  Skirting shall be completed within thirty (30) days from the date of initial installation 

(reference Section 16.12.020).  

B.  Storage shed (required in mobile home parks only) shall be in place ninety (90) days from 

the date of initial installation.  

The chief building official is hereby authorized to prepare and distribute a checklist of the 

requirements that must be completed before occupancy.  

 

15.22.070 - Violations; penalty.  

Any person or persons violating any of the provisions of this chapter or of the standard, 

adopted as set forth in this chapter, shall be fined in the sum not to exceed one thousand dollars 



($1,000.00) or by imprisonment for not more than one hundred eighty (180) days, or by both such 

fine and imprisonment. Each day that such a violation is permitted to exist shall constitute a 

separate offense.  

 

READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED ON FIRST READING THIS 

____________ DAY OF ______________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

                             ______________________________ 

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 

 

  

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED AFTER HEARING ON SECOND READING 

THIS ______ DAY OF _____________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

 

       ________________________________  

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 
 



ORDINANCE 1095 (2019) 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 15.20 OF THE CRAIG MUNICIPAL CODE 

CONCERNING THE INTERNATIONAL ENERGY CONSERVATION CODE 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Craig has adopted rules and regulation concerning building code 

requirements for all real property located within city limits, which rules and regulations set 

minimum standards for the design and construction of buildings to ensure the safety and health 

for people in or about those buildings; and 

 

WHEREAS, building codes are occasionally updated at a national level resulting in the adoption 

of updated versions of building and other related codes; and 

 

WHEREAS, by this ordinance together with other related ordinances being considered at this 

time, the City Council updates the building rules and regulations to remain current within this 

area. 

WHEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CRAIG, 
COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 
Section 1.   Chapter 15.20 of the Craig Municipal Code entitled “International Energy 
Conservation Code” shall be adopted to read in its entirety as follows (note: this is a redline 
version of the changes to the Craig Municipal Code, with language to be eliminated 
designated with strikethrough notation and new language shown in red): 
 

Chapter 15.20 - International Energy Conservation Code 

                                                                                                                                                         

Sections: 15.20.010 - Document adopted; copies on file. 

 

Pursuant to Title 31, Article 16, Sections 201 through 208, C.R.S., there is adopted as the 

energy code of the city, by reference thereto, the International Energy Conservation Code, 2018 

edition, published by the International Code Council, Inc., 4051 West Flossmoor Road, Country 

Club Hills, IL 60478-5795, of which two (2) copies are now filed in the office of the city clerk, 

and which may be inspected during regular business hours, the same being adopted as if set out at 

length. There is further adopted all appendices of such codes and regulations.  

(Ord. 967 §1, 2007; Ord. 858 §3, 1997; Ord. 765 §3, 1990; Ord. 673 (part), 1985; Ord. 792 §3, 

1992) 

15.20.020 - Additions, modifications and deletions.  

The adopted code is subject to the additions, modifications or deletions set forth in Sections 

15.20.030 through 15.20.050.  

(Ord. 967 §1, 2007; Ord. 673 (part), 1985) 

 



15.20.030 - Deletions  

       1. IECC Section R402.4.1.2 (Testing) Is deleted and not adopted as part of this code. 

       2. IECC Section R402.4.4 (Rooms containing fuel-burning appliances) Is deleted and not 

adopted as part of this code. 

   

 (Ord. 967 §1, 2007; Ord. 765 §5, 1990) 

 (Ord. 967 §1, 2007; Ord. 858 §7, 1997; Ord. 765 §8, 1990; Ord. 673 (part), 1986; Ord. 792 §7, 

1992) 

15.20.050 - Violation; penalty.  

Any person or persons violating any of the provisions of this chapter or of the International 

Energy Conservation Code, adopted as set forth in this chapter, shall be deemed guilty of a 

misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined in the sum not to exceed one thousand dollars 

($1,000.00) or by imprisonment for not more than one hundred eighty (180) days, or by both such 

fine and imprisonment. Each day that such a violation is permitted to exist shall constitute a 

separate offense.  

(Ord. 967 §1, 2007; Ord. 673 (part), 1986) 

  READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED ON FIRST READING THIS 

____________ DAY OF ______________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

 

 

                             ______________________________ 

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 

 

  

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED AFTER HEARING ON SECOND READING 

THIS ______ DAY OF _____________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

 

       ________________________________  

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 



 

 Page 1 

Memo 
To:     City Administration/City Council    

From: Mark Sollenberger/Water & Wastewater Director 

Date:  June 20, 2019   

              This memo is to recommend that the city council award the bid for repairing the 
damaged concrete block and painting the exterior of all the buildings at the wastewater plant. 
This is a 2019 O&M budgeted wastewater project, which was estimated to cost $28,000.00. 
There were three local bids received for this project. Bear River Paint & Finish had the lowest 
bid, and was also below the budgeted amount. There was one issue with the two lowest 
bids, and this concerned their lack of providing workman’s comp for their employees. 
However, both of these companies were able to provide a “Declaration of Independent 
Contractor Status Form” that exempts them from this requirement.   

Re:   Bid Award Recommendation 

               My recommendation is to award the bid to Bear River Paint & Finish (the lowest 
bidder) for the total cost of ($23,775.00).  I have also included a copy of the three bids, and 
the bid tabulation below for your review. Thank you in advance for considering this request. 

Vendor                                                                             

Bear River Paint & Finish                                                       $  23,775.00 

Total Bid Amount  

Miller’s Painting Service                                                         $  34,900.00  

Spiegel Industrial                                                                    $ 215,425.80 

 

 

                          

City of Craig 













































Water Department 
                                                                May, 2019 

Monthly Report 
 

 
Operational 

1. The plant operated throughout the month and complied with all state and federal 
requirements for water quality and reporting. 

2. All distribution system flows and pressure needs, for both fire protection and the water 
customers, were met. 

 

 
Maintenance and Improvements 

1. The staff performed all required preventative maintenance during the month. 
2. Elkhead work by the staff this month consisted of routine maintenance and inspections. 

The annual dam and facilities inspection by the state was done earlier in the month. 
Overall this inspection went well with the state engineer reporting that the 
management and operations of the dam is rated as good. 

3. Coblaco worked throughout the month on the Roundbottom Tank Repair & 
Improvement Project. Although there have been some minor delays as a result of bad 
weather or equipment breakdown, they are still on schedule to complete this project 
near the end of June. 

4. Various weed control efforts were completed this month at the water plant, and at all of 
the water storage tanks. 

5. The CDPHE lab compliance inspector came in this month to conduct the biennial site 
inspection and audit of the water plant’s lab procedures and documentation for our 
lab’s Total Coliform & E-Coli bacteria (P&A) analysis certification renewal. We passed 
this inspection, and our state certification will be renewed for another year. 

6. The staff continued working this month on the surveying of commercial properties for 
the CCC Program, and finishing up the installation of the new process turbidimeters. 

7. The staff continued working with SGM this month on present and future water and 
wastewater improvement projects, and programs.  

8. The staff continued to assist or work with other city departments, vendors, customers, 
and contractors as needed.  The staff also worked on building and grounds 
maintenance, and equipment repair. 
 

 

Distribution System Operation/Maintenance 

1. There were 110 line locates requested and completed this month. This required 
approximately 83.0 man-hours to complete. 

2. All work orders, meter readings, meter tech appointments, distribution of nonpayment 
door hangers, nonpayment water service shut offs, and service line inspections 
requested or scheduled were completed. 



3. Miscellaneous water department work by the staff this month included; completed 20 
final meter reads, completed 40 service turn offs/ons, and repaired 7 meters/MXU’s. 

4. The staff completed the annual fire hydrant flushing program this month for the west 
side of the city. There were 96 fire hydrants flushed in May.   

5. The staff repaired 1 water main break during the month. This repair required 
approximately 8 hours to complete. 

6. The staff completed several small distribution system projects during the month. They 
included - continuing to work with Sensus on the operational set up of the new water 
meter reading equipment, worked with the Road & Bridge Department on the Pershing 
Street sewer main replacement project site investigation and preliminary parts list 
development, and assisted a local plumbing contractor in completely replacing the 
water service line to the water main for the Sandrock Ridge Care Facility. This included a 
new water shut off/curb stop, and replacing the water main tap. 

7. The staff was able to perform their regularly scheduled work on the distribution system, 
bulk water sales stations, and equipment maintenance during the month. They were 
able to assist contractors, other city departments, and complete all emergency 
assignments as required.   
 

 

Water Production Statistics 

Effluent Total Flow             39,421,000 gallons      Total Chemical Cost        $10,424.75 
Backwash Total Flow    1,222,466 gallons Total Chemical Cost/MG    $    256.49 
Total Flow                40,643,466 gallons Alum & Ash Cost/Mg          $    144.85 
 
(Backwash Flow % of Total = (3.10%) 
 
The Craig Municipal Water Treatment Plant utilizes water rights for municipal use.  These 
included direct flow diversions from the following: 
 
Craig Irrigation Ditch    Deep Cut Ditch 
Fortification Creek Ditch    Craig Water Supply System 



Monthly Report 

Wastewater 

May 2019 

 

A. Treatment – Operation: 

1. Operated treatment plant to comply with State and Federal 

regulations. 

2. Performed daily, weekly, and monthly maintenance as 

recommended in the manufacturer’s manuals. 

3. Treated average of 944,000 gallons/day of wastewater. 

4. Received and treated 4,450 gallons of hauled waste. 

 

B. Collection – Operation: 

1. 52 man hours used to perform 104 line locates. 

2. 24 man hours used to hydraulically clean 3,575 feet of sewer main 

as part of routine (every 5 weeks) maintenance. 

3. 115 man hours used to hydraulically clean 27,625 feet of sewer 

main as part of an annual cleaning program. 

 

C. Collection – Correction 

1. 1 man hour used to respond to a backup complaint at 465 Steele 

St.  The main was inspected and found to be flowing well.  It was 

determined to be the homeowner’s issue.  As a side note, even 

though the main was flowing well and not obstructed, the operator 

did notice gravel in the main and hydraulically cleaned the whole 

line as a preventative measure.   

 

D. Other: 

1. Assisted other departments, local plumbers, and contractors as 

needed. 

2. Analyzed Maybell’s Wastewater Plant monthly samples. 



REVENUE COMPARISONS 

AS OF MAY 31, 2019 

COUNTYWIDE SALES TAX 

CITY SALES TAX 

WATER SALES 

SEWER SALES 

CONSTRUCTION DUMPSTERS 

REFUSE COLLECTION FEES 

REFUSE LANDFILL FEES 

1



CITY OF CRAIG
COUNTYWIDE SALES TAX

MONTH MONTH MONTH 37.50% 37.50% 37.50% 37.50%  % CHANGE
OF RECEIVED RECEIVED YEAR 2017 YEAR 2018 YEAR 2019 YEAR 2019 RECEIVED

SALES BY STATE BY CITY ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGETED ACTUAL  2019/2018

JAN FEB MAR $91,220.09 $100,423.25 $100,450.00 $107,952.87 7.50%
FEB MAR APR $84,759.24 $94,676.33 $94,600.00 $108,802.40 14.92%
MAR APR MAY $95,391.80 $106,581.45 $106,600.00 $109,858.29 3.07%
APR MAY JUN $104,935.76 $107,382.50 $107,400.00 $113,479.47 5.68%
MAY JUN JUL $108,837.75 $323,284.35 $124,650.00
JUN JUL AUG $112,649.51 $120,208.53 $120,200.00
JUL AUG SEP $120,798.26 $125,596.29 $125,600.00
AUG SEP OCT $121,057.07 $121,906.34 $121,900.00
SEP OCT NOV $107,808.75 $122,594.10 $122,600.00
OCT NOV DEC $115,911.33 $132,073.42 $118,000.00
NOV DEC JAN $119,866.30 $124,842.20 $116,000.00
DEC JAN FEB $123,462.08 $129,655.11 $120,000.00

TOTAL YEAR-TO-DATE $1,306,697.94 $1,609,223.87 $1,378,000.00 $440,093.03

 Actual  vs  Actual
     Y-T-D Percentage Change -0.01% 21.30% 7.59%
     Y-T- D Dollar Change $31,029.50

 Budget vs  Actual
     Y-T-D Percentage Change 7.59%
     Y-T- D Dollar Change $31,043.03  

 

The monthly amount of Sales Tax received will reflect prior months collections due to delinquenct filings, and also don't reflect those 
that have not yet filed.  Therefore, the amount and percentage change between current and prior year totals, only represents the 
amount and percentage collected.  It is not a reflection of an increase or decease in sales activities.

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

$300,000

$350,000

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

S
A

LE
S

 T
A

X

MONTH RECEIVED BY STATE

CITY OF CRAIG
COUNTYWIDE SALES TAX

2018 ACTUAL 2019 BUDGETED 2019 ACTUAL

2



CITY OF CRAIG
CITY SALES TAX

MONTH MONTH 2.25% 2.25%/4.0% 4.00% 4.00%  % CHANGE ESTIMATED
OF RECEIVED YEAR 2017 YEAR 2018 YEAR 2019 YEAR 2019 RECEIVED % CHANGE

SALES BY CITY ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGETED ACTUAL  2019/2018 in SALES

JAN FEB $254,628.92 $263,126.31 $467,780.11 $441,794.56 67.90% -2.80%
FEB MAR $233,539.46 $250,436.70 $445,220.80 $427,870.57 70.85% 2.00%
MAR APR $260,106.85 $282,357.88 $501,969.56 $487,231.17 72.56% -0.87%
APR MAY $290,457.30 $283,716.50 $504,384.89 $472,364.42 66.49% -1.61%
MAY JUN $303,867.62 $345,760.12 $588,880.00 $558,000.00 61.38% -1.54%
JUN JUL $312,766.14 $316,820.24 $563,235.98
JUL AUG $324,111.81 $517,194.55 $527,356.34
AUG SEP $332,397.29 $555,922.11 $555,893.36
SEP OCT $291,501.08 $476,642.76 $538,634.87
OCT NOV $316,393.24 $555,381.16 $543,150.00
NOV DEC $315,388.68 $613,696.86 $485,000.00
DEC JAN $323,088.80 $633,093.27 $517,000.00

TOTAL YEAR-TO-DATE $3,558,247.19 $5,094,148.46 $6,238,505.91 $2,387,260.72

Actual vs Actual
     Y-T-D Percentage Change -1.51% 38.51% 67.48%
     Y-T- D Dollar Change $961,863.21

Actual vs Budgeted
     Y-T-D Percentage Change -4.82%
     Y-T- D Dollar Change ($120,974.64)

The monthly amount of Sales Tax received will reflect prior months collections due to delinquenct filings, and also don't reflect those 

that have not yet filed.  Therefore, the amount and percentage change between current and prior year totals, only represents the 

amount and percentage collected.  It is not a reflection of an increase or decease in sales activities.

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

S
A

LE
S

 T
A

X

MONTH RECEIVED BY ST/CO

CITY SALES TAX

2018 ACTUAL 2019 BUDGETED 2019 ACTUAL

3



 

$864,224 

$389,159 

$263,939 

$119,332 
$90,054 $82,043 $74,756 $67,371 $62,611 $55,188 $49,642 $45,622 $38,023 $36,612 

$132,599 

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

$800,000

$900,000

$1,000,000

JANUARY THRU MAY 2019 CITY SALES TAX
$2,387,261

4



CITY OF CRAIG
WATER FUND

REVENUES FROM WATER SALES

$28.50 $28.50 $28.50 $29.10
$2.90/1,000 gals. $2.90/1,000 gals. $2.90/1,000 gals. $2.95/1,000 gals.

MONTH
OF YEAR 2017 YEAR 2018 YEAR 2019 YEAR 2019 % CHANGES

SALES ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGETED ACTUAL 2019/2018

JAN $191,956.84 $196,223.26 $200,147.73 $204,324.89 4.13%
FEB $184,430.63 $185,223.54 $188,928.01 $188,073.45 1.54%
MAR $189,845.36 $191,826.51 $195,663.04 $188,604.34 -1.68%
APR $193,889.14 $185,620.96 $189,333.38 $189,984.45 2.35%
MAY $213,119.26 $260,499.20 $265,709.18 $222,626.57 -14.54%
JUN $300,492.36 $320,545.75 $326,956.67
JUL $405,976.37 $387,627.05 $395,379.59
AUG $320,745.82 $348,605.20 $355,577.30
SEP $323,528.37 $315,908.57 $306,000.00
OCT $195,586.12 $219,596.91 $199,920.00
NOV $187,366.84 $192,075.43 $200,940.00
DEC $184,838.64 $174,530.72 $195,840.00

TOTAL YEAR-TO-DATE $2,891,775.75 $2,978,283.10 $3,020,394.90 $993,613.70

Actual vs Actual
     Y-T-D Percentage Change 6.91% 8.65% 1.44% -2.53%
     Y-T- D Dollar Change ($25,779.77)

Actual vs Budgeted
     Y-T-D Percentage Change -4.44%
     Y-T- D Dollar Change ($46,167.64)

$0

$50

$100

$150

$200

$250

$300

$350

$400

$450

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

W
A

T
E

R
 S

A
L

E
S

T
h

o
u

sa
n

d
s

MONTH

WATER SALES

2018 ACTUAL 2019 BUDGETED 2019 ACTUAL

5



CITY OF CRAIG
WASTEWATER FUND

REVENUES FROM SEWER FEES

$28.00 $31.00 $31.00 $31.95
$1.40/th. gal. $1.55/th. gal. $1.55/th. gal. $1.60/th. gal.

MONTH
OF YEAR 2017 YEAR 2018 YEAR 2019 YEAR 2019 % CHANGE

SALES ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGETED ACTUAL 2019/2018

JAN $140,015.82 $140,461.25 $144,675.09 $145,448.12 3.55%
FEB $137,505.27 $139,744.55 $143,936.89 $143,988.13 3.04%
MAR $140,697.65 $141,018.53 $145,249.09 $145,595.74 3.25%
APR $139,891.99 $139,992.07 $144,191.83 $147,153.45 5.12%
MAY $143,694.11 $148,895.27 $153,362.13 $150,969.20 1.39%
JUN $145,020.66 $145,943.24 $150,321.54
JUL $149,040.76 $149,570.96 $154,058.09
AUG $146,146.50 $148,385.19 $152,836.75
SEP $156,662.36 $155,041.01 $154,500.00
OCT $141,691.17 $145,530.63 $146,260.00
NOV $141,017.24 $140,722.63 $144,200.00
DEC $139,725.96 $138,202.60 $143,170.00

TOTAL YEAR-TO-DATE $1,721,109.49 $1,733,507.93 $1,776,761.39 $733,154.64  

Actual vs Actual
     Y-T-D Percentage Change 23.32% 10.84% 2.50% 3.24%
     Y-T- D Dollar Change $23,042.97

Actual vs Budgeted
     Y-T-D Percentage Change 0.24%
     Y-T- D Dollar Change $1,739.62

$125

$130

$135

$140

$145

$150

$155

$160

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

S
E

W
E

R
 F

E
E

S

T
h

o
u

sa
n

d
s

MONTH

SEWER FEES

2018 ACTUAL 2019 BUDGETED 2019 ACTUAL

6



CITY OF CRAIG
SOLID WASTE FUND

REVENUES FROM CONSTRUCTION DUMPSTERS

  
MONTH

OF YEAR 2017 YEAR 2018 YEAR 2019 YEAR 2019 % CHANGE
SALES ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGETED ACTUAL 2019/2018

JAN $7,055.92 $6,999.10 $7,000.00 $12,230.66 74.75%
FEB $5,778.25 $5,263.20 $5,300.00 $7,076.51 34.45%
MAR $38,447.05 $7,440.30 $7,400.00 $14,842.71 99.49%
APR $22,182.00 $7,329.90 $7,300.00 $16,083.80 119.43%
MAY $12,127.34 $11,773.45 $11,800.00 $12,704.00 7.90%
JUN $6,582.00 $13,811.56 $13,800.00
JUL $15,673.77 $10,934.48 $10,900.00
AUG $12,570.20 $8,868.58 $8,900.00
SEP $13,267.13 $9,363.60 $12,000.00
OCT $15,150.72 $20,865.71 $8,000.00
NOV $13,789.90 $17,226.16 $8,000.00
DEC $8,152.40 $7,733.76 $7,000.00

TOTAL YEAR-TO-DATE $170,776.68 $127,609.80 $107,400.00 $62,937.68

Actual vs Actual
     Y-T-D Percentage Ch 8.89% -6.82% -15.84% 62.19%
     Y-T- D Dollar Change $24,131.73

Actual vs Budgeted
     Y-T-D Percentage Change 62.21%
     Y-T- D Dollar Change $24,137.68

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

D
U

M
P

S
T

E
R

S
 C

H
A

R
G

E
S

T
h

o
u

sa
n

d
s

MONTH

CONSTRUCTION DUMPSTERS

2018 ACTUAL 2019 BUDGETED 2019 ACTUAL

7



CITY OF CRAIG
SOLID WASTE FUND

REVENUES FROM COLLECTION FEES

$11.00 $11.00 $11.00 $11.00
  

MONTH
OF YEAR 2017 YEAR 2018 YEAR 2019 YEAR 2019 % CHANGE

SALES ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGETED ACTUAL 2019/2018

JAN $51,644.91 $51,017.14 $51,000.00 $52,001.45 1.93%
FEB $50,393.96 $50,885.27 $50,900.00 $51,969.05 2.13%
MAR $75,671.86 $77,139.74 $77,100.00 $80,224.96 4.00%
APR $51,622.49 $52,019.56 $52,000.00 $52,364.97 0.66%
MAY $52,406.29 $52,106.99 $52,100.00 $53,167.94 2.04%
JUN $76,594.44 $78,400.84 $78,400.00
JUL $52,327.83 $51,205.46 $51,200.00
AUG $52,110.95 $51,750.24 $51,750.00
SEP $78,250.70 $80,499.47 $76,550.00
OCT $52,168.46 $52,242.87 $53,000.00
NOV $51,835.96 $52,008.08 $53,000.00
DEC $76,844.90 $79,440.44 $75,000.00

TOTAL YEAR-TO-DATE $721,872.75 $728,716.10 $722,000.00 $289,728.37

Actual vs Actual
     Y-T-D Percentage Change 4.66% 0.57% -0.92% 2.32%
     Y-T- D Dollar Change $6,559.67

Actual vs Budgeted
     Y-T-D Percentage Change 2.34%
     Y-T- D Dollar Change $6,628.37

$0

$10

$20

$30

$40

$50

$60

$70

$80

$90

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
IO

N
 F

E
E

S

T
h

o
u

sa
n

d
s

MONTH

COLLECTION FEES

2018 ACTUAL 2019 BDUGETED 2019 ACTUAL

8



CITY OF CRAIG
SOLID WASTE FUND

REVENUES FROM LANDFILL FEES

$9.00 $9.00 $9.00 $11.00
MONTH

OF YEAR 2017 YEAR 2018 YEAR 2019 YEAR 2019 % CHANGE
SALES ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGETED ACTUAL 2019/2018

JAN $40,494.93 $39,603.59 46,400.00 $47,995.97 21.19%
FEB $40,047.39 $39,851.76 46,700.00 $47,784.87 19.91%
MAR $56,392.97 $57,213.99 67,000.00 $69,749.01 21.91%
APR $40,463.87 $40,165.15 47,000.00 $48,334.74 20.34%
MAY $41,497.26 $40,642.03 47,600.00 $48,670.34 19.75%
JUN $56,838.06 $58,155.80 68,100.00
JUL $39,634.98 $39,949.23 46,500.00
AUG $40,546.19 $40,329.09 46,500.00
SEP $57,678.13 $59,102.33 67,400.00
OCT $40,475.52 $40,424.34 48,000.00
NOV $40,640.42 $40,265.39 48,000.00
DEC $56,967.23 $59,213.74 67,300.00

TOTAL YEAR-TO-DATE $551,676.95 $554,916.44 $646,500.00 $262,534.93

Actual vs Actual
     Y-T-D Percentage Chang 3.46% 0.48% 16.50% 20.72%
     Y-T- D Dollar Change $45,058.41

Actual vs Budgeted
     Y-T-D Percentage Change 3.08%
     Y-T- D Dollar Change $7,834.93

$0

$10

$20

$30

$40

$50

$60

$70

$80

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

L
A

N
D

F
IL

L
 F

E
E

S

T
h

o
u

sa
n

d
s

MONTH

LANDFILL FEES

2018 ACTUAL 2019 BUDGETED 2019 ACTUAL

9



 
 

 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY 

 

 
AS OF MAY 31, 2019 

 
 

GENERAL FUND - Summary 
 

GENERAL FUND - Detail Revenue 
 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND – Summary 
 

ACET FUND - Summary 
 

WATER FUND - Summary 
 

WASTEWATER FUND -  Summary 
 

SOLOD WASTE FUND - Summary 
 

MEDICAL BENEFITS FUND - Summary 
 
 

INVESTMENTS OF CITY FUNDS 

10



CITY OF CRAIG
2019 BUDGET

GENERAL FUND BUDGET SUMMARY

Revised 2019
2019 MONTH OF ACTUAL PERCENT

DESCRIPTION Budget MAY YTD YTD

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE:
Reserved-Tabor Act 262,046 286,231
Restricted Funds

Zoning Lieu of Land 42,000 42,000
County R&B 0 0
Conservation Trust 0 0

Unreserved-Undesignated 3,971,693 5,204,572

TOTAL  Beginning Fund Balance 4,275,739 5,532,803

REVENUES:
Taxes 9,225,675 951,561 3,688,877 40.0%
Licenses & Permits 100,100 0 21,065 21.0%
Intergovernmental 890,860 0 101,428 11.4%
Charges for Services 274,690 950 27,294 9.9%
Fines & Costs 60,500 0 11,225 18.6%
Miscellaneous 103,100 250 39,899 38.7%
Contributions 70,000 6,488 10,470 15.0%
Others 0 2,556 8,189 #DIV/0!

TOTAL  Revenues 10,724,925 961,804 3,908,446 36.4%

EXPENDITURES:
41 COUNCIL 228,630 18,298 97,591 42.7%
42 LEGAL 120,000 7,978 47,781 39.8%
43 JUDICIAL 113,120 8,496 44,640 39.5%
44 ADMINISTRATION 300,415 27,326 142,324 47.4%
45 CITY CLERK/PERSONNEL 224,120 12,707 106,516 47.5%
46 PUBLIC WORKS 70,615 5,008 33,938 48.1%
47 GENERAL SERVICES 66,400 2,326 25,217 38.0%
48 FINANCE/ACCOUNTING 417,540 39,746 134,071 32.1%
49 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 171,055 11,669 67,478 39.4%
50 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 82,070 4,047 27,635 33.7%
51 POLICE 3,220,890 228,736 1,264,193 39.2%
64 ROAD & BRIDGE 2,306,770 162,162 799,035 34.6%
70 PARKS & RECREATION 1,627,720 128,453 511,067 31.4%
75 CENTER OF CRAIG 30,200 1,936 9,607 31.8%
90 CAPITAL OUTLAY 1,482,125 89,342 210,670 14.2%
80 DEBT SERVICE 0 0 0 0.0%
TRANSFERS 0 0 0 0.0%

TOTAL Expenditures 10,461,670 748,230 3,521,762 33.7%

SOURCES OF FUNDS VS EXPENDITURES 263,255 386,684

ENDING FUND BALANCE:
Restricted

Tabor Act 269,196 105,653
Zoning Lieu of Land 42,000 42,000
Conservation Trust 0 0

Unreserved-Undesignated 4,227,798 5,771,834

TOTAL  Ending Fund Balance 4,538,994 5,919,487

Fund Bal -Unresv/Undesign (12/31/2019) 5,467,827
Minus:  RESERVE 2,244,886      25%
SURPLUS 3,222,941 36%

11



CITY OF CRAIG
2019 BUDGET

GENERAL FUND - DETAILED REVENUE SUMMARY

2019
2019 MONTH OF ACTUAL PERCENT

Acct No Account Description Budget MAY YTD YTD

GENERAL FUND
TAXES
10-31-10000 PROPERTY TAXES 1,194,175 279,689 709,486 59.4%
10-31-11000 PROPERTY TAXES DELINQUE 0 6 (50) #DIV/0!
10-31-20000 SPEC OWNERSHIP TAX 100,000 7,688 38,674 38.7%
10-31-30000 COUNTY SALES TAX 1,378,000 0 440,093 31.9%
10-31-40000 CIGARETTE TAX 20,000 1,170 5,157 25.8%
10-31-50000 CITY SALES TAX 6,238,500 558,000 2,387,261 38.3%
10-31-50001 SALES TAX - PENAL/INT 0 999 3,987 #DIV/0!
10-31-55000 SPEC EVENTS SALES TAX 0 370 625 #DIV/0!
10-31-60000 UTILITY BUSINESS TAX 295,000 103,603 103,603 35.1%
10-31-90000 INT & PEN ON PROPERTY T 0 36 41 #DIV/0!

TAXES Totals: 9,225,675 951,561 3,688,877 40.0%

LICENSES & PERMITS
10-32-12000 LICENSE/FEES LIQUOR 6,000 950 3,075 51.3%
10-32-12100 LICENSE/FEES BUSINESS F 100 0 0 0.0%
10-32-12200 LICENSE/FEES PLANNING F 2,000 250 450 22.5%
10-32-12300 LICENSE/FEES BLDG PERMI 50,000 6,488 24,264 48.5%
10-32-12301 LICENSES/FEES COUNTY 40,000 2,556 11,200 28.0%
10-32-12400 LICENSE/FEES ANIMAL 1,500 156 580 38.7%
10-32-12500 REMITTANCE FEES SALES TAX 0 106 376 #DIV/0!
10-32-12501 LICENSE/FEES - SPEC EVNTS 0 0 240 #DIV/0!
10-32-12502 LICENSE FEES-SALES TAX 0 1,260 3,775 #DIV/0!
10-32-20000 OTHER PERMITS 500 325 355 71.0%

LICENSES & PERMITS Totals: 100,100 12,091 44,316 44.3%

INTERGOVERNEMENTAL
10-33-00000 INTERGOVERNMENTAL 0 0 0 0.0%
10-33-10000 GRANTS 7,000 8,500 8,500 0.0%
10-33-10800 GRANTS AGNC 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
10-33-13000 GRANTS OTHER 27,890 0 5,000 17.9%
10-33-13100 GRANTS POL UNICOP 0 0 0 0.0%
10-33-13200 GRANTS STATE 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
10-33-13300 GRANTS GOCO 150,000 0 0 0.0%
10-33-13400 GRANTS REDI 0 0 13,653 #DIV/0!
10-33-13500 GRANTS USDA SENIORS 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
10-33-13900 GRANTS JAG 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
10-33-16200 GRANTS ENERGY IMPACT 0 0 5,217 #DIV/0!
10-33-16300 GRANTS MISC COMM PROGRA 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
10-33-20000 MINERAL LEASE FUNDS 150,000 0 0 0.0%
10-33-30000 VIN INSP FEES 1,200 160 440 36.7%
10-33-40000 DARE PROG-RESTR 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
10-33-53600 INT GOVT HWY USERS TAX 304,770 23,958 100,160 32.9%
10-33-53700 INT GOVT CONSERVATION T 85,000 0 33,367 39.3%
10-33-53800 INT GOVT MV REGISTRATIO 45,000 0 0 0.0%
10-33-60000 SEVERANCE TAXES 120,000 0 0 0.0%
10-33-70000 COUNTY R&B 0 0 0 0.0%
10-33-90000 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXE 0 0 0.0%

INTERGOVERNMENTAL Totals: 890,860 32,618 166,336 18.7%

CHARGES FOR SERVICES
10-34-40000 POOL CLEARING 0 242 242 #DIV/0!
10-34-49000 CHARGES POLICE SECURITY 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
10-34-49100 CHARGES SXO REGISTRATION 1,200 250 825 68.8%
10-34-49252 CODE BOOKS 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
10-34-50000 PARKS & REC 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
10-34-54000 PARKS & REC MISCELLANEO 0 125 1,125 #DIV/0!
10-34-54100 PARKS & REC TRAILBUSTER 0 0 0 #DIV/0!

12



CITY OF CRAIG
2019 BUDGET

GENERAL FUND - DETAILED REVENUE SUMMARY

2019
2019 MONTH OF ACTUAL PERCENT

Acct No Account Description Budget MAY YTD YTD

10-34-54200 PARKS & REC AAU BASKETB 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
10-34-60000 MISC PARK FEES 3,500 3,320 4,860 138.9%
10-34-64366 ASPHALT PATCHING 0 2,052 2,877 #DIV/0!
10-34-74300 POOL ADMISSIONS 47,650 0 0 0.0%
10-34-74400 POOL PRIVATE PARTY 1,000 0 0 0.0%
10-34-74500 POOL SWIM LESSONS 16,750 1,500 8,760 52.3%
10-34-74600 POOL PASSES 13,870 375 375 2.7%
10-34-74700 POOL PUNCH PASSES 100 0 0 0.0%
10-34-74800 POOL FITNESS 2,000 440 725 36.3%
10-34-74900 POOL COMM ED 4,050 375 2,295 56.7%
10-34-75000 POOL CONCESSIONS 27,000 0 0 0.0%
10-34-75100 POOL LOCKER FEES 80 0 0 0.0%
10-34-75200 POOL SODA MACHINE 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
10-34-75300 POOL STAFF UNIFORMS 600 0 0 0.0%
10-34-95400 RECREATION PROGRAM FEES 3,050 50 907 29.8%
10-34-95450 RECREATION SENIOR PROGRA 20,000 2,544 6,464 32.3%
10-34-95500 RECREATION CONCESSIONS 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
10-34-95600 RECREATION YOUTH SPORTS 37,400 6,810 30,894 82.6%
10-34-95700 RECREATION ADULT SPORTS 11,440 0 5,040 44.1%
10-34-95800 RECREATION SPECIAL EVEN 81,000 4,577 11,923 14.7%
10-34-95900 RECREATION SPONSOR FEES 4,000 1,375 3,125 78.1%

CHARGES FOR SVC Totals: 274,690 24,034 80,437 29.3%

FINES & COSTS
10-35-00000 FINES AND COSTS 60,000 3,827 18,945 31.6%
10-35-10000 DRUG SURCHARGE 0 0 0 0.0%
10-35-51571 RESTITUTION/ANIMAL CONTRO 0 0 0 0.0%
10-35-52000 CODE ENFORCEMENT - FINES/C 500 0 500 100.0%

FINES & COSTS Totals 60,500 3,827 19,445 32.1%

MISCELLANEOUS
10-36-00000 MISCELLANEOUS 15,000 5,682 9,087 60.6%
10-36-16000 INTEREST CHECKING 100 1,736 5,445 5445.2%
10-36-16100 INTEREST INVESTMENTS 65,000 10,995 50,276 77.3%
10-36-20000 RENTS & ROYALTIES 23,000 2,898 11,390 49.5%
10-36-50000 CONT DOWNTOWN REDEVELOP 0 0 0 #DIV/0!

MISCELLANEOUS Totals: 103,100 21,311 76,198 73.9%

CONTRIBUTIONS
10-37-00000 CONTRIB FROM OTHER GOV 70,000 0 0 0.0%
10-37-10000 CONTRIB PRIVATE 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
10-37-71700 CONTRIBUTION - 911 BOARD 0 0 0 #DIV/0!

CONTRIBUTIONS Totals: 70,000 0 0 0.0%

OTHER
10-39-10000 SALE OF ASSETS 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
10-39-20000 BOND PROCEEDS 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
10-39-99000 REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSE 0 0 0 #DIV/0!

OTHER Totals: 0 0 0 0.0%

GENERAL FUND Totals: 10,724,925 1,045,442 4,075,610 38.0%

13



CITY OF CRAIG
2019 BUDGET

CAPITAL PROJECTS  FUND BUDGET SUMMARY

2019
2019 MONTH OF ACTUAL PERCENT

DESCRIPTION Budget MAY YTD YTD

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE:
Unreserved-Undesignated 306,544 659,925

TOTAL  Beginning Fund Balance 306,544 659,925

REVENUES:
20-31-10000 Property Taxes 140,525 32,912 83,489 59.4%
20-31-11000 Property Taxes Delinquent 0 1 (745) #DIV/0!
20-31-20000 Spec Ownship Taxes 8,000 905 4,551 56.9%
20-31-90000 Int & Pen on Property Taxes 40 4 5 12.0%
20-33-10000 Grants 930,000 0 0 0.0%
20-36-00000 Miscellaneous 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
20-36-16100 Interest Investments 2,000 1,120 6,338 316.9%
20-36-16110 Interest on Spec Asses. 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
20-39-75000 Transfers In 0 0 0 #DIV/0!

TOTAL  Revenues 1,080,565 34,942 93,637 59.4%

EXPENDITURES:
20-81-56100 Treasurers Fees County 2,800 658 931 33.2%
20-81-93116 Capital Enigeering 0 0 0
20-81-95000 Capital Construction 386,825 96,125 125,410 32.4%
20-81-96000 Capital Constr. - CDOT 930,000 0 0
20-81-96000 Capital Constr. - Safe Routes 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
20-81-96100 Capital Enigeering 0 3,381 57,037 #DIV/0!

TOTAL Expenditures 1,319,625 100,164 183,378 13.9%

SOURCES OF FUNDS VS EXPENDITURES (239,060) (89,741)

ENDING FUND BALANCE:
Unreserved-Undesignated 67,484 570,184

TOTAL  Ending Fund Balance 67,484 570,184

14



CITY OF CRAIG
2019 BUDGET

ACET FUND BUDGET SUMMARY

2019
2019 MONTH OF ACTUAL PERCENT

DESCRIPTION Budget MAY YTD YTD

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE:
Unreserved-Undesignated 162,667 184,225

TOTAL  Beginning Fund Balance 162,667 184,225

REVENUES:
21-33-13900 Grants 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
21-35-00000 Fines and Costs 500 327 510 101.9%
21-35-20000 Forfeitures 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
21-36-00000 Miscellaneous 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
21-36-16100 Interest Investments 2,500 287 1,437 57.5%
21-37-00000 Contributions Government 18,700 0 17,424 93.2%

TOTAL  Revenues 21,700 614 19,370 89.3%

EXPENDITURES:
ACET Personal Services 0 0 0 0.0%
ACET Supplies 17,000 94 735 4.3%
ACET Purchased Services 42,290 340 10,062 23.8%
ACET Fixed Charges 12,000 3,000 6,000 50.0%
ACET Other 3,000 3,000 3,000 100.0%
ACET Capital Outlay 0 0 3,753 #DIV/0!

TOTAL Expenditures 74,290 6,433 23,549 31.7%

SOURCES OF FUNDS VS EXPENDITURES (52,590) (4,179)

ENDING FUND BALANCE:
Restricted (State/Federal Forfeiture Funds) 39,894
Unreserved-Undesignated 110,077 140,152

TOTAL  Ending Fund Balance 110,077 180,046

15



CITY OF CRAIG
2019 BUDGET

WATER FUND BUDGET SUMMARY

2019
2019 MONTH OF ACTUAL PERCENT

DESCRIPTION Budget MAY YTD YTD

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE:
Reserved for Debt 430,100 430,100
Uspendable Inventory&CompAbsence 260,313 260,313
Unreserved-Undesignated 2,251,468 3,445,702

TOTAL  Beginning Fund Balance 2,941,881 4,136,115

REVENUES:
50-34-49100 CHARGES METERED WATER 3,020,400 222,627 993,614 32.9%
50-34-49200 CHARGES UNMETERED WATER 75,000 6,064 26,231 35.0%
50-34-49300 CHARGES RECONNECT 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
50-34-49400 CHARGES TAP FEES & PERM 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
50-34-49500 CHARGES SALE OF WATER M 1,000 0 0 0.0%
50-36-00000 MISCELLANEOUS 45,000 3,661 17,010 37.8%
50-36-16100 INTEREST INVESTMENTS 20,000 7,363 37,101 185.5%
50-36-20000 RENTS & ROYALTIES 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
50-36-30000 LATE PAYMENT FEE 68,000 4,845 25,284 37.2%
50-37-00000 CONTRIB FROM OTHER GOV 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
50-39-10000 SALE OF ASSETS 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
50-39-20000 BOND PROCEEDS 3,200,000 0 0 0.0%
50-39-40000 GRANT 1,000,000 0 240,000 24.0%

TOTAL  Revenues 7,429,400 244,560 1,339,240 18.0%

EXPENDITURES:
EXPENDITURES:
Personal Services 1,086,320 84,891 455,904 42.0%
Supplies 187,650 3,149 47,249 25.2%
Purchased Services 919,500 51,163 275,866 30.0%
Elkhead Reservoir 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
Fixed Charges 64,350 0 33,439 52.0%
Debt Service 391,000 0 195,495 50.0%
Capital Outlay 6,229,000 27,686 249,829 4.0%

TOTAL Expenditures 8,877,820 166,889 1,257,782 14.2%

SOURCES OF FUNDS VS EXPENDITURES (1,448,420) 81,458

ENDING FUND BALANCE:
Reserved for Debt 500,000 500,000
Uspendable Inventory&CompAbsence 260,313
Unreserved-Undesignated 993,461 3,457,260

TOTAL  Ending Fund Balance 1,493,461 4,217,573

Fund Bal -Unresv/Undesign (12/31/2019) 1,997,282
Minus:  RESERVE 564,455        25%
SURPLUS  1,432,827 63%

16



CITY OF CRAIG
2019 BUDGET

WASTEWATER FUND BUDGET SUMMARY

2019
2019 MONTH OF ACTUAL PERCENT

DESCRIPTION Budget MAY YTD YTD

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE:
Reserved for Debt 0 0
Uspendable Inventory&CompAbsence 14,468 14,468
Unreserved-Undesignated 1,411,543 1,726,228

TOTAL  Beginning Fund Balance 1,426,011 1,740,696

REVENUES:
60-34-49400 CHARGES TAP FEES & PER 0 2,390 2,390 #DIV/0!
60-34-49600 CHARGES SEWER FEES 1,776,750 150,969 733,155 41.3%
60-34-49700 SEPTAGE FEES 60,000 0 4,621 7.7%
60-36-00000 MISCELLANEOUS 9,000 0 (39) -0.4%
60-36-16100 INTEREST INVESTMENTS 15,000 3,532 17,109 114.1%
60-36-20000 RENTS & ROYALTIES 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
60-37-00000 CONTRIB FROM OTHER GOV 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
60-39-10000 SALE OF ASSETS 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
60-39-40000 GRANT 200,000 0 0 0.0%

TOTAL  Revenues 2,060,750 156,891 757,234 36.7%

EXPENDITURES:
EXPENDITURES:
Personal Services 763,130 69,176 365,807 47.9%
Supplies 61,250 5,822 20,286 33.1%
Purchased Services 567,700 19,882 138,980 24.5%
Fixed Charges 29,025 0 17,429 60.0%
Debt Service 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
Other (Transfers) 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
Capital Outlay 745,400 13,831 21,152 2.8%

TOTAL Expenditures 2,166,505 108,711 563,654 26.0%

SOURCES OF FUNDS VS EXPENDITURES (105,755) 193,580

ENDING FUND BALANCE:
Reserved for Debt Service 0 0
Uspendable Inventory&CompAbsence 0 14,468
Unreserved-Undesignated 1,320,256 1,919,808

TOTAL  Ending Fund Balance 1,320,256 1,934,276

Fund Bal -Unresv/Undesign (12/31/2019) 1,620,473
Minus:  RESERVE 355,276        25%
SURPLUS  1,265,197 89%

17



CITY OF CRAIG
2019 BUDGET

SOLID WASTE FUND BUDGET SUMMARY

2019
2019 MONTH OF ACTUAL PERCENT

DESCRIPTION Budget MAY YTD YTD

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE:
Reserved for Debt 0 0
Unreserved-Undesignated 1,578,212 1,726,349

TOTAL  Beginning Fund Balance 1,578,212 1,726,349

REVENUES:
70-34-49710 CONSTRUCTION DUMPSTERS 107,400 12,704 62,938 58.6%
70-34-49800 CHARGES SOLID WASTE FE 722,000 53,168 289,728 40.1%
70-34-49900 CHARGES LANDFILL 646,500 48,670 262,535 40.6%
70-36-00000 MISCELLANEOUS 8,000 5,304 38,263 478.3%
70-36-10000 RECYCLABLE ELECTRONICS 2,000 700 1,226 61.3%
70-36-16100 INTEREST INVESTMENTS 0 3,469 16,862 #DIV/0!
70-36-30000 LATE PAYMENT FEE 6,000 690 3,030 50.5%
70-39-40000 GRANT 0 0 0 #DIV/0!

TOTAL  Revenues 1,491,900 124,705 674,581 45.2%

EXPENDITURES:
EXPENDITURES:
Personal Services 678,100 49,431 265,123 39.1%
Supplies 110,750 8,217 28,822 26.0%
Purchased Services 515,400 51,610 195,405 37.9%
Fixed Charges 19,800 0 8,597 43.4%
Debt Service 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
Other (Transfers) 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
Capital Outlay 339,000 0 0 0.0%

TOTAL Expenditures 1,663,050 109,257 497,947 29.9%

SOURCES OF FUNDS VS EXPENDITURES (171,150) 176,634

ENDING FUND BALANCE:
Reserved for Debt 0 0
Unreserved-Undesignated 1,407,062 1,902,983

TOTAL  Ending Fund Balance 1,407,062 1,902,983

Fund Bal -Unresv/Undesign (12/31/2019) 1,555,199
Minus:  RESERVE 331,013           25%
SURPLUS  1,224,187 92%

18



CITY OF CRAIG
2019 BUDGET

MEDICAL BENEFITS FUND BUDGET SUMMARY

2019
2019 MONTH OF ACTUAL PERCENT

DESCRIPTION Budget MAY YTD YTD

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE:
Reserve for Unreported/Unpaid Claims
Unreserved-Undesignated 309,801 372,730

TOTAL  Beginning Fund Balance 309,801 372,730

REVENUES:
80-35-10000 Employer Contributions 2,042,420 218,973 823,868 40.3%
80-35-20000 Employee Contributions 227,000 20,404 79,337 35.0%
80-35-30000 Reimbursements 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
80-36-00000 Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0.0%
80-36-10000 Interest  0 8 38 #DIV/0!
80-36-16100 Interest Investments 0 0 0 0.0%
80-39-70000 Transfer In 0 0 0 0.0%

TOTAL  Revenues 2,269,420 239,385 903,242 39.8%

EXPENDITURES:
80-90-85100 Expense Insurance Premiums 2,180,750 170,844 845,704 38.8%
80-90-85200 Expense Administration 7,000 118 572 8.2%
80-90-85800 Expense Claims Paid 63,000 1,971 15,687 24.9%
80-90-85900 Expense Other 0 0 0 0.0%
80-90-86000 Expense Deductible/Buyout 19,000 0 1,500 100.0%

TOTAL Expenditures 2,269,750 172,933 863,463 38.0%

SOURCES OF FUNDS VS EXPENDITURES (330) 39,779

ENDING FUND BALANCE:
Reserve for Unreported/Unpaid Claims 0 0
Unreserved-Undesignated 309,471 412,509

TOTAL  Ending Fund Balance 309,471 412,509

19



COLOTRUST PLUS+

Month End
Balance

Beginning
Balance Withdrawals

Average Daily
Balance

Income
EarnedContributions

2.53%Average Monthly Yield:

Income
Earned

YTD

12,163,299.79 109,543.56 12,299,206.19CO-01-0573-7004 General - 7004 0.00 26,362.84 12,262,129.01127,426.56

12,163,299.79 12,299,206.19109,543.56Total 0.00 26,362.84 12,262,129.01127,426.56

Summary Statement

May 2019

City of Craig

300 West 4th Street
Craig, CO 81625-2713

Email: invest@colotrust.com      Tel: (877) 311-0219 / (303) 864-7474      Fax: (877) 311-0220      www.colotrust.com

Page 1
20



Amount SharesDate

$185,146.86Beginning Balance

Redemptions

Type

Statement Summary

Transaction Summary

Purchases

Market Value

$185,549.38

CRAIG, CO 81625

300 WEST 4TH STREET

U.S.A.

CRAIG, CITY OF - CORE

Interest Distributed

Month End Balance

7 Day Average

Monthly Average

YTD Interest $953.96

$402.52

2.56

BRUCE NELSON

2.55

Month End Shares Owned 92,774.69

Shares Purchased

Shares Redeemed

%

%

$0.00

$0.00

Net Transactions: $0.00

Statement Period:

1675 Broadway, Suite 500
Denver, CO 80202

(303) 296-6340
(800) 541-2953
FAX: (303) 658-3136
www.csafe.org/

05/01/2019  To  05/31/2019

CORE     XX-XXXXX47-02Account Number:

21















































Resolution 12 (2019) 

Compact Between and Amongst Colorado Counties 

for Freedom, Energy and Electricity Production,  

Mining and Agriculture 
 

WHEREAS, the undersigned counties (the “Counties”) support domestic energy 

and electricity production, mining, and agriculture within our counties and all of 

the corresponding benefits to the economy, our nation’s security, our state’s 

financial well-being, and the health of our communities;  

 

WHEREAS, the Colorado General Assembly and the Governor are implementing 

an aggressive and radical agenda that threatens agriculture, all facets of industry 

and our cherished way of life;  

 

WHEREAS, the Counties oppose heavy-handed state and federal regulation of 

energy and electricity production, mining and agriculture within our counties; 

 

WHEREAS, the Counties oppose the taking of private property, without just 

compensation, including but not limited to mineral rights; and 

 

WHEREAS unfunded mandates along with heavy-handed state and federal 

regulations have a detrimental impact on our local economies;  

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Counties will: 

 

A. Support local jobs and industries that depend upon energy and electricity 

production, mining and agriculture;   

 

B. Oppose onerous state regulation of energy and electricity production, 

agriculture and mining; 

 

C. Oppose the taking of private property, without just compensation, by 

federal or state regulatory or legislative action;    

 

D. Balance energy and electricity production, mining and agriculture within 

our counties with environmental protections, public health and safety and 

recreation;  

 

E. Coordinate permitting within our jurisdictions to avoid duplication and 

facilitate responsible development;  

 

F. Streamline county permitting processes to the maximum extent possible; 

and 



 

G. Set an example for good governance in an environment conducive to 

industry, agriculture and economic growth for the good of our counties, our 

state and our nation. 

 

Resolution AGNC 12 (2019) duly approved by a vote of the City Council on the 

25th day of June 2019.  

 

 

Jarrod Ogden, Mayor 

 

Resolution Adopted by the following local governments:  

 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 13 (2019) 

 

SUPPORTING THE CREATION OF A CNCC AND CCCS LEADERSHIP PARTNERSHIP FOR COMMUNITY 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

 

Whereas, the business, education, and government leaders, jointly, and on behalf of the citizens of Craig/Moffat County, 

propose to help restore a collaborative working relationship between the Craig/Moffat County, the Colorado Northwestern 

Community College (CNCC), and the Colorado Community College System (CCCS) leadership, as well as to create positive 

changes to the CNCC operations and delivery of high quality, relevant educational and career opportunities for all of 

Craig/Moffat County. 

 

Whereas, the business, education, and government leaders of Craig and Moffat County seek to mandate reform within 

CNCC and request a collaborative effort and partnership with CCCS for our continued economic viability while providing 

responsible financial stewardship and respecting the community concerns and judgement of our fellow citizens. 

 

Whereas, the business, education, and government leaders of Craig and Moffat County acknowledge that strengthening the 

CNCC and CCCS partnership is essential to serving the citizens of the local community and its pursuit of overall educational, 

business, and cultural progress.   

   

Whereas, Craig/Moffat County is currently a predominantly energy reliant community during a period of economic 

uncertainty, and the development and expansion of CNCC-Craig is a key element to our long-term economic viability.  

  

Whereas, CNCC and CCCS are required to initiate immediate proactive measures to lead the development of the CNCC-

Craig Campus with economic development as the CNCC Senior Leadership Team’s priority goal and mandate of CCCS.  

Whereas, the achievement of positive change and development requires that the CNCC Senior Leadership Team be actively 

engaged in the local community in leading change with specific, measurable, and time-specific goals.  

 

Whereas, the CNCC Senior Leadership Team shall immediately lead and develop the following priority initiatives:  (1) 

on-campus student-housing, (2) athletic programs, and (3) auxiliary student development programs to demonstrate that the 

CNCC-Craig campus is a first-choice educational institution for students seeking academic degrees and certifications in the 

allied health, technical, trades, paleontology, and the arts career fields.  

Whereas, the CCCS leadership must initiate immediate operational changes at CNCC to accomplish Craig/Moffat County 

community goals. 

 

Whereas, Craig/Moffat County business, education, and government leaders request that the CCCS Board and Chancellor 

openly engage with the Craig/Moffat County community and commit human and financial resources to create and submit 

to the citizens of Craig/Moffat County within a 90-day timeframe a fully transparent and public CNCC development plan 

containing specific, measurable and timely goals in support of growth, economic development, and positive operational 

changes. 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF CRAIG, COLORADO: 

 

1. The City Council of Craig, Colorado supports the creation of a Craig/Moffat County business, education, and 

government, CNCC and CCCS leadership partnership to deliver CNCC strategic financial and operational changes 

focused on the improvement of overall community quality of life and enhanced economic opportunities for the 

community members of Craig/Moffat County. 

 

2. The City Council of Craig, Colorado supports the development of a 90-day fully executable CNCC development plan 

through this collaborative process containing specific, measurable and timely goals in support of Craig/Moffat County 

growth, economic development, and positive operational changes.  

 

  



2 

 

Adopted this ____ day of ____________________, 2019.  

 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF CRAIG, COLORADO 
 

        By:   

 

 

 

 

        _____________________ 

        Jarrod Ogden, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

____________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 



ORDINANCE 1086 (2019) 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 15.02 OF THE CRAIG MUNICIPAL CODE 

CONCERNING THE ADOPTION OF UPDATED CODE VERSIONS, AND REPEALING 

CHAPTER 15.08 ENTITLED “NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE” 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Craig has adopted rules and regulation concerning building code 

requirements for all real property located within city limits, which rules and regulations set 

minimum standards for the design and construction of buildings to ensure the safety and health 

for people in or about those buildings; and 

 

WHEREAS, building codes are occasionally updated at a national level resulting in the adoption 

of updated versions of building and other related codes; and 

 

WHEREAS, by this ordinance together with other related ordinances being considered at this 

time, the City Council updates the building rules and regulations to remain current within this 

area. 

WHEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CRAIG, 
COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.   Chapter 15.02 of the Craig Municipal Code entitled “Procedure for Adoption of 
Updated Code Versions” shall be amended to read in its entirety as follows (note: this is a 
redline version of the changes to the Craig Municipal Code, with language to be eliminated 
designated with strikethrough notation and new language shown in red): 
 

Chapter 15.02 

Procedure for Adoption of Updated Code Versions 

15.02.010 - Procedure established.  

The procedure for adoption of updated versions of any uniform code used by the city in this 

Title 15 shall be as set forth in this Chapter 15.02 as follows:  

A.  The city must adopt by ordinance new updated versions of all codes with any additions, 

deletions or modifications thereto within one (1) year of the date of publication of the new 

codes. In order for the Building Official to enforce any edition of the code, it must be 

specifically adopted by ordinance. 

B.  Prior to adoption by ordinance the city should allow review and comment by the city building 

official, the board of appeals and the public. Any additions, deletions or modifications to the 

updated version of a model code should be made only upon a strong showing that the proposed 

change to the model code serves an important public purpose.  

 

15.02.020 - Effective date of unadopted code.  

In the event that an updated version of a model code has not been adopted by ordinance by 

the date one (1) year from publication of such update, the city building official shall enforce such 

updated code as if the code had been passed by ordinance.  

 

15.02.030 - Present edition of codes.  



A.  This chapter does not itself change any of the currently adopted codes until such codes are 

specifically changed by ordinance.  

B.  All codes already adopted by reference to a specifically dated version shall remain adopted 

as the specifically referenced version. All codes presently adopted by reference to the current 

version shall remain adopted as the current version until a new updated version is specifically 

adopted in accordance with the procedure set out in Chapter 15.02.  

 

Section 2. REPEAL OF CHAPTER 15.08:  Chapter 15.08 entitled “National Electrical Code” is 

repealed in its entirety. 

Section 3.  EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Ordinance shall take effect ten (10) days after passage and 

upon publication of such ordinance after passage.   

Section 4.  PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY:  The City Council deems it appropriate to publish 

the title of this Ordinance, together with a summary of the Ordinance and with the statement that 

the text is available for public inspection and acquisition in the office of the City Clerk. 

   

Section 5.  PUBLIC PURPOSE:  The City Council of the City of Craig herewith finds and 

determines that this Ordinance is necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and 

safety.  This Ordinance is enacted pursuant to the City’s authority to act under its police power to 

protect and preserve the general welfare of the City and its citizens. 
 

 READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED ON FIRST READING THIS 

____________ DAY OF ______________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO.  

  

                    ______________________________ 

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 

 

 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED AFTER HEARING ON SECOND READING 

THIS ______ DAY OF _____________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

 

 

       ________________________________  

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 



ORDINANCE 1087 (2019) 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 15.04 OF THE CRAIG MUNICIPAL CODE 

CONCERNING THE INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Craig has adopted rules and regulation concerning building code 

requirements for all real property located within city limits, which rules and regulations set 

minimum standards for the design and construction of buildings to ensure the safety and health 

for people in or about those buildings; and 

 

WHEREAS, building codes are occasionally updated at a national level resulting in the adoption 

of updated versions of building and other related codes; and 

 

WHEREAS, by this ordinance together with other related ordinances being considered at this 

time, the City Council updates the building rules and regulations to remain current within this 

area. 

WHEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CRAIG, 
COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.   Chapter 15.04 of the Craig Municipal Code entitled “International Building 
Code” shall be amended to read in its entirety as follows (note: this is a redline version of the 
changes to the Craig Municipal Code, with language to be eliminated designated with 
strikethrough notation and new language shown in red): 

 

Chapter 15.04   

 

International Building Code 

15.04.010 - Document adopted; copies on file.  

Pursuant to Title 31, Article 16, Sections 201 through 208, C.R.S., there is adopted as the 

building code of the city, by reference thereto, the International Building Code, 2006 2018 

edition, published by the International Code Council, Inc., 4051 West Flossmoor Road, Country 

Club Hills, IL 60478-5795, of which three (3) two (2) copies are now filed in the office of the 

city clerk, and which may be inspected during regular business hours, the same being adopted as 

if set out at length. There is further adopted all appendices of such codes and regulations. IBC 

Section 101.1 (Title) is modified by the addition of the term “City of Craig” where 

indicated. 
 

15.04.020 - Additions, modifications and deletions.  

The adopted code is subject to the additions, modifications or deletions set forth in Sections 

15.04.030 through 15.04.065.  

          

15.04.030 - Additions or modifications; moving of buildings.  

For a permit to move a building through or across any public street, alley or highway, a fifty-

dollar fee shall be required. Before issuance of a moving permit, the following requirements shall 

be met:  



A.  No dwelling shall be moved until it meets the minimum area and sanitary requirements set 

forth in the zoning ordinance codified in Title 16 of this code. It shall be the duty of the 

building official to establish the fact that minimum area and sanitary requirements have been 

met.  

B.  No building, dwelling or structure shall be moved until it complies structurally with the 

requirements set forth in this code for new buildings. It shall be the duty of the building official 

to establish the fact that structural requirements have been met.  

C.  No dwelling shall be moved until the owner agrees in writing that all zoning requirements 

will be complied with fully, pertaining to use, area and height of that district into which 

movement is requested. It shall be the duty of the zoning administrator to secure this statement.  

D.  No dwelling shall be moved until three (3) days after the building inspector has been 

presented with a written report establishing the fact that the appraised value of the dwelling 

to be moved equals or exceeds the average appraised value of all dwellings on each side of 

the street within the city block in which the owner wishes to move the dwelling. All appraisals 

shall be made by members of the National Real Estate Brokerage Association and in strict 

accordance with the standards established by this organization. The cost of such appraisal 

shall be borne by the owner requesting a moving permit. It shall be the duty of the building 

inspector to assure himself or herself that an authentic, written appraisal has been received 

before any permit shall be issued.  

E.  No building, dwelling or structure shall be moved until the owner thereof supplies the city 

clerk with the gross overall width of the vehicle performing the movement, the route to be 

followed and the time of movement.  

F.  No permit shall be issued until after all public utilities have been notified and a police escort 

has been provided.  

G.  No permit shall be issued until Subsections A through F of this section have been fully 

complied with and/or until payment for such permit has been received.  

H.  None of the requirements of this section shall apply to the moving of tool houses owned and 

moved by licensed contractors to construction sites within the corporate limits for use as tool 

shed only.  

I.  After such structure shall have been moved, the same shall be subject to all applicable 

inspections as set forth in Section 109 and/or Section R109 of the International Building Code 

and/or International Residential Code, current editions, and the same shall not be occupied 

until such inspections have been made and the applicable certificates of occupancy or 

compliance are issued.  

 

15.04.040 - Additions or modifications; demolition of buildings.  

A.  A permit will be required for the demolition of a structure. In demolishing any structure or 

part thereof, one (1) story at a time shall be completely removed. No material shall be placed 

upon the floor of any building in the course of demolition. Substantial protection for the 

public, to be approved by the building inspector, shall be provided when demolishing any 

building within ten (10) feet of a public thoroughfare. No material which has been removed 

from a building in the course of demolition shall be stored on any street, alley or other public 

way. When any building has been demolished, the person, firm or corporation who has 



performed the work shall immediately clear the adjacent streets, alleys and other public ways 

of all rubbish, refuse and loose material resulting from such demolition.  

B.  The wrecking contractor shall fill all excavations level with the adjoining grade or enclose 

the excavation with a substantial, tight board fence not less than five (5) feet high extending 

around the excavation on all sides.  

C.  The fee for a demolition permit in all zoning districts shall be one hundred dollars ($100.00).  

 

15.04.043 - Additions or modifications; snow loads.  

A.  Snow Loads.  

1.  Snow loads, full or unbalanced, shall be considered in place of loads set forth in the 

International Building Code Table 1607.1 Section 1608 and International Residential 

Code Figure R-305.2(1)  R-301.2(6)  where such loading will result in larger members or 

connections.  

2.  Potential accumulations of snow at valleys, parapets, roof structures and offsets in roofs 

of uneven configuration shall be considered. Snow loads for the city shall be forty (40) 

pounds.  

3.  Any remodeling of existing buildings that may affect the roof load shall be certified or 

have recommendation for snow load by an architect or engineer registered by the state.  

B.  Standardization Tables. The standardization tables shall be in the building code standards.  

 

15.04.045 - Section 105.2.  

Chapters 1 of the International Building Code and International Residential Code are amended 

by the repeal and reenactment of Sections 105.2 and R105.2 to read as follows:  

“Section 105.2 Work Exempt from Permit. A building permit shall not be required for 

the following:  

"1. Unattached accessory structures, one hundred twenty (120) two hundred (200) 

square feet or less, used for tools, storage or playhouses and similar uses, for residential 

dwellings only. This includes both site-built and pre-fabricated structures which are 

delivered as one unit. 

"2. Walks, sidewalk repairs and driveways not more than thirty (30) inches above 

grade, and not over any basement or story below.  

"3. Painting and wallpapering, tiling, carpeting, cabinets, counter tops and similar 

finish work.  

"4. Paneling when no structural alterations are being done to alter the occupancy or 

construction of the building. This applies to single-family dwellings only.  

"5. Window awnings on residential buildings only.  

"6. Temporary motion picture, television and theater stage sets and scenery.  

"7. Prefabricated swimming pools accessory to a Group R-3 occupancy that are less 

than twenty-four (24) inches (610 mm) deep, do not exceed five thousand (5,000) gallons 

(18,925 L) and are installed entirely above ground.  



"8. Shade cloth structures constructed for nursery or agricultural purposes, not 

including service systems.  

"9. Residential and commercial overhead garage door installations when no 

structural alterations are required to openings.  

"10. Installation of replacement windows when no structural alterations are required 

to openings.  

"11. Swings and other playground equipment accessory to detached one- and two-

family dwellings.  

"12. Movable cases, counters and partitions not over five (5) feet nine (9) inches 

high."  

 

15.04.049 - Additions; permit issuance.  

A.  No permit shall be issued to any person to do or to cause to be done any work regulated by 

this chapter, except to a person holding a valid, unexpired and unrevoked contractor's license 

as required by the city or as otherwise provided in this section.  

B.  Any permit required by this chapter may be issued to any person to do any work 

regulated by this chapter in a single-family dwelling used exclusively for living purposes, 

including the usual accessory buildings and quarters in connection with such buildings, if that 

person is the bona fide owner of any such dwelling and accessory buildings and quarters and 

such premises are occupied by or designed to be occupied by such owner, provided that the 

owner shall personally purchase all material and shall personally perform all labor in 

connection therewith.  

         Exceptions: 

                1. Property owners who are the bona fide owner of a one or two-family dwelling 

which they use as a rental property and is not their primary residence, may acquire 

building permits for the following: 

                     

                      1.1. Including, but not limited to roofing, siding, decks, covered 

porches/patios, interior framing, drywall and accessory buildings without living quarters, 

provided that the owner shall personally acquire the permit, purchase all material and 

shall personally perform all labor in connection therewith. 

           

2. Property owners shall not acquire the following permits for a property that is not 

their primary residence. 

               

                2.1. Plumbing, Mechanical, and Electrical permits. 

                2.1. Building permits for a new residence/dwelling, or one which would add living 

space to an existing structure. 

        

Note: This exception applies to one and two-family dwellings only, all commercial 

properties require a properly licensed contractor to acquire the permit and perform the 

work. 

 



15.04.050 - Additions; permit fees.  

A.  A permit shall not be valid until the fees prescribed below have been paid, nor shall an 

amendment to a permit be released until the additional fee, if any, has been paid.  

B.  Any person who commences any work on a building, structure or associated systems before 

obtaining the necessary permits shall be subject to a doubling of the normally imposed permit 

fee for such work.  

C.  Regular building permit fees shall be based upon project valuation exclusive of the cost of 

real property. Determination of the value of a project may be based upon the table below, or 

upon credible documentation of actual costs, provided by the permit applicant.  

Table 15.04.050(1)  

Project Valuation / Square Foot Construction Costs* 2018 

Occupancy/Us

e Group**  

Type of Construction  

1A  1B  2A  2B  3A  3B  4  5A  5B  

A, Assembly  

 A-1, theaters 

with stage  

$244.2

1  

$236.1

8  

$230.5

5  

$221.0

1  

$207.8

2  

$201.8

2  

$214.0

2  

$189.8

3  

$182.7

1  

 A-1, theaters 

without stage  
223.45  215.42  209.80  200.25  187.31  181.32  193.26  169.33  162.21  

 A-2, 

nightclubs  
190.08  184.73  180.34  172.99  163.33   158.82   166.99  147.83  142.92  

 A-2, 

restaurants , 

bars, banquet 

halls  

189.08  183.73  178.34  171.99  161.33  157.82  165.99  145.83  141.92  

 A-3, 

churches  
224.47  216.44  210.82  201.27  189.73  183.73  194.28  171.74  164.62  

 A-3, general, 

community 

halls, libraries, 

museums  

188.77  180.74  174.11  165.57  151.59  146.63  158.58  133.64  127.52  

 A-4, arenas  222.45  214.42  207.80  199.25  185.31  180.32  192.26  167.33  161.21  

B, Business  195.88  188.76  182.90  173.98  159.08  153.13  167.31  139.76  133.67  

E, 

Educational  
207.44  200.32  195.11  186.22  173.62  164.85  179.83  151.63  147.30  

F, Factory and Industrial  

 F-1, 

moderate 

hazard  

115.30  109.99  103.87  99.84  89.72  85.56  95.69  73.79  69.57  



 F-2, low 

hazard  
114.30  108.99  103.87  98.84  89.72  84.56  94.69  73.79  68.57  

H, High Hazard  

 H-1, 

explosives  
107.85  102.54  97.43  92.40  83.50  78.33  88.25  67.57  N.P.  

 H-2/3/4 high 

hazard  
107.85  102.54  97.43  92.40  83.50  78.33  88.25  67.57  62.34  

 H-5 HPM  195.88  188.76  182.90  173.98  159.08  153.13  167.31  139.76  133.67  

I, Institutional  

 I-1, 

supervised 

environment  

194.98  188.36  182.90  175.20  161.40   157.01   175.29  144.58  140.08  

 I-2, hospitals  327.69  320.57  314.72  305.80  289.87  N.P.  299.12  270.56  N.P.  

 I-2, nursing 

homes  
227.45  220.30  214.47  205.56  191.65  N.P.  198.88  172.34  N.P.  

 I-3, 

restrained  
222.66  215.54  209.69  200.77  187.11  180.16  194.09  167.80  159.71  

 I-4, day care 

facilities  
194.98  188.36  182.90  175.20  161.40  157.01  175.29  144.58  140.08  

M, 

Mercantile  
141.54  136.19  130.80  124.45  114.24  110.73  118.45  98.74  94.83  

R, Residential  

 R-1, hotels  196.81  190.20  184.74  177.03  162.97  158.58  177.13  146.15  141.65  

 R-2, multiple 

family  
165.05  158.44  152.98  145.27  132.00  127.61  145.37  115.18  110.68  

 R-3, one- and 

two-family  
154.04  149.85  145.98  142.32  137.11  133.50  139.93  128.29  120.75  

 open 

carports, decks 

and porches  

       30.45  28.70  

 garages-see 

Utility, 

miscellaneous  

         

 R-4, 

care/assisted 

living facilities  

194.98  188.36  182.90  175.20  161.40   157.01  175.29  144.58  140.08  

S, Storage  



 S-1, 

moderate 

hazard  

106.85  101.54  95.43  91.40  81.50  77.33  87.25  65.57  61.34  

 S-2, low 

hazard  
105.85  100.54  95.43  90.40  81.50  76.33   86.25  65.57  60.34  

U, Utility, 

miscellaneous  
83.66  79.00  74.06  70.37  63.47  59.32  67.24  50.19  47.80  

  *   For shell-only buildings deduct 20%  

N.P. = not permitted  

Unfinished basements (all use groups) = $20.35; semi-finished basements = $26.65  

Value of roofing per square foot calculated at $.90 for asphalt or $1.70 for Propanel. 

**   From 2006  2018 International Building Code with city amendments  

Table 15.04.050(2) 

Building Permit Fees  

Value  Permit Fee  Plan Check  Total  

$ 500.00  $ 23.50  $ 15.28  $ 38.78  

600.00  26.55  17.26  43.81  

700.00  29.60  19.24  48.84  

800.00  32.65  21.22  53.87  

900.00  35.70  23.20  58.90  

1,000.00  38.75  25.19  63.94  

1,100.00  41.80  27.17  68.97  

1,200.00  44.85  29.15  74.00  

1,300.00  47.90  31.14  79.04  

1,400.00  50.95  33.12  84.07  

1,500.00  54.00  35.10  89.10  

1,600.00  57.05  37.08  94.13  

1,700.00  60.10  39.07  99.17  

1,800.00  63.15  41.05  104.20  

1,900.00  66.20  43.03  109.23  

2,000.00  69.25  45.18  114.43  

3,000.00  83.25  54.11  137.36  

4,000.00  97.25  63.21  160.46  



5,000.00  111.25  72.31  183.56  

6,000.00  125.25  81.41  206.66  

7,000.00  139.25  90.51  229.76  

8,000.00  153.25  99.61  252.86  

9,000.00  167.25  108.71  275.96  

10,000.00  181.25  117.81  299.06  

11,000.00  195.25  126.91  322.16  

12,000.00  209.25  136.01  345.26  

13,000.00  223.25  145.11  368.36  

14,000.00  237.25  154.21  391.46  

15,000.00  251.25  163.31  414.56  

16,000.00  265.25  172.41  437.66  

17,000.00  279.25  181.51  460.76  

18,000.00  293.25  190.61  483.86  

19,000.00  307.25  199.71  506.96  

20,000.00  321.25  208.81  530.06  

21,000.00  335.25  217.91  553.16  

22,000.00  349.25  227.01  576.26  

23,000.00  363.25  236.11  599.36  

24,000.00  377.25  245.21  622.46  

25,000.00  391.25  254.31  645.56  

26,000.00  401.85  261.20  663.05  

27,000.00  411.95  267.77  679.72  

28,000.00  422.05  274.33  696.38  

29,000.00  432.15  280.90  713.05  

30,000.00  442.25  287.63  729.88  

31,000.00  452.35  294.03  746.38  

32,000.00  462.45  300.59  763.04  

33,000.00  472.55  307.16  779.71  

34,000.00  482.65  313.72  796.37  

35,000.00  492.75  320.29  813.04  

36,000.00  502.85  326.85  829.70  



37,000.00  512.95  333.42  846.37  

38,000.00  523.05  340.28  863.33  

39,000.00  533.15  346.55  879.70  

40,000.00  543.25  353.11  896.36  

41,000.00  553.35  359.68  913.03  

42,000.00  563.45  366.24  929.69  

43,000.00  573.55  372.81  946.36  

44,000.00  583.65  379.50  963.15  

45,000.00  593.75  385.94  979.69  

46,000.00  603.85  392.50  996.35  

47,000.00  613.95  399.08  1,013.03  

48,000.00  624.05  405.63  1,029.68  

49,000.00  634.15  412.20  1,046.35  

50,000.00  644.25  418.76  1,063.01  

51,000.00  650.75  422.99  1,073.74  

52,000.00  657.75  427.54  1,085.29  

53,000.00  664.75  432.09  1,096.84  

54,000.00  671.75  436.64  1,108.39  

55,000.00  678.75  441.19  1,119.94  

56,000.00  685.75  445.74  1,131.49  

57,000.00  692.75  450.29  1,143.04  

58,000.00  699.75  454.84  1,154.59  

59,000.00  706.75  459.39  1,166.14  

60,000.00  713.75  463.94  1,177.69  

61,000.00  720.75  468.49  1,189.24  

62,000.00  727.75  473.04  1,200.79  

63,000.00  734.75  477.59  1,212.34  

64,000.00  741.75  482.14  1,223.89  

65,000.00  748.75  486.69  1,235.44  

66,000.00  755.75  491.24  1,246.99  

67,000.00  762.75  495.79  1,258.54  

68,000.00  769.75  500.34  1,270.09  



69,000.00  776.75  504.89  1,281.64  

70,000.00  783.75  509.44  1,293.19  

71,000.00  790.75  513.99  1,304.74  

72,000.00  797.75  518.54  1,316.29  

73,000.00  804.75  523.09  1,327.84  

74,000.00  811.75  527.64  1,339.39  

75,000.00  818.75  532.19  1,350.94  

76,000.00  825.75  536.74  1,362.49  

77,000.00  832.75  541.29  1,374.04  

78,000.00  839.75  545.84  1,385.59  

79,000.00  846.75  550.39  1,397.14  

80,000.00  853.75  554.94  1,408.69  

81,000.00  860.75  559.49  1,420.24  

82,000.00  867.75  564.04  1,431.79  

83,000.00  874.75  568.59  1,443.34  

84,000.00  881.75  573.14  1,454.89  

85,000.00  888.75  577.69  1,466.44  

86,000.00  895.75  582.24  1,477.99  

87,000.00  902.75  586.79  1,489.54  

88,000.00  909.75  591.34  1,501.09  

89,000.00  916.75  595.89  1,512.64  

90,000.00  923.75  600.44  1,524.19  

91,000.00  930.75  604.99  1,535.74  

92,000.00  937.75  609.54  1,547.29  

93,000.00  944.75  614.09  1,558.84  

94,000.00  951.75  618.64  1,570.39  

95,000.00  958.75  623.19  1,581.94  

96,000.00  965.75  627.74  1,593.49  

97,000.00  972.75  632.29  1,605.04  

98,000.00  979.75  636.84  1,616.59  

99,000.00  986.75  641.39  1,628.14  

100,000.00  993.75  645.94  1,639.69  



Over  

100,000.00  

993.75 plus  

$5.60/$1,000  

65% of  

permit fee  

As  

calculated  

Over  

500,000.00  

3,233.75 plus  

$4.75/ $1,000  

over $500 k  

  

Over  

1,000,000.00  

5,608.75 plus  

$3.15/ $1,000  

over $1  

million  

  

Manufactured housing permit fee  

Single-wide  

units  
145.00    

Double-wide  

units  
220.00    

  

15.04.065 - Deletions.  

Section 113 (Board of Appeals) of the International Building Code and Section R112 of the 

International Residential Code are deleted and are not adopted as part of the code.  

15.04.070 - Violation; penalty.  

Any person or persons violating any of the provisions of this chapter or of the International 

Building Code, adopted as set forth in this chapter, shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, 

upon conviction, shall be fined in the sum not to exceed one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) or by 

imprisonment for not more than one hundred eighty (180) days, or by both such fine and 

imprisonment. Each day that such a violation is permitted to exist shall constitute a separate 

offense.  

15.04.085 - Safety.  

The city council finds, declares and determines that this chapter is necessary for the 

preservation of the public peace, health and safety.  

Section 2.  EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Ordinance shall take effect ten (10) days after passage and 

upon publication of such ordinance after passage.   

Section 3.  PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY:  The City Council deems it appropriate to publish 

the title of this Ordinance, together with a summary of the Ordinance and with the statement that 

the text is available for public inspection and acquisition in the office of the City Clerk.   

 

Section 4.  PUBLIC PURPOSE:  The City Council of the City of Craig herewith finds and 

determines that this Ordinance is necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and 

safety.  This Ordinance is enacted pursuant to the City’s authority to act under its police power to 

protect and preserve the general welfare of the City and its citizens. 



 READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED ON FIRST READING THIS 

____________ DAY OF ______________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

                             ______________________________ 

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 

 

 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED AFTER HEARING ON SECOND READING 

THIS ______ DAY OF _____________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

 

 

       ________________________________  

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 

 

 

 



ORDINANCE 1088 (2019) 

 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING A NEW CHAPTER 15.06 OF THE CRAIG MUNICIPAL 

CODE CONCERNING THE INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL CODE 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Craig has adopted rules and regulation concerning building code 

requirements for all real property located within city limits, which rules and regulations set 

minimum standards for the design and construction of buildings to ensure the safety and health 

for people in or about those buildings; and 

 

WHEREAS, building codes are occasionally updated at a national level resulting in the adoption 

of updated versions of building and other related codes; and 

 

WHEREAS, by this ordinance together with other related ordinances being considered at this 

time, the City Council updates the building rules and regulations to remain current within this 

area. 

WHEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CRAIG, 
COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.   Chapter 15.06 of the Craig Municipal Code entitled “International Residential  
Code” shall be adopted to read in its entirety as follows (note: this is a redline version of the 
changes to the Craig Municipal Code, with language to be eliminated designated with 
strikethrough notation and new language shown in red): 

 

 

Chapter 15.06  

 

International Residential Code 
 

15.06.010 - Document adopted; copies on file.  

Pursuant to Title 31, Article 16, Sections 201 through 208, C.R.S., there is adopted as the 

building code for one and two family dwellings of the city, by reference thereto, the International 

Residential Code, 2018 edition, published by the International Code Council, Inc., 4051 West 

Flossmoor Road, Country Club Hills, IL 60478-5795, of which two (2) copies are now filed in the 

office of the city clerk, and which may be inspected during regular business hours, the same being 

adopted as if set out at length. There is further adopted all appendices of such codes and 

regulations.  

15.06.020 - Additions, modifications and deletions.  

The adopted code is subject to the additions, modifications or deletions set forth in Sections 

15.06.030 through 15.06.065.  

15.06.030 - Modifications; Title 

        IRC Section 101.1 (Title) is modified by the addition of the term “City of Craig” where 

indicated.  

 

15.06.040 - Additions or modifications; demolition of buildings.  



A.  A permit will be required for the demolition of a structure. In demolishing any structure or 

part thereof, one (1) story at a time shall be completely removed. No material shall be placed 

upon the floor of any building in the course of demolition. Substantial protection for the 

public, to be approved by the building inspector, shall be provided when demolishing any 

building within ten (10) feet of a public thoroughfare. No material which has been removed 

from a building in the course of demolition shall be stored on any street, alley or other public 

way. When any building has been demolished, the person, firm or corporation who has 

performed the work shall immediately clear the adjacent streets, alleys and other public ways 

of all rubbish, refuse and loose material resulting from such demolition.  

B.  The wrecking contractor shall fill all excavations level with the adjoining grade or enclose 

the excavation with a substantial, tight board fence not less than five (5) feet high extending 

around the excavation on all sides.  

C.     The fee for a demolition permit in all zoning districts shall be one hundred dollars ($100.00).  

 

15.06.043 - Additions or modifications; snow loads.  

A.  Snow Loads.  

1.  Snow loads, full or unbalanced, shall be considered in place of loads set forth in the  

International Residential Code Figure R-301.2(6), where such loading will result in larger 

members or connections.  

2.  Potential accumulations of snow at valleys, parapets, roof structures and offsets in roofs 

of uneven configuration shall be considered. Snow loads for the city shall be forty (40) 

pounds.  

3.  Any remodeling of existing buildings that may affect the roof load shall be certified or 

have recommendation for snow load by an architect or engineer registered by the state.  

B.  Standardization Tables. The standardization tables shall be in the building code standards.  

 

15.04.045 - Section 105.2.  

Chapters 1 of the International Building Code and International Residential Code are amended 

by the repeal and reenactment of Sections 105.2 and R105.2 to read as follows:  

"Section 105.2 Work Exempt from Permit. A building permit shall not be required for 

the following:  

"1. Unattached accessory structures, two hundred (200) square feet or less, used for 

tools, storage or playhouses and similar uses. This includes both site-built and pre-

fabricated structures which are delivered as one unit.  

"2. Walks, sidewalk repairs and driveways not more than thirty (30) inches above 

grade, and not over any basement or story below.  

"3. Painting and wallpapering, tiling, carpeting, cabinets, counter tops and similar 

finish work.  

"4. Paneling when no structural alterations are being done to alter the occupancy or 

construction of the building. This applies to single-family dwellings only.  



"5. Window awnings on residential buildings only.  

"6. Temporary motion picture, television and theater stage sets and scenery.  

"7. Prefabricated swimming pools accessory to a Group R-3 occupancy that are less 

than twenty-four (24) inches (610 mm) deep, do not exceed five thousand (5,000) gallons 

(18,925 L) and are installed entirely above ground.  

"8. Shade cloth structures constructed for nursery or agricultural purposes, not 

including service systems.  

"9. Residential and commercial overhead garage door installations when no 

structural alterations are required to openings.  

"10. Installation of replacement windows when no structural alterations are required 

to openings.  

"11. Swings and other playground equipment accessory to detached one- and two-

family dwellings.  

"12. Movable cases, counters and partitions not over five (5) feet nine (9) inches 

high."  

                     “13. Decks not exceeding two (200) hundred square feet in area, that are more than  

              thirty (30) inches above grade at any point, and are not attached to the dwelling. 

                               

15.06.049   Exceptions: 

                1. Property owners who are the bona fide owner of a one or two-family dwelling which 

they use as a rental property and is not their primary residence, may acquire building permits for 

the following: 

                     

                      1.1. Including, but not limited to roofing, siding, decks, covered porches/patios, 

interior framing, drywall and accessory buildings without living quarters, provided that the 

owner shall personally acquire the permit, purchase all material and shall personally perform all 

labor in connection therewith. 

           

2. Property owners shall not acquire the following permits for a property that is not their 

primary residence. 

               

                2.1. Plumbing, Mechanical, and Electrical permits. 

                2.1. Building permits for a new residence/dwelling, or one which would add living 

space to an existing structure. 

        

Note: This exception applies to one and two-family dwellings only, all commercial 

properties require a properly licensed contractor to acquire the permit and perform the work. 

          

15.06.050 - Additions; permit fees.  

A.  A permit shall not be valid until all fees have been paid, nor shall an amendment to a permit 

be released until the additional fee, if any, has been paid.  



B.  Any person who commences any work on a building, structure or associated systems before 

obtaining the necessary permits shall be subject to a doubling of the normally imposed permit 

fee for such work.  

C.  See section 15.04.049 of this code for valuation information and permit fee schedule. 

 (Ord. 967 §1, 2007) 

15.06.065 - Deletions.  

   1. IRC Section R112 (Board of Appeals) is deleted and is not adopted as part of the code.  

    2. IRC Section R302.13 (Fire protection of floors) is deleted and not adopted as part of the 

code. 

    3. IRC Section R313 (Automatic Fire Sprinkler Systems) is deleted and not adopted as part of 

this code.  

    4. IRC Section N1102.4.1.2 (R402.4.1.2) (Testing) is deleted and not adopted as part of this 

code. 

    5. IRC Section N1102.4.4 (R402.4.4) (Rooms containing fuel burning appliances) is deleted 

and not adopted as part of this code. 

        

15.06.066 - Modifications 

 

 1. IRC Table R-301.2(1). Table R-301.2(1) is filled to provide the following: 

      

     Roof snow load (non-reducible):   40 LB             .          

     Wind speed:                                       90 mph        . 

     Seismic design category:                  B                   . 

     Weathering:                                        Severe         . 

     Frost line depth:                                 48 inches     .  

     Termite:                                               None             . 

     Winter design temp:                          1 degree      . 

     Ice barrier underlayment required: Yes               . 

     Flood hazards:                                      FIRM 1984 . 

     Air freezing index:                               2307            . 

     Mean annual temperature:               41.8             . 

         

 

 2. IRC Section R312.1.1 (Where required) is modified as follows: 

         Guards shall be provided for those portions of open-sided walking surfaces, including 

stairs, ramps, 

         and landings, that are located more than 30 inches measured vertically to the floor or grade 

below 

         at any point within 36 inches horizontally to the edge of the open side, insect screening 

shall not be 



         considered as a guard. 

    

  3. IRC Section G2417.4.1 (Test pressure) is modified by changing 3 psig to 10 psig. 

 

15.06.070 - Violation; penalty.  

Any person or persons violating any of the provisions of this chapter or of the International 

Residential Code, adopted as set forth in this chapter, shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor 

and, upon conviction, shall be fined in the sum not to exceed one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) or 

by imprisonment for not more than one hundred eighty (180) days, or by both such fine and 

imprisonment. Each day that such a violation is permitted to exist shall constitute a separate 

offense.  

Section 2.  EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Ordinance shall take effect ten (10) days after passage and 

upon publication of such ordinance after passage.   

Section 3.  PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY:  The City Council deems it appropriate to publish 

the title of this Ordinance, together with a summary of the Ordinance and with the statement that 

the text is available for public inspection and acquisition in the office of the City Clerk.   

 

Section 4.  PUBLIC PURPOSE:  The City Council of the City of Craig herewith finds and 

determines that this Ordinance is necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and 

safety.  This Ordinance is enacted pursuant to the City’s authority to act under its police power to 

protect and preserve the general welfare of the City and its citizens. 

 

 READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED ON FIRST READING THIS 

____________ DAY OF ______________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

                               ______________________________ 

        Jarrod Ogden, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 

 

  

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED AFTER HEARING ON SECOND READING 

THIS ______ DAY OF _____________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

 

 

       ________________________________  

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 
 



ORDINANCE 1089 (2019) 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING A NEW CHAPTER 15.07 OF THE CRAIG MUNICIPAL 

CODE CONCERNING THE INTERNATIONAL EXISTING BUILDING CODE 

WHEREAS, the City of Craig has adopted rules and regulation concerning building code 

requirements for all real property located within city limits, which rules and regulations set 

minimum standards for the design and construction of buildings to ensure the safety and health 

for people in or about those buildings; and 

WHEREAS, building codes are occasionally updated at a national level resulting in the adoption 

of updated versions of building and other related codes; and 

WHEREAS, by this ordinance together with other related ordinances being considered at this 

time, the City Council updates the building rules and regulations to remain current within this 

area. 

WHEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CRAIG, 
COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.   Chapter 15.07 of the Craig Municipal Code entitled “International Existing 
Building Code” shall be adopted to read in its entirety as follows (note: this is a redline 
version of the changes to the Craig Municipal Code, with language to be eliminated 
designated with strikethrough notation and new language shown in red): 
 

Chapter 15.07  

International Existing Building Code 

15.07.010 - Document adopted; copies on file.  

There is adopted as the existing building code of the city, by reference thereto, the 

International Existing Building Code, 2018 edition, published by the International Code Council, 

Inc., 4051 West Flossmoor Road, Country Club Hills, IL 60478-5795, of which two (2) copies are 

now filed in the office of the city clerk, and which may be inspected during regular business hours, 

the same being adopted as if set out at length. There is further adopted all appendices of such codes 

and regulations.  

 

15.07.020 - Additions, modifications and deletions.  

The adopted code is subject to the additions, modifications or deletions set forth in Sections 

15.07.030 through 15.07.065.  

 

15.07.030 - Modifications; Title 



         IEBC Section 101.1 (Title) is modified by the addition of the term “City of Craig” where 

indicated. 

             

15.04.040 - Additions or modifications; moving of buildings.  

For a permit to move a building through or across any public street, alley or highway, a fifty-

dollar fee shall be required. Before issuance of a moving permit, the following requirements shall 

be met:  

A.  No dwelling shall be moved until it meets the minimum area and sanitary requirements set 

forth in the zoning ordinance codified in Title 16 of this code. It shall be the duty of the 

building official to establish the fact that minimum area and sanitary requirements have been 

met.  

B.  No building, dwelling or structure shall be moved until it complies structurally with the 

requirements set forth in this code for new buildings. It shall be the duty of the building official 

to establish the fact that structural requirements have been met.  

C.  No dwelling shall be moved until the owner agrees in writing that all zoning requirements 

will be complied with fully, pertaining to use, area and height of that district into which 

movement is requested. It shall be the duty of the zoning administrator to secure this statement.  

D.  No dwelling shall be moved until three (3) days after the building inspector has been 

presented with a written report establishing the fact that the appraised value of the dwelling 

to be moved equals or exceeds the average appraised value of all dwellings on each side of 

the street within the city block in which the owner wishes to move the dwelling. All appraisals 

shall be made by members of the National Real Estate Brokerage Association and in strict 

accordance with the standards established by this organization. The cost of such appraisal 

shall be borne by the owner requesting a moving permit. It shall be the duty of the building 

inspector to assure himself or herself that an authentic, written appraisal has been received 

before any permit shall be issued.  

E.  No building, dwelling or structure shall be moved until the owner thereof supplies the city 

clerk with the gross overall width of the vehicle performing the movement, the route to be 

followed and the time of movement.  

F.  No permit shall be issued until after all public utilities have been notified and a police escort 

has been provided.  

G.  No permit shall be issued until Subsections A through F of this section have been fully 

complied with and/or until payment for such permit has been received.  

H.  None of the requirements of this section shall apply to the moving of tool houses owned and 

moved by licensed contractors to construction sites within the corporate limits for use as tool 

shed only.  

I.  After such structure shall have been moved, the same shall be subject to all applicable 

inspections as set forth in Section 109 and/or Section R109 of the International Building Code 

and/or International Residential Code, current editions, and the same shall not be occupied 

until such inspections have been made and the applicable certificates of occupancy or 

compliance are issued.  



 

15.04.050 - Additions or modifications; demolition of buildings.  

A.  A permit will be required for the demolition of a structure. In demolishing any structure or 

part thereof, one (1) story at a time shall be completely removed. No material shall be placed 

upon the floor of any building in the course of demolition. Substantial protection for the 

public, to be approved by the building inspector, shall be provided when demolishing any 

building within ten (10) feet of a public thoroughfare. No material which has been removed 

from a building in the course of demolition shall be stored on any street, alley or other public 

way. When any building has been demolished, the person, firm or corporation who has 

performed the work shall immediately clear the adjacent streets, alleys and other public ways 

of all rubbish, refuse and loose material resulting from such demolition.  

B.  The wrecking contractor shall fill all excavations level with the adjoining grade or enclose 

the excavation with a substantial, tight board fence not less than five (5) feet high extending 

around the excavation on all sides.  

C.  The fee for a demolition permit in all zoning districts shall be one hundred dollars ($100.00).  

 

15.04.060 - Additions or modifications; snow loads.  

A.  Snow Loads.  

1.  Snow loads, full or unbalanced, shall be considered in place of loads set forth in the 

International Building Code Table 1607.1 and International Residential Code Figure 

R305.2(1), where such loading will result in larger members or connections.  

2.  Potential accumulations of snow at valleys, parapets, roof structures and offsets in roofs 

of uneven configuration shall be considered. Snow loads for the city shall be forty (40) 

pounds.  

3.  Any remodeling of existing buildings that may affect the roof load shall be certified or 

have recommendation for snow load by an architect or engineer registered by the state.  

B.  Standardization Tables. The standardization tables shall be in the building code standards.  

    

15.04.070 - Additions; permit issuance.  

A.  No permit shall be issued to any person to do or to cause to be done any work regulated by 

this chapter, except to a person holding a valid, unexpired and unrevoked contractor's license 

as required by the city or as otherwise provided in this section.  

B.  Any permit required by this chapter may be issued to any person to do any work regulated 

by this chapter in a single-family dwelling used exclusively for living purposes, including the 

usual accessory buildings and quarters in connection with such buildings, if that person is the 

bona fide owner of any such dwelling and accessory buildings and quarters and such premises 

are occupied by or designed to be occupied by such owner, provided that the owner shall 



personally purchase all material and shall personally perform all labor in connection 

therewith.  

Exceptions: 

               1. Property owners who are the bona fide owner of a single- family residence which 

they use as a rental property and is not their primary residence may acquire building permits for 

the following provided that they personally purchase all material and personally perform all 

labor in connection therewith. 

                   

                    1.1. Building permits including, but not limited to roofing, siding, decks, covered 

porches, accessory buildings without living quarters, interior framing, and drywall. 

                

2. Property owners shall not acquire the following permits for a property used as a rental: 

         

          2.2. Plumbing, Mechanical, and Electrical permits.   

          2.3. Building permits for a new residence/dwelling, or one which would add living 

space to an existing structure. 

           Note: This exception applies to single family dwellings only, all commercial properties 

require a properly licensed contractor to acquire the permit and perform the work. 

 

15.04.080 - Additions; permit fees.  

A.  A permit shall not be valid until the fees prescribed below have been paid, nor shall an 

amendment to a permit be released until the additional fee, if any, has been paid.  

B.  Any person who commences any work on a building, structure or associated systems before 

obtaining the necessary permits shall be subject to a doubling of the normally imposed permit 

fee for such work.  

C.  Regular building permit fees shall be based upon project valuation exclusive of the cost of 

real property. Determination of the value of a project shall be based upon credible 

documentation of actual costs, provided by the permit applicant.  

  

Value of roofing per square foot calculated at $1.70  

 

Table 15.04.080 

Building Permit Fees  

Value  Permit Fee  Plan Check  Total  

$ 500.00  $ 23.50  $ 15.28  $ 38.78  

600.00  26.55  17.26  43.81  



700.00  29.60  19.24  48.84  

800.00  32.65  21.22  53.87  

900.00  35.70  23.20  58.90  

1,000.00  38.75  25.19  63.94  

1,100.00  41.80  27.17  68.97  

1,200.00  44.85  29.15  74.00  

1,300.00  47.90  31.14  79.04  

1,400.00  50.95  33.12  84.07  

1,500.00  54.00  35.10  89.10  

1,600.00  57.05  37.08  94.13  

1,700.00  60.10  39.07  99.17  

1,800.00  63.15  41.05  104.20  

1,900.00  66.20  43.03  109.23  

2,000.00  69.25  45.18  114.43  

3,000.00  83.25  54.11  137.36  

4,000.00  97.25  63.21  160.46  

5,000.00  111.25  72.31  183.56  

6,000.00  125.25  81.41  206.66  

7,000.00  139.25  90.51  229.76  

8,000.00  153.25  99.61  252.86  



9,000.00  167.25  108.71  275.96  

10,000.00  181.25  117.81  299.06  

11,000.00  195.25  126.91  322.16  

12,000.00  209.25  136.01  345.26  

13,000.00  223.25  145.11  368.36  

14,000.00  237.25  154.21  391.46  

15,000.00  251.25  163.31  414.56  

16,000.00  265.25  172.41  437.66  

17,000.00  279.25  181.51  460.76  

18,000.00  293.25  190.61  483.86  

19,000.00  307.25  199.71  506.96  

20,000.00  321.25  208.81  530.06  

21,000.00  335.25  217.91  553.16  

22,000.00  349.25  227.01  576.26  

23,000.00  363.25  236.11  599.36  

24,000.00  377.25  245.21  622.46  

25,000.00  391.25  254.31  645.56  

26,000.00  401.85  261.20  663.05  

27,000.00  411.95  267.77  679.72  

28,000.00  422.05  274.33  696.38  



29,000.00  432.15  280.90  713.05  

30,000.00  442.25  287.63  729.88  

31,000.00  452.35  294.03  746.38  

32,000.00  462.45  300.59  763.04  

33,000.00  472.55  307.16  779.71  

34,000.00  482.65  313.72  796.37  

35,000.00  492.75  320.29  813.04  

36,000.00  502.85  326.85  829.70  

37,000.00  512.95  333.42  846.37  

38,000.00  523.05  340.28  863.33  

39,000.00  533.15  346.55  879.70  

40,000.00  543.25  353.11  896.36  

41,000.00  553.35  359.68  913.03  

42,000.00  563.45  366.24  929.69  

43,000.00  573.55  372.81  946.36  

44,000.00  583.65  379.50  963.15  

45,000.00  593.75  385.94  979.69  

46,000.00  603.85  392.50  996.35  

47,000.00  613.95  399.08  1,013.03  

48,000.00  624.05  405.63  1,029.68  



49,000.00  634.15  412.20  1,046.35  

50,000.00  644.25  418.76  1,063.01  

51,000.00  650.75  422.99  1,073.74  

52,000.00  657.75  427.54  1,085.29  

53,000.00  664.75  432.09  1,096.84  

54,000.00  671.75  436.64  1,108.39  

55,000.00  678.75  441.19  1,119.94  

56,000.00  685.75  445.74  1,131.49  

57,000.00  692.75  450.29  1,143.04  

58,000.00  699.75  454.84  1,154.59  

59,000.00  706.75  459.39  1,166.14  

60,000.00  713.75  463.94  1,177.69  

61,000.00  720.75  468.49  1,189.24  

62,000.00  727.75  473.04  1,200.79  

63,000.00  734.75  477.59  1,212.34  

64,000.00  741.75  482.14  1,223.89  

65,000.00  748.75  486.69  1,235.44  

66,000.00  755.75  491.24  1,246.99  

67,000.00  762.75  495.79  1,258.54  

68,000.00  769.75  500.34  1,270.09  



69,000.00  776.75  504.89  1,281.64  

70,000.00  783.75  509.44  1,293.19  

71,000.00  790.75  513.99  1,304.74  

72,000.00  797.75  518.54  1,316.29  

73,000.00  804.75  523.09  1,327.84  

74,000.00  811.75  527.64  1,339.39  

75,000.00  818.75  532.19  1,350.94  

76,000.00  825.75  536.74  1,362.49  

77,000.00  832.75  541.29  1,374.04  

78,000.00  839.75  545.84  1,385.59  

79,000.00  846.75  550.39  1,397.14  

80,000.00  853.75  554.94  1,408.69  

81,000.00  860.75  559.49  1,420.24  

82,000.00  867.75  564.04  1,431.79  

83,000.00  874.75  568.59  1,443.34  

84,000.00  881.75  573.14  1,454.89  

85,000.00  888.75  577.69  1,466.44  

86,000.00  895.75  582.24  1,477.99  

87,000.00  902.75  586.79  1,489.54  

88,000.00  909.75  591.34  1,501.09  



89,000.00  916.75  595.89  1,512.64  

90,000.00  923.75  600.44  1,524.19  

91,000.00  930.75  604.99  1,535.74  

92,000.00  937.75  609.54  1,547.29  

93,000.00  944.75  614.09  1,558.84  

94,000.00  951.75  618.64  1,570.39  

95,000.00  958.75  623.19  1,581.94  

96,000.00  965.75  627.74  1,593.49  

97,000.00  972.75  632.29  1,605.04  

98,000.00  979.75  636.84  1,616.59  

99,000.00  986.75  641.39  1,628.14  

100,000.00  993.75  645.94  1,639.69  

Over  

100,000.00  

993.75 plus  

$5.60/$1,000  

65% of  

permit fee  

As  

calculated  

Over  

500,000.00  

3,233.75 plus  

$4.75/ $1,000  

over $500 k  

  

Over  

1,000,000.00  

5,608.75 plus  

$3.15/ $1,000 

over $1 million 

  

  

     



     

  

15.04.090 - Deletions.  

Section 112 “Board of Appeals” of the International Existing Building Code is deleted and is 

not adopted as part of the code.  

 

15.04.100 - Violation; penalty.  

Any person or persons violating any of the provisions of this chapter or of the International 

Existing Building Code, adopted as set forth in this chapter, shall be deemed guilty of a 

misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined in the sum not to exceed one thousand dollars 

($1,000.00) or by imprisonment for not more than one hundred eighty (180) days, or by both such 

fine and imprisonment. Each day that such a violation is permitted to exist shall constitute a 

separate offense.  

 

Section 2.  EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Ordinance shall take effect ten (10) days after passage and 

upon publication of such ordinance after passage.   

Section 3.  PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY:  The City Council deems it appropriate to publish 

the title of this Ordinance, together with a summary of the Ordinance and with the statement that 

the text is available for public inspection and acquisition in the office of the City Clerk.   

Section 4.  PUBLIC PURPOSE:  The City Council of the City of Craig herewith finds and 

determines that this Ordinance is necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and 

safety.  This Ordinance is enacted pursuant to the City’s authority to act under its police power to 

protect and preserve the general welfare of the City and its citizens. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED ON FIRST READING THIS 

____________ DAY OF ______________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

                             ______________________________ 

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 

 

  

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED AFTER HEARING ON SECOND READING 

THIS ______ DAY OF _____________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

 

 

       ________________________________  

       Jared Ogden, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 

 

 

 



 

ORDINANCE 1090 (2019) 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 15.12 OF THE CRAIG MUNICIPAL CODE 

CONCERNING THE INTERNATIONAL MECHANICAL CODE 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Craig has adopted rules and regulation concerning building code 

requirements for all real property located within city limits, which rules and regulations set 

minimum standards for the design and construction of buildings to ensure the safety and health 

for people in or about those buildings; and 

 

WHEREAS, building codes are occasionally updated at a national level resulting in the adoption 

of updated versions of building and other related codes; and 

 

WHEREAS, by this ordinance together with other related ordinances being considered at this 

time, the City Council updates the building rules and regulations to remain current within this 

area. 

WHEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CRAIG, 
COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.   Chapter 15.12 of the Craig Municipal Code entitled “International Mechanical 
Code” shall be amended to read in its entirety as follows (note: this is a redline version of the 
changes to the Craig Municipal Code, with language to be eliminated designated with 
strikethrough notation and new language shown in red): 

 

Chapter 15.12  

 

International Mechanical Code 

15.12.010 - Adoption.  

Pursuant to Title 31, Chapter 16, Sections 201 through 208, C.R.S., there is adopted as the 

mechanical code of the city, by reference thereto, the International Mechanical Code, 2006 2018 

edition, published by the International Code Council, Inc., 4051 West Flossmoor Road, Country 

Club Hills, IL 60478-5795, of which three two (2) copies are now filed in the office of the city 

clerk and may be inspected during regular business hours, the same being adopted as if set out at 

length. There is further adopted all applicable appendices of such codes and regulations.  

 

15.12.015 – Additions; Modifications 

The adopted International Mechanical Code is subject to the following additions:  

A.  No permit shall be issued to any person to do or to cause to be done any mechanical work 

regulated by this chapter, except to a person holding a valid, unexpired and unrevoked 

mechanical license as required by the city or as otherwise provided in this section.  

B.  Any permit required by this chapter may be issued to any person to do any mechanical work 

regulated by this chapter in a single-family dwelling used exclusively for living purposes, 

including the usual accessory buildings and quarters in connection with such buildings, if that 

person is the bona fide owner of any such dwelling and accessory buildings and quarters and 



such premises are occupied by or designed to be occupied by such owner, provided that the 

owner shall personally purchase all material and shall personally perform all labor in 

connection therewith.  

C.    IMC Section 101.1 (Title) is modified by the addition of the term “City of Craig” 

where indicated. 

15.12.020 - Additions; permit fees.  

A.  A permit shall not be valid until the fees prescribed below have been paid, nor shall an 

amendment to a permit be released until the additional fee, if any, has been paid.  

B.  Any person who commences any work on any mechanical systems before obtaining the 

necessary permits shall be subject to a doubling of the normally imposed permit fee for such 

work. NOTE: "Emergency repairs" are not subject to these penalties; however, a permit for 

such work must be obtained in a timely manner, and required inspections must still be passed. 

When in question, the determination of "emergency" status will be decided by the authority 

having jurisdiction. Any person who refuses to stop work and obtain required permits, when 

so directed by the authority having jurisdiction, will be subject to more serious civil and/or 

criminal penalties as set forth in Section 15.12.025 below.  

C.  The fees for mechanical work shall be as indicated in the Table 15.12.020 below.  

 

Table 15.12.020  

Schedule of Mechanical Permit Fees  

Issuance  

1.  For the issuance of each mechanical permit  $ 25.00  

2.  
For issuing each supplemental permit for which the original permit has not 

expired, been canceled or finaled  
10.00  

Unit fee schedule (in addition to items 1 & 2 above):  

Furnaces  

1.  

For the installation or relocation of each forced-air or gravity-type furnace or 

burner, including ducts and vents attached to such appliance, up to and including 

100,000 BTU  

17.00  

2.  
For the installation or relocation of each forced-air or gravity-type furnace or 

burner, including ducts and vents attached to such appliance, over 100,000 BTU  
21.00  

3.  For the installation or relocation of each floor furnace, including vent  17.00  

4.  
For the installation or relocation of each suspended heater, recessed wall heater 

or floor-mounted unit heater  
17.00  

Appliance Vents  

1.  
For the installation, relocation or replacement of each appliance vent installed 

and not included in an appliance permit  
8.50  

Repairs or Additions  



1.  

For the repair of, alteration of or addition to each heating appliance, refrigeration 

unit, cooling unit, absorption unit or each heating, cooling, absorption or 

evaporative cooling system, including installation of controls regulated by the 

International Mechanical Code  

16.00  

Boilers, Compressors and Absorption Systems  

1.  

For the installation or relocation of each boiler or compressor up to and 

including 3 horsepower (10.6 kW). or each absorption system up to and 

including 100,000 BTU  

17.00  

2.   over 3 to 15 horsepower or over 100,000 BTU, including 500,000 BTU  31.00  

3.   over 15 to 30 horsepower or over 500,000 BTU, including 1,000,000 BTU  43.00  

4.   over 30 to 50 horsepower or over 1,000,000 BTU, including 1,750,000 BTU  64.00  

5.   over 50 horsepower or over 1,750,000 BTU  106.00  

Air Handlers  

1.  
For each air-handling unit up to and including 10,000 cfm (4,719 L/s) including 

ducts attached thereto.*  
12.00  

2.  For each air-handling unit over 10,000 cfm  21.00  

Evaporative Coolers  

1.  For each evaporative cooler other than portable type (swamp cooler)  12.00  

Ventilation and Exhaust  

1.  For each ventilation fan connected to a single duct  $ 8.00  

2.  For each ventilation system which is not a portion of any heating or AC system  12.00  

3.  
For the installation of each hood which is served by mechanical exhaust, 

including the ducts for such hood  
12.00  

Miscellaneous  

1.  

For each appliance or piece of equipment regulated by the International 

Mechanical Code but not classified in other appliance categories, or for which 

no other fee is listed in the table e.g. ducts  

12.00  

2.  Gas piping:   

  one to five outlets  20.00  

  each additional outlet  1.00  

3.  Inserts, stoves and fireplaces (classified under Furnaces #1)  17.00  

4.  Roof top unit:   

  if Duo Pac, charge for compressor and furnace according to BTUs   

  if Cooling, charge for compressor according to BTUs   

  if Heating, charge for furnace according to BTUs   



5.  In-Floor (radiant) heating system:   

  Charge for boiler according to BTUs   

 *   Note: this fee does not apply to an air-handling unit which is a portion of a factory 

assembled appliance, cooling unit, evaporative cooler or absorption unit for which a permit is 

required elsewhere in the International Mechanical Code.  

 

15.12.025 - Penalties.  

The following penalties set forth in full shall apply to this chapter:  

A.  It is unlawful for a person to violate any of the provisions stated or adopted in this chapter.  

B.  Every person convicted of a violation of any provisions stated or adopted in this chapter shall 

be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined in the sum not to 

exceed one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) or by imprisonment for not more than one hundred 

eighty (180) days, or by both such fine and imprisonment. Each day that such a violation is 

permitted to exist shall constitute a separate offense.  

 

15.12.030 - Validity.  

If any part or parts of this chapter are for any reason held invalid, such decision shall not affect 

the validity of the remaining portions of this chapter. The city council declares that it would have 

passed the ordinance codified herein and each part or parts thereof, irrespective of the fact that any 

one (1) part or parts are declared invalid.  

 

15.12.035 - Interpretation.  

Article and section headings of this chapter and adopted International Mechanical Code shall 

not be deemed to govern, limit, modify or in any manner affect the scope, meaning or intent of the 

provisions of any article or section thereof.  

 

15.12.040 - Short title.  

This chapter may be known and cited as the "International Mechanical Code."  

 

15.12.050 - Safety.  

The city council finds, declares and determines that this chapter is necessary for the 

preservation of the public peace, health and safety.  

 

 

 



Section 2.  EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Ordinance shall take effect ten (10) days after passage and 

upon publication of such ordinance after passage.   

Section 3.  PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY:  The City Council deems it appropriate to publish 

the title of this Ordinance, together with a summary of the Ordinance and with the statement that 

the text is available for public inspection and acquisition in the office of the City Clerk.   

 

Section 4.  PUBLIC PURPOSE:  The City Council of the City of Craig herewith finds and 

determines that this Ordinance is necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and 

safety.  This Ordinance is enacted pursuant to the City’s authority to act under its police power to 

protect and preserve the general welfare of the City and its citizens. 

 

 READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED ON FIRST READING THIS 

____________ DAY OF ______________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

 

 

                             ______________________________ 

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 

 

 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED AFTER HEARING ON SECOND READING 

THIS ______ DAY OF _____________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

 

 

       ________________________________  

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor  

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 



ORDINANCE 1091 (2019) 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 15.14 OF THE CRAIG MUNICIPAL CODE 

CONCERNING THE INTERNATIONAL FUEL GAS CODE 

WHEREAS, the City of Craig has adopted rules and regulation concerning building code 

requirements for all real property located within city limits, which rules and regulations set 

minimum standards for the design and construction of buildings to ensure the safety and health 

for people in or about those buildings; and 

WHEREAS, building codes are occasionally updated at a national level resulting in the adoption 

of updated versions of building and other related codes; and 

WHEREAS, by this ordinance together with other related ordinances being considered at this 

time, the City Council updates the building rules and regulations to remain current within this 

area. 

WHEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CRAIG, 
COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.   Chapter 15.14 of the Craig Municipal Code entitled “International Fuel Gas 
Code” shall be amended to read in its entirety as follows (note: this is a redline version of the 
changes to the Craig Municipal Code, with language to be eliminated designated with 
strikethrough notation and new language shown in red): 

 

Chapter 15.14  

International Fuel Gas Code 

15.14.010 - Adoption.  

Pursuant to Title 31, Chapter 16, Sections 201 through 208, C.R.S., there is adopted as the 

fuel gas code of the city, by reference thereto, the International Fuel Gas Code, 2006 2018 edition, 

published by the International Code Council, Inc., 4051 West Flossmoor Road, Country Club 

Hills, IL 60478-5795, of which three two (2) copies are now filed in the office of the city clerk 

and may be inspected during regular business hours, the same being adopted as if set out at length. 

There is further adopted all applicable appendices of such codes and regulations.  

 

15.14.015 – Additions; modifications 

The adopted International Fuel Gas Code is subject to the following additions and 

modifications.  

A.  No permit shall be issued to any person to do or cause to be done any fuel gas piping 

installation or maintenance work regulated by this chapter, except to a person holding a valid, 



unexpired and unrevoked mechanical or plumbing license as required by the city or as 

otherwise provided in this section.  

B.  Any permit required by this chapter may be issued to any person to do any fuel gas piping 

work regulated by this chapter in a single-family dwelling used exclusively for living 

purposes, including the usual accessory buildings and quarters in connection with such 

buildings, if that person is the bona fide owner of any such dwelling and accessory buildings 

and quarters and such premises are occupied by or designed to be occupied by such owner, 

provided that the owner shall personally purchase all material and shall personally perform all 

labor in connection therewith.  

C.     IFGC Section 406.4.1 (Test pressure) is amended by changing 3 psig to 10 psig. 

D.    IFGC Section 101.1 (Title) is modified by the addition of the term “City of Craig” 

where indicated. 

 

15.14.020 – Additions; fee schedule.  

A.  A permit shall not be valid until the fees prescribed in Chapter 15.16 of this title have been 

paid, nor shall an amendment to a permit be released until the additional fee, if any, has been 

paid.  

B.  Any person who commences any work on any fuel gas piping system before obtaining the 

necessary permits shall be subject to a doubling of the normally imposed permit fee for such 

work. NOTE: "Emergency repairs" are not subject to these penalties; however, a permit for 

such work must be obtained in a timely manner, and required inspections must still be passed. 

When in question, the determination of "emergency" status will be decided by the authority 

having jurisdiction. Any person who refuses to stop work and obtain required permits, when 

so directed by the authority having jurisdiction, will be subject to more serious civil and/or 

criminal penalties as set forth in Section 15.14.025 below.  

C.  The fees for fuel gas piping work shall be as indicated in Section 15.16.065, Table 15.16.065, 

of this title.  

 

15.14.025 - Penalties.  

The following penalties set forth in full shall apply to this chapter:  

A.  It is unlawful for a person to violate any of the provisions stated or adopted in this chapter.  

B.  Every person convicted of a violation of any provisions stated or adopted in this chapter shall 

be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined in the sum not to 

exceed one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) or by imprisonment for not more than one hundred 

eighty (180) days, or by both such fine and imprisonment. Each day that such a violation is 

permitted to exist shall constitute a separate offense.  

 



15.14.030 - Validity.  

If any part or parts of this chapter are for any reason held invalid, such decision shall not affect 

the validity of the remaining portions of this chapter. The city council declares that it would have 

passed the ordinance codified herein and each part or parts thereof, irrespective of the fact that any 

one (1) part or parts are declared invalid.  

 

15.14.035 - Interpretation.  

Article and section headings of this chapter and the adopted International Fuel Gas Code shall 

not be deemed to govern, limit, modify or in any manner affect the scope, meaning or intent of the 

provisions of any article or section thereof.  

 

15.14.040 - Short title.  

This chapter may be known and cited as the "International Fuel Gas Code."  

 

15.14.045 - Safety.  

The city council finds, declares and determines that this chapter is necessary for the 

preservation of the public peace, health and safety.  

 

Section 2.  EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Ordinance shall take effect ten (10) days after passage and 

upon publication of such ordinance after passage.   

Section 3.  PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY:  The City Council deems it appropriate to publish 

the title of this Ordinance, together with a summary of the Ordinance and with the statement that 

the text is available for public inspection and acquisition in the office of the City Clerk.   

Section 4.  PUBLIC PURPOSE:  The City Council of the City of Craig herewith finds and 

determines that this Ordinance is necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and 

safety.  This Ordinance is enacted pursuant to the City’s authority to act under its police power to 

protect and preserve the general welfare of the City and its citizens. 

 

 

 



READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED ON FIRST READING THIS 

____________ DAY OF ______________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

                             ______________________________ 

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 

 

 

  

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED AFTER HEARING ON SECOND READING 

THIS ______ DAY OF _____________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

 

 

       ________________________________  

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 

 

  



ORDINANCE 1092 (2019) 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 15.16 OF THE CRAIG MUNICIPAL CODE 

CONCERNING THE INTERNATIONAL PLUMBING CODE 

WHEREAS, the City of Craig has adopted rules and regulation concerning building code 

requirements for all real property located within city limits, which rules and regulations set 

minimum standards for the design and construction of buildings to ensure the safety and health 

for people in or about those buildings; and 

WHEREAS, building codes are occasionally updated at a national level resulting in the adoption 

of updated versions of building and other related codes; and 

WHEREAS, by this ordinance together with other related ordinances being considered at this 

time, the City Council updates the building rules and regulations to remain current within this 

area. 

WHEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CRAIG, 
COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.   Chapter 15.16 of the Craig Municipal Code entitled “International Plumbing  
Code” shall be adopted to read in its entirety as follows (note: this is a redline version of the 
changes to the Craig Municipal Code, with language to be eliminated designated with 
strikethrough notation and new language shown in red): 

 

Chapter 15.16  

International Plumbing Code 

 

15.16.025 - Adoption.  

Pursuant to Title 31, Chapter 16, Sections 201 through 208, C.R.S., there is adopted as the 

plumbing code of the city, by reference thereto, the International Plumbing Code, 2006 2018 

edition, published by the International Code Council, Inc., 4051 West Flossmoor Road, Country 

Club Hills, IL 60478-5795, of which three (3) two (2) copies are now filed in the office of the city 

clerk and may be inspected during regular business hours, the same being adopted as if set out in 

length.  

 

15.16.028- Modifications; Title 

          IPC Section 101.1 (Title) is modified by the addition of the term “City of Craig” 

where indicated. 

 

15.16.030 - Modification to Chapter 11, Section 1101, Paragraph 1101.2.  



There is added to Chapter 11, "Storm Drainage," Section 1101, General, Paragraph 1101.2, 

“Where Required” "Disposal," a paragraph to be known as 1101.2.1 as follows:  

"1101.2.1 All rain, surface or subsurface water drainage systems shall be installed by a 

licensed contractor, inspected by the Administrative Authority, Section 103, Authority, and 

as-built drawings of such system shall be given to the community development department, 

with the exception of gutters and downspouts for residential structures only."  

 

15.16.035 - Modification to Chapter 7, Section 708, Cleanouts, Paragraph 708.3.5.  

Chapter 7, Section 708, Cleanouts, Paragraph 708.3.5 708.1,3, "Building Drain and Building 

Sewer Junction," is amended to read as follows:  

"708.3.5 Building Drain and Building Sewer Junction. There shall be a cleanout near the 

junction of the building drain and the building sewer. The cleanout shall be outside the 

building wall and shall be brought up to the finished ground level. An approved two-way 

cleanout is allowed required at this location to serve as a required cleanout for both the 

building drain and the building sewer. The cleanout at the junction of the building drain and 

building sewer and outside the wall, shall be required regardless of the location of system soil 

stacks within the structure perimeter. The minimum size of the cleanout at the junction of the 

building drain and building sewer shall comply with Section 708.7” 708.1.5." Perimeter 

drains, gutters and downspouts are not allowed to connect to the sanitary sewer. 

 

15.16.040 - Modification to Chapter 6, Section 605, Materials, Joints and Connections, 

Paragraph 605.15 605.12, Copper Tubing Pipe.  

There is added to Chapter 6, Section 605, Materials, Joints and Connections, Paragraph 

605.15, 605.12 Copper Tubing Pipe, the following:  

"All connections on water service lines from main to meter shall be flared or approved 

compression fittings with the exception of connections above ground or above slabs which 

may be soldered."  

 

15.16.045 - Modifications to Chapter 6, Section 605, Materials, Joints and Connections, 

Paragraph 605.3, Water Service Piping.  

There is added to Chapter 6, Section 605, Materials, Joints and Connections, Paragraphs 

605.3.2, 605.3.3 and 605.3.4, to be known as (a), (b) and (c), as follows:  

"605.3.2(a) All water service supply piping extending from the main to the water meter 

shall be type K copper tubing”. curb stop shall be minimum one (1) inch type K copper 

tubing. All supply piping extending from the curb stop to the water meter shall be 

minimum one (1) inch type K copper tubing, or one and one quarter (1 ¼) inch HDPE 

pipe. If HDPE is used, an approved tracer wire must be attached to the service line in 

accordance with the City of Craig Public Works Manual. 



"605.3.3(b) Existing nonconforming piping may remain until it is altered, repaired or 

replaced, at which time it must be replaced with type K copper tubing or HDPE pipe as set 

forth in (a) above. Written disclosure of such nonconforming piping shall be given by property 

owners to prospective buyers.  

"605.3.4(c) When alteration, repair or replacement of a water meter which is installed in 

a pit is necessary, the meter shall be relocated either under or within the structure being served 

by water. The pit shall be removed and filled."  

 

15.16.050 - Modification to Chapter 6, Section 605, Materials, Joints and Connections, 

Paragraph 605.7, Valves.  

There is added to Chapter 6, Section 605, Materials, Joints and Connections, Paragraph 605.7, 

Valves, a paragraph known as 605.7.1, as follows:  

"605.7.1 A curb stop shall be located on the property line, and the riser (McDonalds, 

Mueller or comparable as approved by the city) shall protrude at least to grade or higher, but 

not exceed two (2) inches above grade. A curb stop shall not be covered or filled with any 

substance that restricts its accessibility."  

 

15.16.060 - Additions.  

The adopted International Plumbing Code is subject to the following additions:  

A.  No permit shall be issued to any person to do or to cause to be done any plumbing or drainage 

work regulated by this chapter, except to a person holding a valid, unexpired and unrevoked 

master plumber's license and registration as required by the city or as otherwise provided in 

this section. Any permit required by this chapter may be issued to any person to do any 

plumbing or drainage work regulated by this chapter in a single-family dwelling used 

exclusively for living purposes, including the usual accessory buildings and quarters in 

connection with such buildings if that person is the bona fide owner of any such dwelling and 

accessory buildings and quarters and such premises are occupied by or designed to be 

occupied by such owner, provided that the owner shall personally perform all labor in 

connection therewith.  

B.  The city requires as-built drawings for all changes or new installations in sewer or water 

locations. These drawings shall be given to a representative of the respective department 

affected.  

C.  Tapping of a water or sewer main shall be done by a licensed plumber under the direct 

supervision of a qualified agent of the respective city department. the City of Craig, unless 

authorized by the Water Department, tapping of sewer mains shall be done by a licensed 

plumber and inspected by a City of Craig representative prior to burial.  

D.  Water and sewer mains shall be installed by a licensed utility contractor, and be inspected 

by a City of Craig representative prior to burial. An approved tracer wire shall be installed 

on all water and sewer mains in accordance with the City of Craig Public Works Manual. 



 

E.     Sewer and water service lines from the tap to the structure shall be installed by a plumber 

licensed in the city and the state. and be inspected The City of Craig shall tap all water mains 

and install type K-copper from the main to the curb stop. All water service lines from the 

curb stop to the structure shall be installed by a plumber licensed in the city and the state. 

All water and sewer service lines shall be inspected by a City of Craig representative prior 

to burial. An approved tracer wire shall be installed on all non-metallic water and sewer 

service lines in accordance with the City of Craig Public Works Manual. 

 

F.  The city requires that winterizing of homes and businesses shall be done using nontoxic 

means, by a licensed plumbing contractor or a homeowner, if in his or her own residence. A 

meter reading shall be taken and submitted to the city's utility billing department.  

         

G.    Backflow prevention: See Section 13.36.055 of this code “Backflow and Cross-

Connection Standards.      

 

15.16.065 - Additions; plumbing permit fee schedule.  

A.  A permit shall not be valid until the fees prescribed below have been paid, nor shall an 

amendment to a permit be released until the additional fee, if any, has been paid.  

B.  Any person who commences any work on any plumbing systems before obtaining the 

necessary permits shall be subject to a doubling of the normally imposed permit fee for such 

work. NOTE: "Emergency repairs" are not subject to these penalties; however, a permit for 

such work must be obtained in a timely manner, and required inspections must still be passed. 

When in question, the determination of "emergency" status will be decided by the authority 

having jurisdiction. Any person who refuses to stop work and obtain required permits, when 

so directed by the authority having jurisdiction, will be subject to more serious civil and/or 

criminal penalties as set forth in Section 15.16.070 below.  

C.  The fees for the plumbing work shall be as indicated in Table 15.16.065 (below).  

 

Table 15.16.065  

Schedule of Plumbing Permit Fees  

Issuance  

1.  For the issuance of each plumbing permit  $25.00  

2.  
For issuing each supplemental permit for which the original permit has not expired, 

been canceled or finaled  
15.00  

Unit Fee Schedule (in addition to items 1 & 2 above) 



1  For each plumbing fixture on 1 trap or a set of fixtures on 1 trap  8.00  

2.  For each building sewer and each trailer park sewer  18.00  

3.  Rainwater systems - per drain (inside building)  8.00  

4.  For each water heater and/or vent  8.00  

5.  For each gas piping system of 1 to 5 outlets  20.00  

6.  For each additional gas piping system outlet, per outlet  1.00  

7.  For each industrial waste pretreatment interceptor including its trap  10.00  

8.  
For each installation, alteration or repair of water piping and/or water treating 

equipment  
8.00  

9.  For each repair or alteration of drainage or vent piping, each fixture  8.00  

10.  For each lawn sprinkler system on any 1 meter, including backflow devices  8.00  

11.  

For atmospheric-type vacuum breakers:   

 1 to 5 fixtures  5.00  

 over 5, each  1.00  

12.  

For each backflow protective device other than atmospheric-type vacuum breakers:   

 2 inch (51 mm) diameter and smaller  10.00  

 over 2 inch (55 mm) diameter  20.00  

13.  For each graywater system  40.00  

14.  For initial installation and testing for a reclaimed water system  30.00  

15.  
For each annual cross-connection testing of a reclaimed water system (excluding 

initial test)  
30.00  



16.  For each medical gas piping system serving 1 to 5 inlets/outlets for specific gas  50.00  

17.  For each additional medical gas inlet/outlet  5.00  

 

15.16.070 - Penalties.  

The following penalties, set forth in full, shall apply to this chapter:  

A.  It is unlawful for a person to violate any of the provisions stated or adopted in this chapter.  

B.  Every person convicted of a violation of any provisions stated or adopted in this chapter shall 

be guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined in the sum not to exceed one 

thousand dollars ($1,000.00) or by imprisonment for not more than one hundred eighty (180) 

days, or by both such fine and imprisonment. Each day that such a violation is permitted to 

exist shall constitute a separate offense.  

 

15.16.075 - Validity.  

If any part or parts of this chapter are for any reason held to be invalid, such decision shall not 

affect the validity of the remaining portion of this chapter. The city council declares that it would 

have passed the ordinance codified herein and each part or parts thereof irrespective of the fact 

that any one (1) part or parts are declared invalid.  

 

15.16.085 - Interpretation.  

Article and section headings of this chapter and the adopted International Plumbing Code shall 

not be deemed to govern, limit, modify or in any manner affect the scope, meaning or extent of 

the provisions of any article or section thereof.  

 

15.16.090 - Short title.  

This chapter may be known and cited as the "International Plumbing Code." 

 

15.16.095 - Safety.  

The city council declares and determines that this chapter is necessary for the preservation of 

the public peace, health and safety.  

 



Section 2.  EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Ordinance shall take effect ten (10) days after passage and 

upon publication of such ordinance after passage.   

Section 3.  PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY:  The City Council deems it appropriate to publish 

the title of this Ordinance, together with a summary of the Ordinance and with the statement that 

the text is available for public inspection and acquisition in the office of the City Clerk.   

Section 4.  PUBLIC PURPOSE:  The City Council of the City of Craig herewith finds and 

determines that this Ordinance is necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and 

safety.  This Ordinance is enacted pursuant to the City’s authority to act under its police power to 

protect and preserve the general welfare of the City and its citizens. 

 

 READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED ON FIRST READING THIS 

____________ DAY OF ______________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

                             ______________________________ 

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 

 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED AFTER HEARING ON SECOND READING 

THIS ______ DAY OF _____________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

 

       ________________________________  

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor  

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 



 

ORDINANCE 1093 (2019) 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 15.18 OF THE CRAIG MUNICIPAL CODE 

CONCERNING THE INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE 

WHEREAS, the City of Craig has adopted rules and regulation concerning building code 

requirements for all real property located within city limits, which rules and regulations set 

minimum standards for the design and construction of buildings to ensure the safety and health 

for people in or about those buildings; and 

WHEREAS, building codes are occasionally updated at a national level resulting in the adoption 

of updated versions of building and other related codes; and 

WHEREAS, by this ordinance together with other related ordinances being considered at this 

time, the City Council updates the building rules and regulations to remain current within this 

area. 

WHEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CRAIG, 
COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.   Chapter 15.18 of the Craig Municipal Code entitled “International Property 
Maintenance  Code” shall be amended to read in its entirety as follows (note: this is a redline 
version of the changes to the Craig Municipal Code, with language to be eliminated 
designated with strikethrough notation and new language shown in red): 
 

Chapter 15.18  

International Property Maintenance Code 

15.18.010 - Adoption.  

Pursuant to Title 31, Chapter 16, Sections 201 through 208, C.R.S., there is hereby adopted 

as the property maintenance code of the city, by reference thereto, the International Property 

Maintenance Code, 2006 2018 edition, published by the International Code Council, Inc., 4051 

West Flossmoor Road, Country Club Hills, IL 60478-5795, of which three two (2) copies are now 

filed in the office of the city clerk and may be inspected during regular business hours, the same 

being adopted as if set out in length.  

 

15.18.015- Modifications 

        IPMC Section 101.1 (Title) is modified by the addition of the term “City of Craig” 

where indicated. 



15.18.020 - Deletions.  

Section 111 “Means of Appeal” of the International Property Maintenance Code is hereby 

deleted and not adopted as part of the code.   

15.18.030 - Modification to Chapters 2 and 6.  

Chapters 2 and 6 of the International Property Maintenance Code are amended by the 

removal of references to the ICC Electrical Code and replaced by "NFPA 70, National Electrical 

Code (NEC) 2005 edition." (Ord. 967 §1, 2007) 

 

15.18.040 - Penalty.  

Any person or persons violating any provisions of this chapter or of the International Property 

Maintenance Code shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined 

in the sum not to exceed one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) or by imprisonment for not more than 

one hundred eighty (180) days, or by both such fine and imprisonment. Each day that such a 

violation is permitted to exist shall constitute a separate offense.  

 

15.18.050 - Validity.  

If any provision of this chapter or the application thereof to any person or circumstances is 

held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications, and to this end the 

provisions of this chapter are declared to be severable.  

 

15.18.055 - Interpretation.  

Article and section headings of this chapter and the adopted International Property 

Maintenance Code shall not be deemed to govern, limit, modify or in any manner affect the scope, 

meaning or intent of the provisions of any article or section thereof.  

 

15.18.060 - Short title.  

This chapter may be known and cited as the "International Property Maintenance Code."  

 

15.18.065 - Safety.  

The city council hereby finds, declares and determines that this chapter is necessary for the 

preservation of the public peace, health and safety. 

 



 

Section 2.  EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Ordinance shall take effect ten (10) days after passage and 

upon publication of such ordinance after passage.   

Section 3.  PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY:  The City Council deems it appropriate to publish 

the title of this Ordinance, together with a summary of the Ordinance and with the statement that 

the text is available for public inspection and acquisition in the office of the City Clerk.   

Section 4.  PUBLIC PURPOSE:  The City Council of the City of Craig herewith finds and 

determines that this Ordinance is necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and 

safety.  This Ordinance is enacted pursuant to the City’s authority to act under its police power to 

protect and preserve the general welfare of the City and its citizens. 

 

 READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED ON FIRST READING THIS 

____________ DAY OF ______________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

                             ______________________________ 

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 

 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED AFTER HEARING ON SECOND READING 

THIS ______ DAY OF _____________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

 

       ________________________________  

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 



ORDINANCE 1094 (2019) 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 15.22 OF THE CRAIG MUNICIPAL CODE 

CONCERNING THE INTERNATIONAL MANUFACTURED HOME INSTALLATION 

CODE 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Craig has adopted rules and regulation concerning building code 

requirements for all real property located within city limits, which rules and regulations set 

minimum standards for the design and construction of buildings to ensure the safety and health 

for people in or about those buildings; and 

 

WHEREAS, building codes are occasionally updated at a national level resulting in the adoption 

of updated versions of building and other related codes; and 

 

WHEREAS, by this ordinance together with other related ordinances being considered at this 

time, the City Council updates the building rules and regulations to remain current within this 

area. 

WHEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CRAIG, 
COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.   Chapter 15.22 of the Craig Municipal Code entitled “International Manufactured 
Home Installation  Code” shall be adopted to read in its entirety as follows (note: this is a 
redline version of the changes to the Craig Municipal Code, with language to be eliminated 
designated with strikethrough notation and new language shown in red): 
 

Chapter 15.22   

 

Manufactured Home Installation Code 

15.22.010 - Short title.  

 

This chapter may be known and cited as the "Manufactured Home Installation Code."  

 

 

15.22.020 - Installation standards.  

 

A. HUD Manufactured Homes (U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development). 

    1. Single Wide  

        All HUD Single Wide manufactured homes shall be allowed in MU-1 and RMH zones 

only, and may be installed on an engineered foundation (required in the RLD, RMD or RHD 

Districts and permitted in the RMH Districts) or with piers, tie-downs and skirting (permitted 

only in the RMH Districts). in conformance with the manufacturers installation 

instructions. If the manufacturers installation instructions are unavailable, the home 

shall be installed in conformance with the Manufactured Homes and Factory Built 



Housing Installation Handbook, 2016 edition, published by the Colorado Department of 

Local Affairs. 

B.  Manufactured homes shall be installed as recommended in the manufacturer's installation 

instructions. If the manufacturer's installation instructions are lost or unavailable, the 

manufactured home shall be installed in conformance with the American National Standard 

for Manufactured Home Installations (ANSI A225.1), 1994 edition, adopted in Section 

15.22.030.  

C. 2. Multiple Section Units 

         HUD double or triple wide manufactured homes are allowed in the RLD, RMD, RHD, 

MU-1, MU-2, Agricultural, RR, and RMH zones, if the home meets all of the following 

criteria: 

         1. Is a minimum of twenty-four (24) feet wide and thirty-six (36) feet long. 

         2. Is permanently affixed to and installed on an engineered foundation at the entire 

perimeter of the dwelling. 

         3. Has a pitched roof of at least 3:12 pitch with a minimum twelve (12) inch eave 

overhang. The roof must be covered with shingles, tile, metal roofing (pro-panel), or 

standing seam. 

           

 If the HUD manufactured home is installed on an engineered foundation, the engineered 

foundation shall be constructed as required under the adopted edition of the International 

Building Code and/or the International Residential Code. 

      

3.  No HUD/Mobile home over 25 years old may be erected, moved or placed on any 

site, lot or tract in the City of Craig. 

 

B. IRC Modular Homes 

     1. IRC Modular Homes shall be allowed in any zone which permit’s single family 

detached dwellings as a principal use. IRC Modular Homes must be installed in 

conformance with the manufactures installation instructions. If the manufacturers 

instructions are unavailable, the home shall be installed in conformance with the 

Manufactured Homes and Factory Built Housing Installation Handbook, 2016 edition, 

published by the Colorado Department of Local Affairs. 

     

     2. IRC Modular Homes shall be installed on an engineered foundation designed and 

constructed under the adopted editions of the International Building Code and/or the 

International Residential Code, by a Colorado State licensed engineer.    

      

15.22.030 - Adoption of the American National Standard for Manufactured Home Installations.   

                     Manufactured Homes and Factory Built Housing Installation Handbook. 

 

Pursuant to authority conferred by Title 31, Article 16, Sections 201 through 208, C.R.S., 

there is hereby adopted the American National Standard for Manufactured Home Installations 

(ANSI A225.1), 1994 edition, published by the National Conference of States on Building Codes 

and Standards, Inc., 505 Huntmar Park Drive, Suite 210, Herndon, Virginia 22070, Manufactured 

Homes and Factory Built Housing Installation Handbook, 2016 edition, published by the 



Colorado Department of Local Affairs, 1313 Sherman Street, room 320, Denver CO, 80203, 
of which three (3) two (2) copies are now filed in the office of the city clerk, and which may be 

inspected during regular business hours, the same being adopted as if set out at length. There is 

further adopted Annex A, C, D, E, G and H of the standard and such annexes shall constitute a 

part of the mandatory provisions of the standard.  

 

15.22.040 - Modifications; fees.  

The American National Standard for Manufactured Home Installations (ANSI A225.1), 1994 

edition, is subject to the following additions, deletions and amendments:  

A.  The electrical provisions of Annex H are hereby deleted in their entirety.  

B.  The roof load zone map, Figure 3-1(a), Annex H, shall be amended as follows: Roof load 

shall be a minimum forty (40) pounds per square foot in the RLD, RMD and RHD zoning 

districts.  

C. A. No manufactured home shall be installed in the city unless a separate permit for each 

installation has first been obtained from the building official. The provisions of Section 

15.04.049 (permit issuance) shall apply. Application for installation of manufactured homes 

in the RLD, RMD and RHD zoning districts shall be accompanied by a site plan and a soils 

report/foundation design by a state-registered professional engineer. The fee for each permit 

for manufactured home installation shall be one hundred twenty-five forty-five dollars 

($125.00) ($145.00) (for single-wide units) and two hundred twenty dollars ($200.00) ($220) 

(for multiple-section units); however, additional fees shall be charged for water and sewer 

taps, engineered foundation systems and structural additions as provided in this code.  

 

15.22.050 - Limitation.  

This chapter shall apply only to installation, and not to the modification, repair or remodeling, 

of a manufactured home which shall be governed by the International Building Code, 

International Residential Code, the International Plumbing Code, the International Mechanical 

Code and/or the International Fuel Gas Code.  

 

15.22.060 - Occupancy.  

No manufactured home shall be occupied until all of the zoning and building requirements of 

this code are completed, with the following exceptions:  

A.  Skirting shall be completed within thirty (30) days from the date of initial installation 

(reference Section 16.12.020).  

B.  Storage shed (required in mobile home parks only) shall be in place ninety (90) days from 

the date of initial installation.  

The chief building official is hereby authorized to prepare and distribute a checklist of the 

requirements that must be completed before occupancy.  

 

15.22.070 - Violations; penalty.  

Any person or persons violating any of the provisions of this chapter or of the standard, 

adopted as set forth in this chapter, shall be fined in the sum not to exceed one thousand dollars 



($1,000.00) or by imprisonment for not more than one hundred eighty (180) days, or by both such 

fine and imprisonment. Each day that such a violation is permitted to exist shall constitute a 

separate offense.  

 

READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED ON FIRST READING THIS 

____________ DAY OF ______________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

                             ______________________________ 

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 

 

  

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED AFTER HEARING ON SECOND READING 

THIS ______ DAY OF _____________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

 

       ________________________________  

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 
 



ORDINANCE 1095 (2019) 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 15.20 OF THE CRAIG MUNICIPAL CODE 

CONCERNING THE INTERNATIONAL ENERGY CONSERVATION CODE 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Craig has adopted rules and regulation concerning building code 

requirements for all real property located within city limits, which rules and regulations set 

minimum standards for the design and construction of buildings to ensure the safety and health 

for people in or about those buildings; and 

 

WHEREAS, building codes are occasionally updated at a national level resulting in the adoption 

of updated versions of building and other related codes; and 

 

WHEREAS, by this ordinance together with other related ordinances being considered at this 

time, the City Council updates the building rules and regulations to remain current within this 

area. 

WHEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CRAIG, 
COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS: 
Section 1.   Chapter 15.20 of the Craig Municipal Code entitled “International Energy 
Conservation Code” shall be adopted to read in its entirety as follows (note: this is a redline 
version of the changes to the Craig Municipal Code, with language to be eliminated 
designated with strikethrough notation and new language shown in red): 
 

Chapter 15.20 - International Energy Conservation Code 

                                                                                                                                                         

Sections: 15.20.010 - Document adopted; copies on file. 

 

Pursuant to Title 31, Article 16, Sections 201 through 208, C.R.S., there is adopted as the 

energy code of the city, by reference thereto, the International Energy Conservation Code, 2018 

edition, published by the International Code Council, Inc., 4051 West Flossmoor Road, Country 

Club Hills, IL 60478-5795, of which two (2) copies are now filed in the office of the city clerk, 

and which may be inspected during regular business hours, the same being adopted as if set out at 

length. There is further adopted all appendices of such codes and regulations.  

(Ord. 967 §1, 2007; Ord. 858 §3, 1997; Ord. 765 §3, 1990; Ord. 673 (part), 1985; Ord. 792 §3, 

1992) 

15.20.020 - Additions, modifications and deletions.  

The adopted code is subject to the additions, modifications or deletions set forth in Sections 

15.20.030 through 15.20.050.  

(Ord. 967 §1, 2007; Ord. 673 (part), 1985) 

 



15.20.030 - Deletions  

       1. IECC Section R402.4.1.2 (Testing) Is deleted and not adopted as part of this code. 

       2. IECC Section R402.4.4 (Rooms containing fuel-burning appliances) Is deleted and not 

adopted as part of this code. 

   

 (Ord. 967 §1, 2007; Ord. 765 §5, 1990) 

 (Ord. 967 §1, 2007; Ord. 858 §7, 1997; Ord. 765 §8, 1990; Ord. 673 (part), 1986; Ord. 792 §7, 

1992) 

15.20.050 - Violation; penalty.  

Any person or persons violating any of the provisions of this chapter or of the International 

Energy Conservation Code, adopted as set forth in this chapter, shall be deemed guilty of a 

misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined in the sum not to exceed one thousand dollars 

($1,000.00) or by imprisonment for not more than one hundred eighty (180) days, or by both such 

fine and imprisonment. Each day that such a violation is permitted to exist shall constitute a 

separate offense.  

(Ord. 967 §1, 2007; Ord. 673 (part), 1986) 

  READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED ON FIRST READING THIS 

____________ DAY OF ______________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

 

 

                             ______________________________ 

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 

 

  

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED AFTER HEARING ON SECOND READING 

THIS ______ DAY OF _____________________, 2019 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CRAIG, COLORADO. 

 

       ________________________________  

       Jarrod Ogden, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Liz White, City Clerk 



 

 Page 1 

Memo 
To:     City Administration/City Council    

From: Mark Sollenberger/Water & Wastewater Director 

Date:  June 20, 2019   

              This memo is to recommend that the city council award the bid for repairing the 
damaged concrete block and painting the exterior of all the buildings at the wastewater plant. 
This is a 2019 O&M budgeted wastewater project, which was estimated to cost $28,000.00. 
There were three local bids received for this project. Bear River Paint & Finish had the lowest 
bid, and was also below the budgeted amount. There was one issue with the two lowest 
bids, and this concerned their lack of providing workman’s comp for their employees. 
However, both of these companies were able to provide a “Declaration of Independent 
Contractor Status Form” that exempts them from this requirement.   

Re:   Bid Award Recommendation 

               My recommendation is to award the bid to Bear River Paint & Finish (the lowest 
bidder) for the total cost of ($23,775.00).  I have also included a copy of the three bids, and 
the bid tabulation below for your review. Thank you in advance for considering this request. 

Vendor                                                                             

Bear River Paint & Finish                                                       $  23,775.00 

Total Bid Amount  

Miller’s Painting Service                                                         $  34,900.00  

Spiegel Industrial                                                                    $ 215,425.80 

 

 

                          

City of Craig 













































Water Department 
                                                                May, 2019 

Monthly Report 
 

 
Operational 

1. The plant operated throughout the month and complied with all state and federal 
requirements for water quality and reporting. 

2. All distribution system flows and pressure needs, for both fire protection and the water 
customers, were met. 

 

 
Maintenance and Improvements 

1. The staff performed all required preventative maintenance during the month. 
2. Elkhead work by the staff this month consisted of routine maintenance and inspections. 

The annual dam and facilities inspection by the state was done earlier in the month. 
Overall this inspection went well with the state engineer reporting that the 
management and operations of the dam is rated as good. 

3. Coblaco worked throughout the month on the Roundbottom Tank Repair & 
Improvement Project. Although there have been some minor delays as a result of bad 
weather or equipment breakdown, they are still on schedule to complete this project 
near the end of June. 

4. Various weed control efforts were completed this month at the water plant, and at all of 
the water storage tanks. 

5. The CDPHE lab compliance inspector came in this month to conduct the biennial site 
inspection and audit of the water plant’s lab procedures and documentation for our 
lab’s Total Coliform & E-Coli bacteria (P&A) analysis certification renewal. We passed 
this inspection, and our state certification will be renewed for another year. 

6. The staff continued working this month on the surveying of commercial properties for 
the CCC Program, and finishing up the installation of the new process turbidimeters. 

7. The staff continued working with SGM this month on present and future water and 
wastewater improvement projects, and programs.  

8. The staff continued to assist or work with other city departments, vendors, customers, 
and contractors as needed.  The staff also worked on building and grounds 
maintenance, and equipment repair. 
 

 

Distribution System Operation/Maintenance 

1. There were 110 line locates requested and completed this month. This required 
approximately 83.0 man-hours to complete. 

2. All work orders, meter readings, meter tech appointments, distribution of nonpayment 
door hangers, nonpayment water service shut offs, and service line inspections 
requested or scheduled were completed. 



3. Miscellaneous water department work by the staff this month included; completed 20 
final meter reads, completed 40 service turn offs/ons, and repaired 7 meters/MXU’s. 

4. The staff completed the annual fire hydrant flushing program this month for the west 
side of the city. There were 96 fire hydrants flushed in May.   

5. The staff repaired 1 water main break during the month. This repair required 
approximately 8 hours to complete. 

6. The staff completed several small distribution system projects during the month. They 
included - continuing to work with Sensus on the operational set up of the new water 
meter reading equipment, worked with the Road & Bridge Department on the Pershing 
Street sewer main replacement project site investigation and preliminary parts list 
development, and assisted a local plumbing contractor in completely replacing the 
water service line to the water main for the Sandrock Ridge Care Facility. This included a 
new water shut off/curb stop, and replacing the water main tap. 

7. The staff was able to perform their regularly scheduled work on the distribution system, 
bulk water sales stations, and equipment maintenance during the month. They were 
able to assist contractors, other city departments, and complete all emergency 
assignments as required.   
 

 

Water Production Statistics 

Effluent Total Flow             39,421,000 gallons      Total Chemical Cost        $10,424.75 
Backwash Total Flow    1,222,466 gallons Total Chemical Cost/MG    $    256.49 
Total Flow                40,643,466 gallons Alum & Ash Cost/Mg          $    144.85 
 
(Backwash Flow % of Total = (3.10%) 
 
The Craig Municipal Water Treatment Plant utilizes water rights for municipal use.  These 
included direct flow diversions from the following: 
 
Craig Irrigation Ditch    Deep Cut Ditch 
Fortification Creek Ditch    Craig Water Supply System 



Monthly Report 

Wastewater 

May 2019 

 

A. Treatment – Operation: 

1. Operated treatment plant to comply with State and Federal 

regulations. 

2. Performed daily, weekly, and monthly maintenance as 

recommended in the manufacturer’s manuals. 

3. Treated average of 944,000 gallons/day of wastewater. 

4. Received and treated 4,450 gallons of hauled waste. 

 

B. Collection – Operation: 

1. 52 man hours used to perform 104 line locates. 

2. 24 man hours used to hydraulically clean 3,575 feet of sewer main 

as part of routine (every 5 weeks) maintenance. 

3. 115 man hours used to hydraulically clean 27,625 feet of sewer 

main as part of an annual cleaning program. 

 

C. Collection – Correction 

1. 1 man hour used to respond to a backup complaint at 465 Steele 

St.  The main was inspected and found to be flowing well.  It was 

determined to be the homeowner’s issue.  As a side note, even 

though the main was flowing well and not obstructed, the operator 

did notice gravel in the main and hydraulically cleaned the whole 

line as a preventative measure.   

 

D. Other: 

1. Assisted other departments, local plumbers, and contractors as 

needed. 

2. Analyzed Maybell’s Wastewater Plant monthly samples. 



REVENUE COMPARISONS 

AS OF MAY 31, 2019 

COUNTYWIDE SALES TAX 

CITY SALES TAX 

WATER SALES 

SEWER SALES 

CONSTRUCTION DUMPSTERS 

REFUSE COLLECTION FEES 

REFUSE LANDFILL FEES 

1



CITY OF CRAIG
COUNTYWIDE SALES TAX

MONTH MONTH MONTH 37.50% 37.50% 37.50% 37.50%  % CHANGE
OF RECEIVED RECEIVED YEAR 2017 YEAR 2018 YEAR 2019 YEAR 2019 RECEIVED

SALES BY STATE BY CITY ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGETED ACTUAL  2019/2018

JAN FEB MAR $91,220.09 $100,423.25 $100,450.00 $107,952.87 7.50%
FEB MAR APR $84,759.24 $94,676.33 $94,600.00 $108,802.40 14.92%
MAR APR MAY $95,391.80 $106,581.45 $106,600.00 $109,858.29 3.07%
APR MAY JUN $104,935.76 $107,382.50 $107,400.00 $113,479.47 5.68%
MAY JUN JUL $108,837.75 $323,284.35 $124,650.00
JUN JUL AUG $112,649.51 $120,208.53 $120,200.00
JUL AUG SEP $120,798.26 $125,596.29 $125,600.00
AUG SEP OCT $121,057.07 $121,906.34 $121,900.00
SEP OCT NOV $107,808.75 $122,594.10 $122,600.00
OCT NOV DEC $115,911.33 $132,073.42 $118,000.00
NOV DEC JAN $119,866.30 $124,842.20 $116,000.00
DEC JAN FEB $123,462.08 $129,655.11 $120,000.00

TOTAL YEAR-TO-DATE $1,306,697.94 $1,609,223.87 $1,378,000.00 $440,093.03

 Actual  vs  Actual
Y-T-D Percentage Change -0.01% 21.30% 7.59%
Y-T- D Dollar Change $31,029.50

 Budget vs  Actual
Y-T-D Percentage Change 7.59%
Y-T- D Dollar Change $31,043.03

The monthly amount of Sales Tax received will reflect prior months collections due to delinquenct filings, and also don't reflect those 
that have not yet filed.  Therefore, the amount and percentage change between current and prior year totals, only represents the 
amount and percentage collected.  It is not a reflection of an increase or decease in sales activities.

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

$300,000

$350,000

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

S
A

LE
S

 T
A

X

MONTH RECEIVED BY STATE

CITY OF CRAIG
COUNTYWIDE SALES TAX

2018 ACTUAL 2019 BUDGETED 2019 ACTUAL

2



CITY OF CRAIG
CITY SALES TAX

MONTH MONTH 2.25% 2.25%/4.0% 4.00% 4.00%  % CHANGE ESTIMATED
OF RECEIVED YEAR 2017 YEAR 2018 YEAR 2019 YEAR 2019 RECEIVED % CHANGE

SALES BY CITY ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGETED ACTUAL  2019/2018 in SALES

JAN FEB $254,628.92 $263,126.31 $467,780.11 $441,794.56 67.90% -2.80%
FEB MAR $233,539.46 $250,436.70 $445,220.80 $427,870.57 70.85% 2.00%
MAR APR $260,106.85 $282,357.88 $501,969.56 $487,231.17 72.56% -0.87%
APR MAY $290,457.30 $283,716.50 $504,384.89 $472,364.42 66.49% -1.61%
MAY JUN $303,867.62 $345,760.12 $588,880.00 $558,000.00 61.38% -1.54%
JUN JUL $312,766.14 $316,820.24 $563,235.98
JUL AUG $324,111.81 $517,194.55 $527,356.34
AUG SEP $332,397.29 $555,922.11 $555,893.36
SEP OCT $291,501.08 $476,642.76 $538,634.87
OCT NOV $316,393.24 $555,381.16 $543,150.00
NOV DEC $315,388.68 $613,696.86 $485,000.00
DEC JAN $323,088.80 $633,093.27 $517,000.00

TOTAL YEAR-TO-DATE $3,558,247.19 $5,094,148.46 $6,238,505.91 $2,387,260.72

Actual vs Actual
     Y-T-D Percentage Change -1.51% 38.51% 67.48%
     Y-T- D Dollar Change $961,863.21

Actual vs Budgeted
     Y-T-D Percentage Change -4.82%
     Y-T- D Dollar Change ($120,974.64)

The monthly amount of Sales Tax received will reflect prior months collections due to delinquenct filings, and also don't reflect those 

that have not yet filed.  Therefore, the amount and percentage change between current and prior year totals, only represents the 

amount and percentage collected.  It is not a reflection of an increase or decease in sales activities.

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

S
A

LE
S

 T
A

X

MONTH RECEIVED BY ST/CO

CITY SALES TAX

2018 ACTUAL 2019 BUDGETED 2019 ACTUAL

3



$864,224 

$389,159 

$263,939 

$119,332 
$90,054 $82,043 $74,756 $67,371 $62,611 $55,188 $49,642 $45,622 $38,023 $36,612

$132,599 

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

$800,000

$900,000

$1,000,000

JANUARY THRU MAY 2019 CITY SALES TAX
$2,387,261

4



CITY OF CRAIG
WATER FUND

REVENUES FROM WATER SALES

$28.50 $28.50 $28.50 $29.10
$2.90/1,000 gals. $2.90/1,000 gals. $2.90/1,000 gals. $2.95/1,000 gals.

MONTH
OF YEAR 2017 YEAR 2018 YEAR 2019 YEAR 2019 % CHANGES

SALES ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGETED ACTUAL 2019/2018

JAN $191,956.84 $196,223.26 $200,147.73 $204,324.89 4.13%
FEB $184,430.63 $185,223.54 $188,928.01 $188,073.45 1.54%
MAR $189,845.36 $191,826.51 $195,663.04 $188,604.34 -1.68%
APR $193,889.14 $185,620.96 $189,333.38 $189,984.45 2.35%
MAY $213,119.26 $260,499.20 $265,709.18 $222,626.57 -14.54%
JUN $300,492.36 $320,545.75 $326,956.67
JUL $405,976.37 $387,627.05 $395,379.59
AUG $320,745.82 $348,605.20 $355,577.30
SEP $323,528.37 $315,908.57 $306,000.00
OCT $195,586.12 $219,596.91 $199,920.00
NOV $187,366.84 $192,075.43 $200,940.00
DEC $184,838.64 $174,530.72 $195,840.00

TOTAL YEAR-TO-DATE $2,891,775.75 $2,978,283.10 $3,020,394.90 $993,613.70

Actual vs Actual
Y-T-D Percentage Change 6.91% 8.65% 1.44% -2.53%
Y-T- D Dollar Change ($25,779.77)

Actual vs Budgeted
Y-T-D Percentage Change -4.44%
Y-T- D Dollar Change ($46,167.64)

$0

$50

$100

$150

$200

$250

$300

$350

$400

$450

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

W
A

T
E

R
 S

A
L

E
S

T
h

o
u

sa
n

d
s

MONTH

WATER SALES

2018 ACTUAL 2019 BUDGETED 2019 ACTUAL

5



CITY OF CRAIG
WASTEWATER FUND

REVENUES FROM SEWER FEES

$28.00 $31.00 $31.00 $31.95
$1.40/th. gal. $1.55/th. gal. $1.55/th. gal. $1.60/th. gal.

MONTH
OF YEAR 2017 YEAR 2018 YEAR 2019 YEAR 2019 % CHANGE

SALES ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGETED ACTUAL 2019/2018

JAN $140,015.82 $140,461.25 $144,675.09 $145,448.12 3.55%
FEB $137,505.27 $139,744.55 $143,936.89 $143,988.13 3.04%
MAR $140,697.65 $141,018.53 $145,249.09 $145,595.74 3.25%
APR $139,891.99 $139,992.07 $144,191.83 $147,153.45 5.12%
MAY $143,694.11 $148,895.27 $153,362.13 $150,969.20 1.39%
JUN $145,020.66 $145,943.24 $150,321.54
JUL $149,040.76 $149,570.96 $154,058.09
AUG $146,146.50 $148,385.19 $152,836.75
SEP $156,662.36 $155,041.01 $154,500.00
OCT $141,691.17 $145,530.63 $146,260.00
NOV $141,017.24 $140,722.63 $144,200.00
DEC $139,725.96 $138,202.60 $143,170.00

TOTAL YEAR-TO-DATE $1,721,109.49 $1,733,507.93 $1,776,761.39 $733,154.64  

Actual vs Actual
     Y-T-D Percentage Change 23.32% 10.84% 2.50% 3.24%
     Y-T- D Dollar Change $23,042.97

Actual vs Budgeted
     Y-T-D Percentage Change 0.24%
     Y-T- D Dollar Change $1,739.62

$125

$130

$135

$140

$145

$150

$155

$160

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

S
E

W
E

R
 F

E
E

S

T
h

o
u

sa
n

d
s

MONTH

SEWER FEES

2018 ACTUAL 2019 BUDGETED 2019 ACTUAL

6



CITY OF CRAIG
SOLID WASTE FUND

REVENUES FROM CONSTRUCTION DUMPSTERS

  
MONTH

OF YEAR 2017 YEAR 2018 YEAR 2019 YEAR 2019 % CHANGE
SALES ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGETED ACTUAL 2019/2018

JAN $7,055.92 $6,999.10 $7,000.00 $12,230.66 74.75%
FEB $5,778.25 $5,263.20 $5,300.00 $7,076.51 34.45%
MAR $38,447.05 $7,440.30 $7,400.00 $14,842.71 99.49%
APR $22,182.00 $7,329.90 $7,300.00 $16,083.80 119.43%
MAY $12,127.34 $11,773.45 $11,800.00 $12,704.00 7.90%
JUN $6,582.00 $13,811.56 $13,800.00
JUL $15,673.77 $10,934.48 $10,900.00
AUG $12,570.20 $8,868.58 $8,900.00
SEP $13,267.13 $9,363.60 $12,000.00
OCT $15,150.72 $20,865.71 $8,000.00
NOV $13,789.90 $17,226.16 $8,000.00
DEC $8,152.40 $7,733.76 $7,000.00

TOTAL YEAR-TO-DATE $170,776.68 $127,609.80 $107,400.00 $62,937.68

Actual vs Actual
     Y-T-D Percentage Ch 8.89% -6.82% -15.84% 62.19%
     Y-T- D Dollar Change $24,131.73

Actual vs Budgeted
     Y-T-D Percentage Change 62.21%
     Y-T- D Dollar Change $24,137.68

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

D
U

M
P

S
T

E
R

S
 C

H
A

R
G

E
S

T
h

o
u

sa
n

d
s

MONTH

CONSTRUCTION DUMPSTERS

2018 ACTUAL 2019 BUDGETED 2019 ACTUAL

7



CITY OF CRAIG
SOLID WASTE FUND

REVENUES FROM COLLECTION FEES

$11.00 $11.00 $11.00 $11.00

MONTH
OF YEAR 2017 YEAR 2018 YEAR 2019 YEAR 2019 % CHANGE

SALES ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGETED ACTUAL 2019/2018

JAN $51,644.91 $51,017.14 $51,000.00 $52,001.45 1.93%
FEB $50,393.96 $50,885.27 $50,900.00 $51,969.05 2.13%
MAR $75,671.86 $77,139.74 $77,100.00 $80,224.96 4.00%
APR $51,622.49 $52,019.56 $52,000.00 $52,364.97 0.66%
MAY $52,406.29 $52,106.99 $52,100.00 $53,167.94 2.04%
JUN $76,594.44 $78,400.84 $78,400.00
JUL $52,327.83 $51,205.46 $51,200.00
AUG $52,110.95 $51,750.24 $51,750.00
SEP $78,250.70 $80,499.47 $76,550.00
OCT $52,168.46 $52,242.87 $53,000.00
NOV $51,835.96 $52,008.08 $53,000.00
DEC $76,844.90 $79,440.44 $75,000.00

TOTAL YEAR-TO-DATE $721,872.75 $728,716.10 $722,000.00 $289,728.37

Actual vs Actual
Y-T-D Percentage Change 4.66% 0.57% -0.92% 2.32%
Y-T- D Dollar Change $6,559.67

Actual vs Budgeted
Y-T-D Percentage Change 2.34%
Y-T- D Dollar Change $6,628.37

$0

$10

$20

$30

$40

$50

$60

$70

$80

$90

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
IO

N
 F

E
E

S

T
h

o
u

sa
n

d
s

MONTH

COLLECTION FEES

2018 ACTUAL 2019 BDUGETED 2019 ACTUAL

8



CITY OF CRAIG
SOLID WASTE FUND

REVENUES FROM LANDFILL FEES

$9.00 $9.00 $9.00 $11.00
MONTH

OF YEAR 2017 YEAR 2018 YEAR 2019 YEAR 2019 % CHANGE
SALES ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGETED ACTUAL 2019/2018

JAN $40,494.93 $39,603.59 46,400.00 $47,995.97 21.19%
FEB $40,047.39 $39,851.76 46,700.00 $47,784.87 19.91%
MAR $56,392.97 $57,213.99 67,000.00 $69,749.01 21.91%
APR $40,463.87 $40,165.15 47,000.00 $48,334.74 20.34%
MAY $41,497.26 $40,642.03 47,600.00 $48,670.34 19.75%
JUN $56,838.06 $58,155.80 68,100.00
JUL $39,634.98 $39,949.23 46,500.00
AUG $40,546.19 $40,329.09 46,500.00
SEP $57,678.13 $59,102.33 67,400.00
OCT $40,475.52 $40,424.34 48,000.00
NOV $40,640.42 $40,265.39 48,000.00
DEC $56,967.23 $59,213.74 67,300.00

TOTAL YEAR-TO-DATE $551,676.95 $554,916.44 $646,500.00 $262,534.93

Actual vs Actual
Y-T-D Percentage Chang 3.46% 0.48% 16.50% 20.72%
Y-T- D Dollar Change $45,058.41

Actual vs Budgeted
Y-T-D Percentage Change 3.08%
Y-T- D Dollar Change $7,834.93

$0

$10

$20

$30

$40

$50

$60

$70

$80

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

L
A

N
D

F
IL

L
 F

E
E

S

T
h

o
u

sa
n

d
s

MONTH

LANDFILL FEES

2018 ACTUAL 2019 BUDGETED 2019 ACTUAL

9



FINANCIAL SUMMARY 

AS OF MAY 31, 2019 

GENERAL FUND - Summary 

GENERAL FUND - Detail Revenue 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND – Summary 

ACET FUND - Summary 

WATER FUND - Summary 

WASTEWATER FUND -  Summary 

SOLOD WASTE FUND - Summary 

MEDICAL BENEFITS FUND - Summary 

INVESTMENTS OF CITY FUNDS 

10



CITY OF CRAIG
2019 BUDGET

GENERAL FUND BUDGET SUMMARY

Revised 2019
2019 MONTH OF ACTUAL PERCENT

DESCRIPTION Budget MAY YTD YTD

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE:
Reserved-Tabor Act 262,046 286,231
Restricted Funds

Zoning Lieu of Land 42,000 42,000
County R&B 0 0
Conservation Trust 0 0

Unreserved-Undesignated 3,971,693 5,204,572

TOTAL  Beginning Fund Balance 4,275,739 5,532,803

REVENUES:
Taxes 9,225,675 951,561 3,688,877 40.0%
Licenses & Permits 100,100 12,091 44,316 44.3%
Intergovernmental 890,860 32,618 166,336 18.7%
Charges for Services 274,690 24,034 80,437 29.3%
Fines & Costs 60,500 3,827 19,445 32.1%
Miscellaneous 103,100 21,311 76,198 73.9%
Contributions 70,000 0 0 0.0%
Others 0 0 0 #DIV/0!

TOTAL  Revenues 10,724,925 1,045,442 4,075,610 38.0%

EXPENDITURES:
41 COUNCIL 228,630 18,298 97,591 42.7%
42 LEGAL 120,000 7,978 47,781 39.8%
43 JUDICIAL 113,120 8,496 44,640 39.5%
44 ADMINISTRATION 300,415 27,326 142,324 47.4%
45 CITY CLERK/PERSONNEL 224,120 12,707 106,516 47.5%
46 PUBLIC WORKS 70,615 5,008 33,938 48.1%
47 GENERAL SERVICES 66,400 2,326 25,217 38.0%
48 FINANCE/ACCOUNTING 417,540 39,746 134,071 32.1%
49 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 171,055 11,669 67,478 39.4%
50 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 82,070 4,047 27,635 33.7%
51 POLICE 3,220,890 228,736 1,264,193 39.2%
64 ROAD & BRIDGE 2,306,770 162,162 799,035 34.6%
70 PARKS & RECREATION 1,627,720 128,453 511,067 31.4%
75 CENTER OF CRAIG 30,200 1,936 9,607 31.8%
90 CAPITAL OUTLAY 1,482,125 89,342 210,670 14.2%
80 DEBT SERVICE 0 0 0 0.0%
TRANSFERS 0 0 0 0.0%

TOTAL Expenditures 10,461,670 748,230 3,521,762 33.7%

SOURCES OF FUNDS VS EXPENDITURES 263,255 553,848

ENDING FUND BALANCE:
Restricted

Tabor Act 269,196 105,653
Zoning Lieu of Land 42,000 42,000
Conservation Trust 0 0

Unreserved-Undesignated 4,227,798 5,938,999

TOTAL  Ending Fund Balance 4,538,994 6,086,651

Fund Bal -Unresv/Undesign (12/31/2019) 5,467,827
Minus:  RESERVE 2,244,886      25%
SURPLUS 3,222,941 36%

11



CITY OF CRAIG
2019 BUDGET

GENERAL FUND - DETAILED REVENUE SUMMARY

2019
2019 MONTH OF ACTUAL PERCENT

Acct No Account Description Budget MAY YTD YTD

GENERAL FUND
TAXES
10-31-10000 PROPERTY TAXES 1,194,175 279,689 709,486 59.4%
10-31-11000 PROPERTY TAXES DELINQUE 0 6 (50) #DIV/0!
10-31-20000 SPEC OWNERSHIP TAX 100,000 7,688 38,674 38.7%
10-31-30000 COUNTY SALES TAX 1,378,000 0 440,093 31.9%
10-31-40000 CIGARETTE TAX 20,000 1,170 5,157 25.8%
10-31-50000 CITY SALES TAX 6,238,500 558,000 2,387,261 38.3%
10-31-50001 SALES TAX - PENAL/INT 0 999 3,987 #DIV/0!
10-31-55000 SPEC EVENTS SALES TAX 0 370 625 #DIV/0!
10-31-60000 UTILITY BUSINESS TAX 295,000 103,603 103,603 35.1%
10-31-90000 INT & PEN ON PROPERTY T 0 36 41 #DIV/0!

TAXES Totals: 9,225,675 951,561 3,688,877 40.0%

LICENSES & PERMITS
10-32-12000 LICENSE/FEES LIQUOR 6,000 950 3,075 51.3%
10-32-12100 LICENSE/FEES BUSINESS F 100 0 0 0.0%
10-32-12200 LICENSE/FEES PLANNING F 2,000 250 450 22.5%
10-32-12300 LICENSE/FEES BLDG PERMI 50,000 6,488 24,264 48.5%
10-32-12301 LICENSES/FEES COUNTY 40,000 2,556 11,200 28.0%
10-32-12400 LICENSE/FEES ANIMAL 1,500 156 580 38.7%
10-32-12500 REMITTANCE FEES SALES TAX 0 106 376 #DIV/0!
10-32-12501 LICENSE/FEES - SPEC EVNTS 0 0 240 #DIV/0!
10-32-12502 LICENSE FEES-SALES TAX 0 1,260 3,775 #DIV/0!
10-32-20000 OTHER PERMITS 500 325 355 71.0%

LICENSES & PERMITS Totals: 100,100 12,091 44,316 44.3%

INTERGOVERNEMENTAL
10-33-00000 INTERGOVERNMENTAL 0 0 0 0.0%
10-33-10000 GRANTS 7,000 8,500 8,500 0.0%
10-33-10800 GRANTS AGNC 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
10-33-13000 GRANTS OTHER 27,890 0 5,000 17.9%
10-33-13100 GRANTS POL UNICOP 0 0 0 0.0%
10-33-13200 GRANTS STATE 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
10-33-13300 GRANTS GOCO 150,000 0 0 0.0%
10-33-13400 GRANTS REDI 0 0 13,653 #DIV/0!
10-33-13500 GRANTS USDA SENIORS 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
10-33-13900 GRANTS JAG 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
10-33-16200 GRANTS ENERGY IMPACT 0 0 5,217 #DIV/0!
10-33-16300 GRANTS MISC COMM PROGRA 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
10-33-20000 MINERAL LEASE FUNDS 150,000 0 0 0.0%
10-33-30000 VIN INSP FEES 1,200 160 440 36.7%
10-33-40000 DARE PROG-RESTR 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
10-33-53600 INT GOVT HWY USERS TAX 304,770 23,958 100,160 32.9%
10-33-53700 INT GOVT CONSERVATION T 85,000 0 33,367 39.3%
10-33-53800 INT GOVT MV REGISTRATIO 45,000 0 0 0.0%
10-33-60000 SEVERANCE TAXES 120,000 0 0 0.0%
10-33-70000 COUNTY R&B 0 0 0 0.0%
10-33-90000 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXE 0 0 0.0%

INTERGOVERNMENTAL Totals: 890,860 32,618 166,336 18.7%

CHARGES FOR SERVICES
10-34-40000 POOL CLEARING 0 242 242 #DIV/0!
10-34-49000 CHARGES POLICE SECURITY 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
10-34-49100 CHARGES SXO REGISTRATION 1,200 250 825 68.8%
10-34-49252 CODE BOOKS 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
10-34-50000 PARKS & REC 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
10-34-54000 PARKS & REC MISCELLANEO 0 125 1,125 #DIV/0!
10-34-54100 PARKS & REC TRAILBUSTER 0 0 0 #DIV/0!

12



CITY OF CRAIG
2019 BUDGET

GENERAL FUND - DETAILED REVENUE SUMMARY

2019
2019 MONTH OF ACTUAL PERCENT

Acct No Account Description Budget MAY YTD YTD

10-34-54200 PARKS & REC AAU BASKETB 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
10-34-60000 MISC PARK FEES 3,500 3,320 4,860 138.9%
10-34-64366 ASPHALT PATCHING 0 2,052 2,877 #DIV/0!
10-34-74300 POOL ADMISSIONS 47,650 0 0 0.0%
10-34-74400 POOL PRIVATE PARTY 1,000 0 0 0.0%
10-34-74500 POOL SWIM LESSONS 16,750 1,500 8,760 52.3%
10-34-74600 POOL PASSES 13,870 375 375 2.7%
10-34-74700 POOL PUNCH PASSES 100 0 0 0.0%
10-34-74800 POOL FITNESS 2,000 440 725 36.3%
10-34-74900 POOL COMM ED 4,050 375 2,295 56.7%
10-34-75000 POOL CONCESSIONS 27,000 0 0 0.0%
10-34-75100 POOL LOCKER FEES 80 0 0 0.0%
10-34-75200 POOL SODA MACHINE 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
10-34-75300 POOL STAFF UNIFORMS 600 0 0 0.0%
10-34-95400 RECREATION PROGRAM FEES 3,050 50 907 29.8%
10-34-95450 RECREATION SENIOR PROGRA 20,000 2,544 6,464 32.3%
10-34-95500 RECREATION CONCESSIONS 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
10-34-95600 RECREATION YOUTH SPORTS 37,400 6,810 30,894 82.6%
10-34-95700 RECREATION ADULT SPORTS 11,440 0 5,040 44.1%
10-34-95800 RECREATION SPECIAL EVEN 81,000 4,577 11,923 14.7%
10-34-95900 RECREATION SPONSOR FEES 4,000 1,375 3,125 78.1%

CHARGES FOR SVC Totals: 274,690 24,034 80,437 29.3%

FINES & COSTS
10-35-00000 FINES AND COSTS 60,000 3,827 18,945 31.6%
10-35-10000 DRUG SURCHARGE 0 0 0 0.0%
10-35-51571 RESTITUTION/ANIMAL CONTRO 0 0 0 0.0%
10-35-52000 CODE ENFORCEMENT - FINES/C 500 0 500 100.0%

FINES & COSTS Totals 60,500 3,827 19,445 32.1%

MISCELLANEOUS
10-36-00000 MISCELLANEOUS 15,000 5,682 9,087 60.6%
10-36-16000 INTEREST CHECKING 100 1,736 5,445 5445.2%
10-36-16100 INTEREST INVESTMENTS 65,000 10,995 50,276 77.3%
10-36-20000 RENTS & ROYALTIES 23,000 2,898 11,390 49.5%
10-36-50000 CONT DOWNTOWN REDEVELOP 0 0 0 #DIV/0!

MISCELLANEOUS Totals: 103,100 21,311 76,198 73.9%

CONTRIBUTIONS
10-37-00000 CONTRIB FROM OTHER GOV 70,000 0 0 0.0%
10-37-10000 CONTRIB PRIVATE 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
10-37-71700 CONTRIBUTION - 911 BOARD 0 0 0 #DIV/0!

CONTRIBUTIONS Totals: 70,000 0 0 0.0%

OTHER
10-39-10000 SALE OF ASSETS 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
10-39-20000 BOND PROCEEDS 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
10-39-99000 REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSE 0 0 0 #DIV/0!

OTHER Totals: 0 0 0 0.0%

GENERAL FUND Totals: 10,724,925 1,045,442 4,075,610 38.0%

13



CITY OF CRAIG
2019 BUDGET

CAPITAL PROJECTS  FUND BUDGET SUMMARY

2019
2019 MONTH OF ACTUAL PERCENT

DESCRIPTION Budget MAY YTD YTD

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE:
Unreserved-Undesignated 306,544 659,925

TOTAL  Beginning Fund Balance 306,544 659,925

REVENUES:
20-31-10000 Property Taxes 140,525 32,912 83,489 59.4%
20-31-11000 Property Taxes Delinquent 0 1 (745) #DIV/0!
20-31-20000 Spec Ownship Taxes 8,000 905 4,551 56.9%
20-31-90000 Int & Pen on Property Taxes 40 4 5 12.0%
20-33-10000 Grants 930,000 0 0 0.0%
20-36-00000 Miscellaneous 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
20-36-16100 Interest Investments 2,000 1,120 6,338 316.9%
20-36-16110 Interest on Spec Asses. 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
20-39-75000 Transfers In 0 0 0 #DIV/0!

TOTAL  Revenues 1,080,565 34,942 93,637 59.4%

EXPENDITURES:
20-81-56100 Treasurers Fees County 2,800 658 931 33.2%
20-81-93116 Capital Enigeering 0 0 0
20-81-95000 Capital Construction 386,825 96,125 125,410 32.4%
20-81-96000 Capital Constr. - CDOT 930,000 0 0
20-81-96000 Capital Constr. - Safe Routes 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
20-81-96100 Capital Enigeering 0 3,381 57,037 #DIV/0!

TOTAL Expenditures 1,319,625 100,164 183,378 13.9%

SOURCES OF FUNDS VS EXPENDITURES (239,060) (89,741)

ENDING FUND BALANCE:
Unreserved-Undesignated 67,484 570,184

TOTAL  Ending Fund Balance 67,484 570,184

14



CITY OF CRAIG
2019 BUDGET

ACET FUND BUDGET SUMMARY

2019
2019 MONTH OF ACTUAL PERCENT

DESCRIPTION Budget MAY YTD YTD

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE:
Unreserved-Undesignated 162,667 184,225

TOTAL  Beginning Fund Balance 162,667 184,225

REVENUES:
21-33-13900 Grants 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
21-35-00000 Fines and Costs 500 327 510 101.9%
21-35-20000 Forfeitures 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
21-36-00000 Miscellaneous 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
21-36-16100 Interest Investments 2,500 287 1,437 57.5%
21-37-00000 Contributions Government 18,700 0 17,424 93.2%

TOTAL  Revenues 21,700 614 19,370 89.3%

EXPENDITURES:
ACET Personal Services 0 0 0 0.0%
ACET Supplies 17,000 94 735 4.3%
ACET Purchased Services 42,290 340 10,062 23.8%
ACET Fixed Charges 12,000 3,000 6,000 50.0%
ACET Other 3,000 3,000 3,000 100.0%
ACET Capital Outlay 0 0 3,753 #DIV/0!

TOTAL Expenditures 74,290 6,433 23,549 31.7%

SOURCES OF FUNDS VS EXPENDITURES (52,590) (4,179)

ENDING FUND BALANCE:
Restricted (State/Federal Forfeiture Funds) 39,894
Unreserved-Undesignated 110,077 140,152

TOTAL  Ending Fund Balance 110,077 180,046

15



CITY OF CRAIG
2019 BUDGET

WATER FUND BUDGET SUMMARY

2019
2019 MONTH OF ACTUAL PERCENT

DESCRIPTION Budget MAY YTD YTD

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE:
Reserved for Debt 430,100 430,100
Uspendable Inventory&CompAbsence 260,313 260,313
Unreserved-Undesignated 2,251,468 3,445,702

TOTAL  Beginning Fund Balance 2,941,881 4,136,115

REVENUES:
50-34-49100 CHARGES METERED WATER 3,020,400 222,627 993,614 32.9%
50-34-49200 CHARGES UNMETERED WATER 75,000 6,064 26,231 35.0%
50-34-49300 CHARGES RECONNECT 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
50-34-49400 CHARGES TAP FEES & PERM 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
50-34-49500 CHARGES SALE OF WATER M 1,000 0 0 0.0%
50-36-00000 MISCELLANEOUS 45,000 3,661 17,010 37.8%
50-36-16100 INTEREST INVESTMENTS 20,000 7,363 37,101 185.5%
50-36-20000 RENTS & ROYALTIES 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
50-36-30000 LATE PAYMENT FEE 68,000 4,845 25,284 37.2%
50-37-00000 CONTRIB FROM OTHER GOV 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
50-39-10000 SALE OF ASSETS 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
50-39-20000 BOND PROCEEDS 3,200,000 0 0 0.0%
50-39-40000 GRANT 1,000,000 0 240,000 24.0%

TOTAL  Revenues 7,429,400 244,560 1,339,240 18.0%

EXPENDITURES:
EXPENDITURES:
Personal Services 1,086,320 84,891 455,904 42.0%
Supplies 187,650 3,149 47,249 25.2%
Purchased Services 919,500 51,163 275,866 30.0%
Elkhead Reservoir 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
Fixed Charges 64,350 0 33,439 52.0%
Debt Service 391,000 0 195,495 50.0%
Capital Outlay 6,229,000 27,686 249,829 4.0%

TOTAL Expenditures 8,877,820 166,889 1,257,782 14.2%

SOURCES OF FUNDS VS EXPENDITURES (1,448,420) 81,458

ENDING FUND BALANCE:
Reserved for Debt 500,000 500,000
Uspendable Inventory&CompAbsence 260,313
Unreserved-Undesignated 993,461 3,457,260

TOTAL  Ending Fund Balance 1,493,461 4,217,573

Fund Bal -Unresv/Undesign (12/31/2019) 1,997,282
Minus:  RESERVE 564,455        25%
SURPLUS  1,432,827 63%

16



CITY OF CRAIG
2019 BUDGET

WASTEWATER FUND BUDGET SUMMARY

2019
2019 MONTH OF ACTUAL PERCENT

DESCRIPTION Budget MAY YTD YTD

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE:
Reserved for Debt 0 0
Uspendable Inventory&CompAbsence 14,468 14,468
Unreserved-Undesignated 1,411,543 1,726,228

TOTAL  Beginning Fund Balance 1,426,011 1,740,696

REVENUES:
60-34-49400 CHARGES TAP FEES & PER 0 2,390 2,390 #DIV/0!
60-34-49600 CHARGES SEWER FEES 1,776,750 150,969 733,155 41.3%
60-34-49700 SEPTAGE FEES 60,000 0 4,621 7.7%
60-36-00000 MISCELLANEOUS 9,000 0 (39) -0.4%
60-36-16100 INTEREST INVESTMENTS 15,000 3,532 17,109 114.1%
60-36-20000 RENTS & ROYALTIES 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
60-37-00000 CONTRIB FROM OTHER GOV 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
60-39-10000 SALE OF ASSETS 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
60-39-40000 GRANT 200,000 0 0 0.0%

TOTAL  Revenues 2,060,750 156,891 757,234 36.7%

EXPENDITURES:
EXPENDITURES:
Personal Services 763,130 69,176 365,807 47.9%
Supplies 61,250 5,822 20,286 33.1%
Purchased Services 567,700 19,882 138,980 24.5%
Fixed Charges 29,025 0 17,429 60.0%
Debt Service 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
Other (Transfers) 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
Capital Outlay 745,400 13,831 21,152 2.8%

TOTAL Expenditures 2,166,505 108,711 563,654 26.0%

SOURCES OF FUNDS VS EXPENDITURES (105,755) 193,580

ENDING FUND BALANCE:
Reserved for Debt Service 0 0
Uspendable Inventory&CompAbsence 0 14,468
Unreserved-Undesignated 1,320,256 1,919,808

TOTAL  Ending Fund Balance 1,320,256 1,934,276

Fund Bal -Unresv/Undesign (12/31/2019) 1,620,473
Minus:  RESERVE 355,276        25%
SURPLUS  1,265,197 89%

17



CITY OF CRAIG
2019 BUDGET

SOLID WASTE FUND BUDGET SUMMARY

2019
2019 MONTH OF ACTUAL PERCENT

DESCRIPTION Budget MAY YTD YTD

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE:
Reserved for Debt 0 0
Unreserved-Undesignated 1,578,212 1,726,349

TOTAL  Beginning Fund Balance 1,578,212 1,726,349

REVENUES:
70-34-49710 CONSTRUCTION DUMPSTERS 107,400 12,704 62,938 58.6%
70-34-49800 CHARGES SOLID WASTE FE 722,000 53,168 289,728 40.1%
70-34-49900 CHARGES LANDFILL 646,500 48,670 262,535 40.6%
70-36-00000 MISCELLANEOUS 8,000 5,304 38,263 478.3%
70-36-10000 RECYCLABLE ELECTRONICS 2,000 700 1,226 61.3%
70-36-16100 INTEREST INVESTMENTS 0 3,469 16,862 #DIV/0!
70-36-30000 LATE PAYMENT FEE 6,000 690 3,030 50.5%
70-39-40000 GRANT 0 0 0 #DIV/0!

TOTAL  Revenues 1,491,900 124,705 674,581 45.2%

EXPENDITURES:
EXPENDITURES:
Personal Services 678,100 49,431 265,123 39.1%
Supplies 110,750 8,217 28,822 26.0%
Purchased Services 515,400 51,610 195,405 37.9%
Fixed Charges 19,800 0 8,597 43.4%
Debt Service 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
Other (Transfers) 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
Capital Outlay 339,000 0 0 0.0%

TOTAL Expenditures 1,663,050 109,257 497,947 29.9%

SOURCES OF FUNDS VS EXPENDITURES (171,150) 176,634

ENDING FUND BALANCE:
Reserved for Debt 0 0
Unreserved-Undesignated 1,407,062 1,902,983

TOTAL  Ending Fund Balance 1,407,062 1,902,983

Fund Bal -Unresv/Undesign (12/31/2019) 1,555,199
Minus:  RESERVE 331,013           25%
SURPLUS  1,224,187 92%

18



CITY OF CRAIG
2019 BUDGET

MEDICAL BENEFITS FUND BUDGET SUMMARY

2019
2019 MONTH OF ACTUAL PERCENT

DESCRIPTION Budget MAY YTD YTD

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE:
Reserve for Unreported/Unpaid Claims
Unreserved-Undesignated 309,801 372,730

TOTAL  Beginning Fund Balance 309,801 372,730

REVENUES:
80-35-10000 Employer Contributions 2,042,420 218,973 823,868 40.3%
80-35-20000 Employee Contributions 227,000 20,404 79,337 35.0%
80-35-30000 Reimbursements 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
80-36-00000 Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0.0%
80-36-10000 Interest  0 8 38 #DIV/0!
80-36-16100 Interest Investments 0 0 0 0.0%
80-39-70000 Transfer In 0 0 0 0.0%

TOTAL  Revenues 2,269,420 239,385 903,242 39.8%

EXPENDITURES:
80-90-85100 Expense Insurance Premiums 2,180,750 170,844 845,704 38.8%
80-90-85200 Expense Administration 7,000 118 572 8.2%
80-90-85800 Expense Claims Paid 63,000 1,971 15,687 24.9%
80-90-85900 Expense Other 0 0 0 0.0%
80-90-86000 Expense Deductible/Buyout 19,000 0 1,500 100.0%

TOTAL Expenditures 2,269,750 172,933 863,463 38.0%

SOURCES OF FUNDS VS EXPENDITURES (330) 39,779

ENDING FUND BALANCE:
Reserve for Unreported/Unpaid Claims 0 0
Unreserved-Undesignated 309,471 412,509

TOTAL  Ending Fund Balance 309,471 412,509

19



COLOTRUST PLUS+

Month End
Balance

Beginning
Balance Withdrawals

Average Daily
Balance

Income
EarnedContributions

2.53%Average Monthly Yield:

Income
Earned

YTD

12,163,299.79 109,543.56 12,299,206.19CO-01-0573-7004 General - 7004 0.00 26,362.84 12,262,129.01127,426.56

12,163,299.79 12,299,206.19109,543.56Total 0.00 26,362.84 12,262,129.01127,426.56

Summary Statement

May 2019

City of Craig

300 West 4th Street
Craig, CO 81625-2713

Email: invest@colotrust.com      Tel: (877) 311-0219 / (303) 864-7474      Fax: (877) 311-0220      www.colotrust.com

Page 1
20



Amount SharesDate

$185,146.86Beginning Balance

Redemptions

Type

Statement Summary

Transaction Summary

Purchases

Market Value

$185,549.38

CRAIG, CO 81625

300 WEST 4TH STREET

U.S.A.

CRAIG, CITY OF - CORE

Interest Distributed

Month End Balance

7 Day Average

Monthly Average

YTD Interest $953.96

$402.52

2.56

BRUCE NELSON

2.55

Month End Shares Owned 92,774.69

Shares Purchased

Shares Redeemed

%

%

$0.00

$0.00

Net Transactions: $0.00

Statement Period:

1675 Broadway, Suite 500
Denver, CO 80202

(303) 296-6340
(800) 541-2953
FAX: (303) 658-3136
www.csafe.org/

05/01/2019  To  05/31/2019

CORE     XX-XXXXX47-02Account Number:

21


	1A 190625a
	2M 190611
	6.25.19 Agenda Items
	1A 190625a
	2M 190611
	6A Dark Horse Liquors
	6B Mathers Bar
	8A Sewer Line Replacement on Pershing Bid Award
	8B US 40 Sidewalk Improvement Award Memo
	8C Reso No. 12-AGNC
	8D Reso No. 13 - CNCC_CityofCraig
	8E Ordinance 1086 Amending 15.02
	8F Ordinance 1087 Amending 15.04
	8G Ordinance 1088 Amending 15.06
	8H Ordinance 1089 Adopting 15.07
	8I Ordinance 1090 Amending 15.12_
	8J Ordinance 1091 Amending 15.14
	8K Ordinance 1092 Amending 15.16
	8L Ordinance 1093 Amending 15.18
	8M Ordinance 1094 Amending 15.22
	8N Ordinance 1095 Amending 15.20
	8O Wastewater Painting Award
	WW Buildings Painting Project Bid Award Memo June 2019
	Bear River Bid
	Miller Painting Bid
	Spiegel Industrial Bid

	9A Water & WW report May 19
	2019 May Water Monthly Report
	2019 May Wastewater Monthly Report

	9B Monthly Financial Report 2019-05
	8A Pg01  MthlyRevComp
	8A Pg02  CountySalesTax
	8A Pg03  CitySalesTax
	8A Pg03a  CitySalesTax
	8A Pg04  Graph Water
	8A Pg05  Graph Sewer
	8a pG06 Graph Constr-Dump
	8A Pg07  Graph Refuse Fees
	8A Pg08  Graph Refuse Land
	8A Pg09  MonthlyFinance
	8A Pg10  GenFd
	8A Pg11  GenFd Rev
	8A Pg12  Capital
	8A Pg13  ACET
	8A Pg14  Water
	8A Pg15  Sewer
	8A Pg16  Solid Waste
	8A Pg17  Medical
	8A Pg18  Investment
	Invest 2019-05 Colotrust
	Invest 2019-05 Csafe



	6A Dark Horse Liquors
	6B Mathers Bar
	8A Sewer Line Replacement on Pershing Bid Award
	8B US 40 Sidewalk Improvement Award Memo
	8C Reso No. 12-AGNC
	8D Reso No. 13 - CNCC_CityofCraig
	8E Ordinance 1086 Amending 15.02
	8F Ordinance 1087 Amending 15.04
	8G Ordinance 1088 Amending 15.06
	8H Ordinance 1089 Adopting 15.07
	8I Ordinance 1090 Amending 15.12_
	8J Ordinance 1091 Amending 15.14
	8K Ordinance 1092 Amending 15.16
	8L Ordinance 1093 Amending 15.18
	8M Ordinance 1094 Amending 15.22
	8N Ordinance 1095 Amending 15.20
	8O Wastewater Painting Award
	WW Buildings Painting Project Bid Award Memo June 2019
	Bear River Bid
	Miller Painting Bid
	Spiegel Industrial Bid

	9A Water & WW report May 19
	2019 May Water Monthly Report
	2019 May Wastewater Monthly Report

	9B Monthly Financial Report 2019-05
	8A Pg01  MthlyRevComp
	8A Pg02  CountySalesTax
	8A Pg03  CitySalesTax
	8A Pg03a  CitySalesTax
	8A Pg04  Graph Water
	8A Pg05  Graph Sewer
	8a pG06 Graph Constr-Dump
	8A Pg07  Graph Refuse Fees
	8A Pg08  Graph Refuse Land
	8A Pg09  MonthlyFinance
	8A Pg10  GenFd
	8A Pg11  GenFd Rev
	8A Pg12  Capital
	8A Pg13  ACET
	8A Pg14  Water
	8A Pg15  Sewer
	8A Pg16  Solid Waste
	8A Pg17  Medical
	8A Pg18  Investment
	Invest 2019-05 Colotrust
	Invest 2019-05 Csafe





